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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In the Matter of

THE W.N. CONNELL and MARJORIET.
CONNELL LIVING TRUST, dated May 18, ,
1972, Case No. P-09-066425-T
Department: 26 (Probate)

A non-testamentary trust.

Date of Hearing: February 9 -10, 2017

ORDER REGARDING MOTION FOR ASSESSMENT OF DAMAGES AGAINST ELEANOR AHERN.
. A. PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND/OVERVIEW

A A"Motion for Assessment of Damages Against Eleanor Ahern; Enforcement of No

Contest Clause; and Surcharge of Eleanor’s Trust Income” (“the Motion™) was filed an hehalf of .

Jacqueline M. Montoya and Kathryn A. Bouvier {“Movants” or “Ms. Montaya and Ms. Bouvier”)
on June 3, 2015, and a Supplement to the Motion was filed on July 31, 2015. Ms. Montoya is the
currently serving trustee of the MTC Living Trust, dated December 6, 1995, and subsequently
restated in its entirety on October 3, 2000 (*"MTC Trust”), and is also a beneficiary of the MTC
Trust, while Ms, Bouvier is a beneficiary of the MTC Trust.

A.2  Anopposition to the Motion was filed ont behalf of Eleanor Connell Hartman Ahern

Case Number; P-09-066425-T
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(“Ms. Ahern") on June 29, 2015, and a "Motion to Strike Supplement to Motion for Assessment of
Damages Against Eleanor Ahern; Enforcement of No Contest Clause; and Surcharge of Eleanor’s
Trust Income"” was filed on August 3, 2015.

A.3  Anevidentiary hearing was held on February 22, 2016 and continued on March 3,
2016, On Pebruary 22, 2016 legal arguments were presented by all parties, and the testimony of
two witnesses, Fredrick Waid and Jacqueline Montoya, was offered, and on March 3, 2016 closing
arguments were made.

(a)  Jaocqueline M. Montoya and Kathryn A. Bouvier were jointly represented by
attorneys Layne T, Rushforth, Joseph J. Powell, and Daniel P. Kiefer of The Rushforth Firm,

Lid.;

(b) Eleanor Connell Hartman Ahern (“Ms. Ahern™) was represented by Tamara

Beatty Peterson, Esq. and Kirk B. Lenhard, Esq., of Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, LLP;

and

{c) Fredrick P. Waid {"Mr. Waid"), in his capacity as the acting trustee of THE

W.N. CONNELL and MARJORIE T. CONNELL LIVING TRUST, dated May 18,1972 ("the

Trust”), was represented by Todd L. Moody and Russel J. Geist of Hutchison & Steffen,

LLC.

A4  The result of the evidentiary hearing on February 22, 2016 and March 3, 2016 was
the issuance of the "Order Regarding Motion for Assessment of Damages; Enforcement of No
Contest Clause; and Surcharge of Trust Income”, dated September 13, 2016 (“Order Regarding
Motion for Damages”).

A5 The Order Regarding Moﬁo;x for Damages Included the following findings:

1. Ms. Ahern, as Trustee, did not comply with the Court order to protect
the 65% share of the Trust that was to be segregated under the terms of the

Trust for the Movants, Ms. Montoya and Ms. Bouvier,

Paga z
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3. Ms. Ahern’s failure to comply with the Court’s Order to protect the
Movants' 65% share, however, resulted in g misapplication of the Trust
income, which deprived the Movants of funds owed to them under the terms
of the Trust. Ms. Ahern’s misapplication of Trust funds warrants a
surcharge &gainst Ms. Ahern’s 35% share of the Trust, to be paid to
Movants, in a total amount to be determined at a future hearing to be set
by this Court.

4. Additional briefing and argument is needed on the issues of punitive
and treble damages. It is expected that the additional briefing on such
damages, and the hearing on the total amount owed to Movants, will be
scheduled afier the Successor Trustee, Fredrick P. Waid ("Mr. Waid”)
finalizes his accounting for the Court.

6. Infurther violation of this Court’s Orders, Ms. Ahern removed some
funds from Trust accounts before turning those accounts over to the
Successor Trustee, Mr. Waid. Some funds have since been turned over to
the Successor Trustee, however, until such time as Mr. Waid can provide

an Accounting the Court cannot rule on Ms. Ahern potential liability. The

exact amount of any damages resulting from these serious breaches of

fiductary duty will be determined at a later evidentiary hearing.

8. Movant's seek punitive damages, which requires a finding of willful
and malicious conduct. In the alternative, Movants seek treble damages
Jor breach of fiduciary duty. Ms. Ahern's conduct was shacking end needs
to be dealt with a serious fashion, buit the final decision onwhether punitive
and/or treble damages should be awarded inaddition to restifution will be

made at the evidentiary hearing to be scheduled after Mr. Waid concludes

Page 3
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discovery and prepares his report and accounting to the Court.

A6 Inthe "Order” section of the Order Regarding Motion for Damages, it was stated
that:

ITISFURTHER ORDER ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Mr. Waid shall

preparea r.‘eport and a trustee’s account, and upon completion, a hearing

on the amounts owed by Ms. Ahern, including any punitive and treble
damages, shall be conducted, unless the parties stipulate otherwise.
A7 Incompliance with this Court’s Order Regarding Motion for Damages, on February
1, 2017, Mr. Waid filed his “Accounting and Report of Trust Activity from 2013 to 2015”
(“Accounting and Report”).
A8  Asitrelates to his caleulation of the amounts owed to the MTC Trust from Ms.
Ahern, Mr. Waid made the following declarations and conclusions in his Accounting and Report;

Since the Appointment of the Successor Trustee in.April 2015, thisCourt has

fssued numerous orders requiring Ms. Ahern to produce reéords, comply with

‘ dep.osiﬁon notices and cooperatewith the Successor Trustee's efforts toprepare an
accounting fortime periods when she served as Trustee. Inresponse to the Court's
orders Ms. Ahern has produced, through her various counsel, only limited records
primariy consisting of forwarded mail, She did not appear for any scheduded or
ordered depositions notwithstanding thefindings of the Court regarding fraud and
other miseonduct pursuant to hearings on the Motion to Enforce the Trust's No
Contest Clause.

Due fo her failureto appear and cooperate as ordered, a signifieant portion
of the transactional history that occurred during Ms. Ahern's tenure os frustee
cannot be reconciled or explained. As such, and pursuant to Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP), the Successor Trustee is unable to this provide the

Fago 4
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Court with definitive information or explain as to the greatly expanded Trust
expenditures, either in dollars spent or to whatn those dollars were paid, during
the accounting period and Ms, Ahem’ s tenire as Trustee. [Pages 1- 2 of

Aceounting and Report]

Again, due to Ms. Ahem's failure te answer questions under oath, the
rationale and basis for the expenditures remain unanswered and unclear. What
isclear is that MTCdid not receive a single distribution of royalty income frotn the

Trust between June 2013 and April 2015. [Page 2 of Accounting and Report]

Asignificant number of expenses that were authorized by Ms. Ahernappear
to have provided no benefit to the Trust and cannot be deemed appropriate,
deductible business expenses as defined and permitted by the Internal Revenue

Code. [Page 2 of Accounting and Report]

' After reviewing available records from the Internal R_evenue Service,
various barnks, oil and gas producers, common royalty recipients (i.e., the Miller
JSamily, which shares an equivalent 25% royalty interest as the Trust) and partial
reconeiliations completed by the accounting firm of Gamm et & King CP As, the
Successor Trustee prepared the chart attached as Exhibit B, which sets forth the
best available basis for calculation of royalties not paid to the MTC Trust, as
required by the terms of the Trust and as determined by this Court's previous

Jfindings and orders,
MTC should have received royalty payments of $481,010 for 2013,

$2,028,134 forz014 and $1,447,406 for 2015, totaling $3,956,550. MTC received

Fages
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Jor the three (3) year period « total of §2,214,497, with $1,014,622 of the amount
being paid after Ms. Ahem was removed as Trustee. The total undistributed
royalties for the period is $1,742,053. [Page 2 - 3 of Accounting and Report]
A.g  OnFebruary7, 2017, the Movants filed their Pre-Trial Memorandum, which set forth
the amount of damages that the Movants were seeking to he awarded by the Court in light of Mr,
Waid's computations and calculations as found in his Accounting and Report.

A0 On or about February 8, 2017, Ms. Ahern submitted an ex parte request, via

correspondence faxed to the Court, fo have funds released by Mr. Waid from the Trust for the

payment of her representation by Mr. Lawrence Semenza at the evidentiary hearing.

A1r  Inresponseto Ms, Ahern’s ex parte request for an order releasing funds, pursnant
toaminute order issued on February 8, 2017, the Court granted Ms. Ahern's request for the release
of funds directly to Attorney Semenza “for his reasonable attorney’s fees incurred for his
representation of Ms. Ahern at the February ¢™ and 10™ evidentiary hearing”.

A2 Prior to the start of the evidéntiary hearing, Attorney Semenza indicated that he
would be unable to represent Ms. Ahern under the circumstances and would have to respectfully
decline to accept the representation despite the minute order issued by the Court’.

A.13  Subsequent to Attorney Semenza making his decision, Ms. Ahern was informed by
the Court of the situation and the fact that the evidentiary would proceed as scheduled. Ms. Ahern

replied that because she would not be represented by counsel, she indicated that she was declining

! MR. SEMENZA: I have not made an appearance, and I certainly cannot make an appearshee underthe
terms that have been specified in the Court's order. Ms, Ahern, as you indicated last time, Your Honor,
needs counsel, and apparently she does not have sufficient fonds with which to engage counsel, whether
it’s ma or someonc else, And to me, for me to enter sn appearance today and for tomerrow, assuming
that the hearing were to continue that and then I don't know whether I would have to move the Court
to withdraw since I -~in for & pound, in for a penmy, whatever. I cannot do that. It would be malpractice
for me to atep into this for a hearing this morning, Your Honor, and I cannot do so.

THE COURT: Okzy. So You're respectfully declining to appear.
MR. SEMENZA: I am, Your Honor.

Page &
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to spealk®,
A4 After making such declaration, Ms. Ahern then made an oral request for the
evidentiary hearing to be continued which the Court promptly denied?.
A5 At the evidentiary hearing commencing on February 9™, appearances and
representations were as follows:
(8  The Movants were jointly represented by attorneys Joseph J. Powell and
Daniel P. Kiefer of The Rushforth Firm, Ltd.;
b) Ms. Ahern appeared pro se; and
()  Mr. Waid, in his capacity as the acting trustee of the Trust, was represented
by Todd L. Moody of Hutchison & Steffen, LLC. '
A16  The sole witness to provide testimony at the evidentiary hearing was Mr. Waid.
A7 Theissuesto bedetermined atthe evidentiaryhearing were the determination of the
compensatory damages owing to the Movants, via their beneficial interests in the MTC Trust, from
Ms. Ahern and a determination as to whether exemplary damages would be awarded to the
Movants based on Ms. Ahern's conduct and if appropriate the amount of such exemplary damages
that was appropriate.
B. FINDINGS RRGARDING COMPENSATORY DAMAGES
The Court makes the following findings and rulings in relation to compensatory damages:
B Mr. Waid testified regarding the conclusions found in his Accounting and Report.
As such, the Accounting and Report is accepted by the Court in its entirety and the findings and

determinationsthercin relatingto figures withheld from the MTC Trust beneficiaries, the Movants,

2 MS. AHERN: Since I am not represented by coumsel, I will not be speaking.
THE COURT: Okay. That's understood,

! MS. AHERN: I would like a continuance,
‘THE COURT: That's denjed.

Fogey
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by Ms. Ahern, are deemed accurate.

B.2  Specifically, between June of 2013 and the end of 2015 that the Movants, through
distributions required to be given to the MTC Trust, were entitled to the sum of $3,956,550.

B.3  PRurther, for the period of June of 2013 through March 31, 2015, the Movants were
entitled to the sum of $2,581,994.92.

B.4  Additionally, Mr. Waid made equitable adjustments of income, pursuant to guidance
from the Court, after he became trustee in early April of 2015, thus reducing the amount owed to
the Movants. Asaresult, theamount owed to Movants, through the MTC Trust, for thetime period
of June of 2013 through March 31, 2015, is $1,742,053.

Bs  Ms. Ahern offered no evidence to refute Mr. Waid’s Accounting and Report nor his
testimony regarding his thorough investigation and subsequent reporting of the findingsregarding
the same. A

C. FINDINGS REGARDING EXEMPLARY DAMAGES

The Court makes the following findings and rulings in relation to exemplary damages:

C1  The Movants have asked for this Court to award exemplary damages against Ms.
Ahern based on her inappropriate conduet in this matter. -

C.2  Based on all evidence received and reviewed at the various evidentiary hearings,
including testimony of Mr. Waid, the Court finds that the impositioﬁ of punitive damages against
Ms. Ahern based on her conduct are warranted.

C3  Specificelly, Ms. Ahern intentionally and fraudulently breached her fiduciaryduties
to the MTC Trust, and the Movants, as bencficiaries of the MTC Trust, and comsmitted tortions acts
in converting and embezzling Trust funds. Accordingly, the Court finds that Ms. Ahern acted with
oppression, fraud, and malice,

*C.4  Punitive damages are reserved for bad actors who deserve to be punished. See

Coughlin v. Hiimn Hotels Corp., 879 F.Supp. 1047 (D. Nev. 1995) ("punitive ddmages are not

Puge B
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designed to compensate the victim of a tortious act but rather to punish and deter oppressive,
Sfraudulent or malicious conduct™). Ms. Ahern’s actions deserve to be punished and riseto the level
of her having acted with oppression, fraud, and malice.

C.5  ThisCourt has the authority to award pugitive damages "in an action for thebreach
of an obligation not arising from contract, where it is proven by clear and convincing evidence
that the defendant has been guilty of oppression, fraud, or malice.” See NRS 42.005(1).

C.6  Onceshown, a petitioner, "in addition to the compensatory damages, may recover
damages for the sake of example and by way of punishing the defendant ..... an amount egual to
three times the amount of compensatory damages awarded to [ Petitioner] if the amount of
compensatory damages is $100,000 or more." Id.

C.7  Theevidence presented at the various evidentiary hearings conclusively established
that Ms. Ahern willfully and intentionally deceived this Court, and the Movants, by claiming, in 2
sworn declaration signed under oath, all funds that she was ordered (by the Court) to keep in trust
during the peixdency of the dispute were “intact and are presently being held in truﬁ," 7

C.8  ThisCourt previously held inits “Order Regarding Motion for Damages,” that “the
account {Ms, Ahern] filed, under penalty of perjury on March 13, 2015, titled "Brief Regarding
Accounting Fiduciary Duties, and Trust Administration” was incomplete and intentionally
inaccurate,”

C.9  In that same order, this Court determined that “Ms. Ahern, as Trustee, did not
comply with the Court order to protect the 65% share of the Trust that was to be segregated under
the terms of the Trust for the Movants, Ms. Montoya and Ms. Bouvier,”

C.1o  Based on the evidence presented to this Court (i.e. the testimony of Mr. Waid at the
hearings occurring on February 22, 2016 and February 9, 2017, together with the exhibitsadmitted
at the same hearings, which include reports made by Mr. Waid), the Court finds that there is clear

and convincing evidence that Ms. Ahern committed fraud, oppression, and malice.
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malice:

C.a1  Thefollowing factualﬁﬁdings support the Court’s findings of fraud, oppression, and

1. Ms. Ahern filed, under penslty of perjury, an intentionally inaccurate
accounting with the Court;

2. Ms. Ahern failed to keep funds which were in dispute—-i.e. the income
attributable to the MTC Trust's 65% share (the “Segregated Funds:)--—
segregated despite Court order to do so {the “Segregation Order”);

3. Ms. Ahern represented to the Court, under penalty of perjury, that she was
complying with the Court’s Scgregation Order while she continvously (and
secretly) removed large portions of the Segregated Funds from the Trust
accounts;

4- Ms. Ahern claimed, under penalty of perjury, that $500,000 of the
Segregated Funds were on deposit with Fidelity Capital Inec. The evidence
and testimony in this matter demonstrate that this reppesentaﬁoﬁ w;xs and
is false. There was never $500,000 on deposit with Fidelity Capital Inc.;

5. Ms. Ahern claimed, under penalty of perjury, that she rented office space for
the Trust from Joseph's Properties at a cost of $1,750 per month pursuant
to an alleged lcase. The evidence anfl testimony in this matter demonstrate

that this representation was and is false, and that Ms. Ahern never rented

office space from Joseph’s Properties;

6. While the Segregation Order was in place, Ms. Ahern paid $300,000 of
Segregated Funds to Real Estate Services, a entity operated by Suzanne
Nounna. Suzanne Nounna has no beneficial interestinthe Trustor the MTC
Trust;

7. Ms. Ahern withdrew a substantial amount of Segregated Funds from Trust

Poge 1o
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accounts slightly before, on the day of, and shortly after her removal as
trustee. Ms, Ahern made such withdrawals by use of cashier’s checks. Mr.
Waid testified that Ms. Ahern’s use of cashier’s checks was “severely
reckless” and “troubling” because of such negotiable instrument's status as
unprotected, uninsured, bearer paper;

8. Despite the Segregation Order, Ms. Ahern used Segregated Funds to pay
hundreds of thousands of dollars in personal expenses;

9. On, or around, February 18, 2015, Ms. Ahern removed $1,287,580.85 of
Segregated Funds held in a Wells Fargo Trust account by use of 2 cashier’s
check (the “February 2015 Cashier’s Check”).

10.  After her removal as trustee of the Trust, Ms, Ahern attempted an “all cash”
withdrawal of $100,000 from the Segregated Funds; and the Movant's
share. _ )

C.12  The Court and Mr. Wnid provided Ms. Ahern ample oppottunity to explain her
actions described above and provide appropriate documentation to demonstrate any legitimate
purpose for such actions, Ms. Ahern remained silent on these issues and failed to provide any
financial documentation relevant to the above issnes. More specifically, Ms. Ahern refused to
cooperate with Mr. Waid's investigation into Trust'assets that went missing during her tenure as
trustee, and has willfully and intentionally obstructed and impeded the same.

Ca3  The Court has no choice but to impose an adverse inference against Ms. Ahern
pursuant to the standard set for by the Nevada Supreme Court in Bass-Davis v. Dauis, 122 Nev.
442, 134 P.3d 103 (2006). Accordingly, the Court finds that any information and documentation
which Ms. Ahern could have provided in relation to Mr. Waid's inquiry would have been adverse
to her legal position. See id. at 451-52, 109.

C14 Intheabsenceofanyevidence tothecontrary, the Court finds that pursuant to NRS

Page rx

AAPP 12




THE RUSHFORTH FiRM, LTD. .
PO Box 371655
Las Vegas, Nevada 85137-1855

Telephone: 702-265-4552 [ Fax: 7022584877

L N O AW

10
11
12

13

15
16
17
18
19

20

22

47.250(1) Ms. Ahern's unlawful acts of violating the Segregation Order by removing Segregated
Funds “was done with an unlawful intent.” Similarly, the Court must also find that pursuant to
NRS 47.250(2) Ms. Ahern intended the “ordinary consequences” of her “voluntary acts” of
repeatedly removing and withdrawing monies from the Segregated Funds-—i . that she intended
to disregard and violate the Segregation Order.

C.15 Based on the above, the Court hereby finds that Ms. Ahern’s actions in relation to
the Movants and the Segregated Funds were undertaken with an conscious disregard of the rights
of the Movants and were clearly frandulent.

C.16  Oftheabove described actions, the Court finds Ms. Aﬁem's actionsinrelation to the
February 2015 Cashier's Check to be especially troubling and egregious. Although the funds
associated with the February 2015 Cashier’s Check were eventually recovered through diligent
efforts of Mr. Waid, Ms. Ahern’s use of this check was nonetheless reprehensible. Mr. Waid
testified that such behavior was disturbing. The Court believes that such willful behavior and
disregard of the Segregation Order needs to be discouraged, and clearly appears to have been
intended to defraud the Trust and the Movants.

C.17 Having considered the totality of Ms. Ahern’s wrongful acts, the adverse inference
imposed against Ms. Ahern in accordance with Bass-Davis u. Dauis, and th;a unrebutted
presumptions set forth at NRS 47.250(1) and (2), the Court believes that the imposition of punitive
damages in this matter is appropriate pursuant to NRS 42.005. »

C.a8 Asthe Court finds Ms. Ahern’s actions in relations to the February 2015 Cashier’s
Check to be the most egregious and reprehensible of Ms. Ahern’s conduct, the Court shall treble the
amount of funds removed through the February 2015 Cashier’s Check ($1,287,580.85) and award
such as a punitive damage in favor of the Movants and against Ms, Ahern. Accordingly, ﬂ;;gnurt
intends to award punitive dainages against Ms. Ahern in the amount of $5.;862ﬂq:{75§ (3 X

sf?%ﬁaﬁsiss}%/\\ £ 3 60000
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C.19  The Court finds that the punitive damage award described above should he paid
from and/or offset against Ms, Ahern’s share of the Trust.

C.20 Given the anticipated compensatory damage award of $2,581,994.92, which would
allow a possible punitive damages award in the amount of $7,745,984.76, the anticipated punitive
damage award described above is well within the statutory bounds set forth in NRS 42.005(1){a).

C.21  Inaccordancewith, and insupplement to, the Order Regarding Motion for Damages,
the Court finds that Ms. Ahern’s share of the Trust shall remain in complete and entire suspension
until ali damages awarded herein (both compensatory and punitive damage awards), which shall
include all relevant interest, fees, and costs, have been fully satisifed. Accordingly, the Movants
shall receive all Trust income, with Mr. Waid calculating the relevant portion of Trust income which
would otherwise be attributable to Ms. Ahern’s 35% share, until such time as Ms, Ahern’s debts and
Habilities outlined herein are fully satisfied. The determination of whether Ms. Ahern’s liabilities
to the Movants has been fully satisfied by her 35% share of the Trust shall »= made by Mr. Waid in

e*)(‘:{{aﬁi— TE . By e a'd G—ﬁF[_ ma
his capacity as successor trustee of the Trusy pelsiioa #he Covrtford 2\ drsis

e tes s s Bheras hex/ ;NM-%M

D. FINDINGS REGARDING AWARD OF ATTORNEY’S FEES AND COSTS L0 /G
The Court makes the following findings and rulings in relation to the Movants’
request for an award of attorney’s fees and costs:
D.a  Anaward of attorney’s fees and costs is appropriate pursuant to NRS 153.031{3)(b)
because:
1 The Movants® suceessfully moved the Court for relief “compelling redress of
a breach of the trust” pursuant to NRS 153.031(1)}(m); and
2, An award of fees and costs in this matter is necessary to “avoid an injustice”
pursuantto NRS 153.031(3) because the Movants’ relevant fees and costs are
a direct and proximate result of Ms. Ahern's misconduct.

D.2  The Court shall entertain a motion for fees from the Mpvantswhich shall detail the

P
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reasonableness of the requested fees in accordance with the Brunzel! factors; and

D.3  Asthe Court does not believe that the Movants' are entitled to an award of their fees
and costs agsociated with the recently completed appeal in this matter, the motion for fees shall not
include a request for such fees and costs.

E. JUDGMENT AGAINST ELEANOR CONNELL HARTMAN AHERN

E1  Based onthe above ﬁndin.gs and rulings, the Court hereby ENTERS JUDGMENT
FOR COMPENSATORY DAMAGES in favor of the MTC TRUST (of which JACQUELINE M.
MONTOYA and KATHRYN A. BOUVIER ate beneficiaries) and against ELEANOR CONNELL
HARTMAN AHERN as follows: '

1 Compensatory damages in the amount of $2,581,994.92;

2. A partial satisfaction of the above award shall he provided to ELEANOR
CONNELL HARTMAN AHERN in the amount of $809,841.92 based on
payments made by Mr. Waid in his role as successor trustee of the Trust to
thl;. MTC TRﬁST; accor&ingly, thé current outstanding balance of the
compensatory damages awarded above is $1,742,053;

3. In accordance with NRS 17.130(2) and NRS 99.040(1), pre-judgment and
post-judégzr:x_ef vl\nf?s»:lfg 1?};5 z:;ga;rj&st this compensatory damage
awardlintil fully satisfied;

4. In light of Mr. Waid's unique knowledge of the partial satisfactiondescribed
above, as well as his role as successor trustee, Mr. Waid shall determine and
calculate the amount of relevant judgment interest associated with this
compensatory damage award;

5. Ms. Ahern’s share of the Trust shall remain in complete and entire

suspension untilall compensatory damages awarded herein have been fully
satisﬁed;eka_pr‘!:or cfulrﬁ\auf'imf/fﬁ:,&d) Yo
Cocr *’“F"" p e drbisD \b?/ms s A—L7

eoce stifére.
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The MTC Trust shall receive all net Trust income, with Mr. Waid calculating
the relevant portion of the Trust incorne which would otherwise be
attributable to ELEANOR CONNELL HARTMAN AHERN's 35% share, until
such time a this is fully satisfied; and

The determination of whether ELEANOR CONNELL HARTMAN AHERN’s
liability related to this compensatory damage award has been fully satisfied

shall be made by Mr. Waid in bis capacity as successor trustee of the Trust.

E.2  Based on the above findings and rulings, the Court hereby ENTERS JUDGMENT

FOR PUNITIVE DAMAGES in favor of the MTC TRUST (of which JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA

and KATHRYN A. BOUVIER are beneficiaries) and against ELEANOR CONNELL HARTMAN

AHERN as follows:
L

2.

02 oD
Exemplary damages in the amount of $3,%6:\,449:55;

In accordance with NRS 17.130(2) and NRS 99.040(1), pre-judgment and

post-judgment interest shall accrue against this exemplary damage award
al P S +tetet? ’D'—r\ oter

4 until fully satisfied;

In light of Mr. Waid's unitiue role as successor trustee, Mr. Waid shall
determine and calculate the amount of relevant judgment interestassociated
with this exemplary damage award;

Ms. Abern’s share of the Trust shall remain in complete and entire

suspension until all compensatory damages awarded herein have been fully

satisfied; s« ve ¥ w“/(fp(/[/éud&l X ks C(/‘)
g!,:i ort o b e B heo s G445
e MTC Trust shall receive all Trust income, with Mr. Waid caleulating the

relevant portion of Trust income which would otherwise be attributable to
ELEANOR CONNELL HARTMAN AHERN's 35% share, until such time as
this is fully satisfied; and
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VIO

The determination of whether ELEANOR CONNELLHARTMAN AHERN's
liability related to this exemplary damage award hasbeen fully satisfied shall

be made by Mr. Waid in his capacity as successar trustee of the Trust.

%loanﬁﬂfégiﬁYE%’
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||APPEAL TO THE NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDERREGARDING MOTION FOR

Electronically Filed
08/21/2017

Eleanor Ahemn IN FQR A PAUPERIS CLERK OF THE COURT

355 West Mesquite Blvd D30 #276
Mesquite, Nevada

Phone 702 345 3035

Fax 702 345 7909

Aug 28 2017 0§
DISTRICT COURT Elizabeth A. Brg
: Clerk of Supren
CLARK COUNTY
IN THE MATTER OF THE W. N. CONNELL | Case No.: P-09 -066425 - T
AND MARJORIE T. CONNELL LIVING
TRUST dated May 18, 1972
APPEAL TO THE NOTICE OF
Defendant ENTRY OF ORDER REGARDING
Eleanor Ahern MOTION FOR ASSESSMENT OF
355 West Mesquite Blvd D30 #176 DAMAGES AGAINST ELEANOR
Mesquite, Nevada 89027 AHERN
Office of Appeal

ASSESSMENT OF DAMAGES AGAINST ELEANOR AHERN.

That defendant Eleanor Connell Hartman Ahern hereby appeals to the Supreme Court of Nevada
from the order and judgement on defendant Eleanor Connell Hartman Ahem filed on August 8™
2017. Said Judgement setting forth with finality the provision of the judgement placed against

said defendant as well as any and all other orders made final and/or otherwise applicable by the
foregoing.

HLeans Fhien

Eleanor Ahern In Forma Pauperis

YPE BODY OF PLEADING HERE.] -

CLERK OF THE COURT —

Docket 73837 Document 2017-2869

Electronically Filed

59 a.m.
W
e Court
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Todd 1. Moody (5430)

Russel J. Geist (9030)

The Hutchison &I Steffen Law Firm
10080 west Alta Drive, Suite 200
Las Vegas Nevada

702 385 2300 Phone

702 385 2086 Fax 7

Attorneys for Fred Waid

—

Eleanor Ahern Proper Person

355 West Mesquite Blvd. D30 #176
Mesquite, Nevada 89017

Phone 702 345 3035

Fax 702346 7909

[TYPE BODY OF PLEADING HERE ] - 3

[ certify that on August 16, 2817, 1 mailed a true and correct copy of the foregoing APPEAL
Re: NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER REGARDING MOTION FOR ASSESSMENT OF
DAMAGES AGAINST ELEANOR AHERN to those listed below:

Joseph J. Powell, Esq

The Rushforth Firm

1701 Village Center Circle Ste 150
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
Attorneys for Kathryn A. Bouvier
and Jacqueline M Montoya

702 255 3552 Phon

702 255 4677 Fax

AAPP 19
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ASTA

In the Matter of the Trust of:

THE W.N. CONNELL and MARJORIE T. _
CONNELL LIVING TRUST, dated May 18, 1972, | DeptNo: FAMILY DOMESTIC

Electronically Filed
8/2312017 1:17 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERé OF THE COURE

IN THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE
STATE OF NEVADA IN AND FOR

THE COUNTY OF CLARK

Case No: P-09-066425-T

P-09-066425-T -1-

CASE APPEAL STATEMENT
1. Appellant(s): Eleanor Ahern
2. Judge: Gloria J. Sturman
3. Appellant(s): Eleanor Ahern
Counsel:
Eleanor Ahern
355 W. Mesquite Blvd., D30 #276
Mesquite, NV 89027
4. Respondent (s): Jacqueline M. Montoya; Kathryn A. Bouvier
Counsel:
Joseph I. Powell
P.O. Box 371655
Las Vegas, NV 89137-1655

5. Appellant(s)'s Attorney Licensed in Nevada: N/A
Permission Granted: N/A

Case Number: P-09-066425-T A
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10.

11.

12.

13.

Respondent(s)’s Attorney Licensed in Nevada: Yes
Permission Granted: N/A

Appellant Represented by Appointed Counsel In District Court: No

Appellant Represented by Appointed Counsel On Appeal: N/A

Appellant Granted Leave to Proceed in Forma Pauperis**: Yes, May 25, 2017
**Expires 1 year from date filed

Appellant Filed Application to Proceed in Forma Pauperis: N/A
Date Application(s) filed: N/A

Date Commenced in District Court: August 17, 2009
Brief Description of the Nature of the Action: Probate
Type of Judgment or Order Being Appealed: Judgment
Previous Appeal: Yes |

Supreme Court Docket Number(s): 66231, 67782, 68046, 69737, 71577, 72766, 72897

Child Custody or Visitation: N/A
Possibility of Settlement: Unknown
Dated This 23 day of August 2017.

Steven D. Grierson, Clerk of the Court

/s/ Heather Ungermann

Heather Ungermann, Deputy Clerk
200 Lewis Ave

PO Box 551601

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-1601
(702) 671-0512

cc: Eleanor Ahern

P-09-066425-T -2-
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Electronically Filed
04/16/2015 02:21:09 PM

JUDG (m . z&ﬁww._
JOSEPH J. POWELL, ESQ. $

chadaBal NO‘ 008875 \ . CLERK OF THE COURT
THE RUSHFORTH FIRM, LTD.

9505 Hillwood Drive, Suite 100

las Vegas, Nevada 80134

Tel: (702) 255-4552

Fax: (70 }!,? 255-467T7

joey(@rushiorth.net -

Attorneys for Jacqueline M. Montoya

WHITNEY B. WARNICK, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 001573 N B )
ALBRIGHT, STODDARD, WARNICK & ALBRIGHT
801 South Rancho Drive, Suite D-4

Las Vegas, Nevada 891 36

Tel: g 2)384-7111

Fax: (702) 384-0605

ma(@albrightstoddard.com

Attorneys for Kathryn A. Bouvier

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In the Matter of ‘ CASE NO. P-09-066425
THE W. N. CONNELL AND MARJORIE |{ DEPT NO. XXV1(26)
T. CONNELL LIVING TRUST, Dated o
May 18, 1972, Date of Hearing: January 30, 2015
Time of Hearing: 10:00a.m.

An Inter Vivos lrrevocable Trust.

SUMMARY JUDGMENT

The current proceedings were commenced with the filing on September 27,
2013, 0faPETITION FOR DECLARATORY JUDGMENT REGARDING LIMITED
INTEREST OF TRUST ASSETS PURSUANT TO NRS 30.040, NRS 153.031(1)(E),
AND NRS 164.033(1)(A). This Petition was filed by Jacqueline M. Montoya
(“Jacqueline”) as Trustee of the MTC Living Trust, and on her behalf and that of
Kathryn A. Bouvier (“Kathryn”), her sister, as beneficiaries under the MTC Living
Trust. During these proceedings several other Petitions, Motions, and Pleadings have
been filed by the parties, including those summarized in the chart attached hereto as

Exhibit “A”.

GaMakQ0-MATTERS M ontoya, Jicqueline (10658.001 01 Summary Judgment.wpd
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On December 23, 2014, Jacqueline and Kathryn filed an OPPOSITION TO
ELEANOR C. AHERN’S MOTION TO DISMISSPETITIONFOR DECLARATORY
JUDGMENT FOR FAILURE TO STATE A CLAIM UPON WHICH RELIEF CAN
BE GRANTED; AND, COUNTERMOTION OF KATHRYN A. BOUVIER AND
JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT ON PETITION FOR
DECLARATORY JUDGMENT, FOR DAMAGES AND ASSESSMENT OF
PENALTIES, Thereafter, on January 2, 2015, Eleanor Connell Hartman Ahern
(“Eleanor™) filed an OMNIBUS OPPOSITION TO (1) PETITION FOR
DETERMINATION OF CONSTRUCTION AND INTERPRETATION OF
LANGUAGE RELATING TO TRUST NO. 2, AND (2) PETITION FOR
CONSTRUCTION EFFECT OF PROBATE COURT ORDER; AND
COUNTERMOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT. The parties agreed at the
hearing on January 30, 2015, that their above-denominated Countermotions for
Summary Judgment, and the claims and defenses asserted therein, subsumed all of the
prior Petitions, Motions and Pleadings, and their defenses and claims asserted therein,
as well as those briefed and discussed in the further replies, oppositions and
supplements to their Countermotions, aslisted on the-chart-attached-hereto-as-Exhibit
‘A (other than Jacqueline’s and Kathryn’s Motion for Leave to Amend Pleadings filed
herein on January 12, 2015). Therefore, it was agreed, and the Court recognized, that
the parties’ claims and defenses in these proceedings could be resolved summarily by
the Court in its adjudication of the parties” said Countermotions for Summary
Judgment.

After reviewing the Countermotions for Summary Judgment, and the
presentation of argument for and rebuttal against the Countermotions by the parties, the
Court finds as follows:

1. Aproceeding involving the subject Trust was initially commenced in 2009
by Eleanor, as Trustee of the W.N. Connell and Marjorie T. Connell Living Trust,

dated May 18, 1972 (herein referred to as the “Trust”), with an unopposed Petition to

Doy gy *
GAMarkXH-MATTER SMontoya, Jaequeline (TO658.00 10 Sunmary Judg]n@gga(lz Of 1 7
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obtain a Court order clarifying to whom subtrust benefits would be paid upon her
death. The Court assumed jurisdiction over the Trust, recognizing that Fleanor, as
Trustee, was a Nevada resident, and the Trust provisions provided that it would be
administered pursuant to Nevada law. The unopposed Petition was consented to by
and the Court approved the Petition by Order filed herein on September 4, 2009.
Pursuant to the Order, the Trust was reformed to provide that Jacqueline and Kathryn
were designated as the beneficiaries under subtrust No. 2 upon the death of Eleanor,
which had not theretofore been clearly delineated in the Trust provisions. In addition,
Jacqueline was designated as the successor Trustee under the Trust upon the death or
removal of Eleanor as the Trustee.

2. When the Trust was created in 1972, commmunity property of W.N. Connell
(“William”) and Marjorie T. Connell (“Marjorie”), along with two parcels of William’s
separate real property, were transferred to the Trust. One parcel of William’s separate
property was located in Clark County, Nevada. The other parcel consisted of a parcel
of real property and oil, gas and mineral rights relating thereto, located in Upton
County, Texas (hereinafter “Texas oil property”). In 1975, William and Marjorie, as
Trustees, deeded the Clark County, Nevada, separate property from their Trust to
Eleanor, personally, it having agglcugrat the time, based upon the transfer tax paid, of
approximately $55,000.00.

3.  The dispute in these Trust proceedings relates to the ownership of and
entitlement to income from the Texas oil property. At the time of William’s death on
November 24,1979, the Texas oil property was the only remaining separate property
of William which had been titled in the Trust. The Trust provisions created two
subtrusts upon the death of William in 1979 (referred to in the Trust as Trust No. 2 and
Trust No. 3, and hereinafter referred to as “subtrust 2" and “subtrust 3"). Income
allocated to subtrust 2 was payable to Eleanor during her lifetime. Marjorie was the

beneficiary of the income and assets under subtrust 3, including the right during her

GAMarki00-M ATTERS Montoya, Jaequetine (1065800100 Sumimary .ma,;l?&\ﬁ@@ 01‘ 17

AAPP 24




ASWA

ALBRIGHT - STODDARD - WARNICK * ALBRICHY

SIINAL CORPGRATION

A FPROFTS

9
10
11

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

lifetime, at her election, to receive the assets outright free of trust. She was also given
the option of appointing the benefits under subtrust 3 in her Will to whomever she
desired. If she failed to remove the assets from subtrust 3 during her lifetime, or to
appoint them under her will, the benefits and assets under subtrust 3 would have

devolved by default to Eleanor.

4, Underthe Trust provisions, Article SECOND, Section C.3, subtrust 3 was
to be funded with Marjorie’s separate property, her share of the community property,
and a portion of William’s separate property. The portion of William’s separate

property to be allocated to subtrust 3 is determined by the provisions in Article THIRD

of the Trust, These provisions state:

“THIRD: MARITAL DEDUCTION. The Trustee shall allocate to Trust No. 3
from the Decedent’s separate property the fractional share of the said assets which is
equal to the maximum marital deduction allowed for federal estate tax purposes. . . In
making the computations and allocations of the said property to Trust No. 3 as herein
required, the determination of the character and ownership of the said property and the
value thereof shall be as finally established for federal estate tax purposes.”

5.  Federal and Texas Estate Tax Returns were filed for William’s estate
following his death. At the time of these proceedings, a copy of the Federal Estate Tax
Return could not be located, even the IRS no longer maintaining a copy thereof.
However, a copy of William’s Texas Estate Tax Return, and a copy of the Closing
Letter for his Federal Estate Tax Return were available, The Texas Estate Tax Return
basically duplicated the information provided on the Federal Estate Tax Return, thereby
providing how William’s estate was allocated and distributed on the Federal Estate Tax
Return. Daniel T. Gerety, CPA, an expert witness for Jacqueline and Kathryn, also
verified in his Report that the Texas Estate Tax Return used the property allocations
made on the Federal Estate Tax Return, and that the two Returns were consistent.

6. Under these two Estate Tax Returns, a 64.493% interest in the Texas o1l
property was allocated to Marjorie, the beneficiary under subtrust 3, and the remaining
35.507% interest in the Texas oil property was allocated to Eleanor, the beneficiary

under subtrust 2. Further, as provided under Article THIRD, quoted above, this

o £
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allocation of interests in the Texas oil property determined the allocation of interests
in that property between subtrust 2 and subtrust 3 under the Trust. For purposes of
convenience, the interests in the Texas oil property are rounded to 65% and 35%. The
title to the Texas oil property has remained in the main Trust to the present day.

7. Upon Wiliiam’s death, Marjorie became the sole aciing Trusiee for the
main Trust, and the subtrusts thereunder. Pursuant to Article SECOND, Section C.6
of the Trust, and shortly after William’s death in 1980, Eleanor was appointed by
Marjorie to be the co-trustee with her over William’s separate property remaining in
the Trust; that is, over the Texas oil property which had been allocated between
subtrust 2 and subtrust 3. A copy of Eleanor’s appointment as co-trustee, along with
a copy of the Trust, was recorded with the Upton County Texas Recorder’s Office.

8. Thereafter, Marjorie sent letters to the oil companies with whom the Trust
had leases, advising them of William’s death and that she and Eleanor were co-trustees
over the Texas oil property owned by the Trust. She directed that all further documents
which needed to be signed with the oil companies thereafter recognize the need for her
and Eleanor’s si gnature.

9.  From the time of William’s death and the allocation of interests in the
Texas oil property between subtrust 2 and subtrust 3, until Marjorie’s death on May 1,
2009, Eleanor was paid 35% of the Texas oil property income and Marjorie was paid
the remaining 65% of the income. Each was allocated a K-1 showingher receipt of her
share of the income, and each included the income in her annual Federal Income Tax
Returns.

10. Prior to her death, on January 7, 2008, Marjorie executed her last Will
and Testament, wherein she exercised her Power of Appointment over the assets and
benefits under subtrust 3, appointing them to Jacqueline and Kathyrn as beneficiaries
under her MTC Living Trust. Following Marjorie’s death, Eleanor, Jacqueline and
Kathryn met with David Strauss, Esq, Marjorie’s estate planning attorney. Mr. Strauss

had previously provided Eleanor with a copy of Marjorie’s Will containing the exercise

o [ oy (3 -?
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of her Power of Appointment over subtrust 3. In their meeting, he discussed with them
Marjorie’s exercise of the Power of Appointment transferring to Jacqueline and
Kathryn the rights and interests of Marjorie under subtrust 3 of the Trust, thereby
entithing Jacqueline and Kathryn to receive the approximate 65% share of income being
generated by the Texas oil property going forward.

11.  No one expressed any objection to what Mr, Strauss had advised them.
Thereafter, in the filing of Marjorie’s Federal Estate Tax Return, the value of the 65%
interest in the Texas oil property allocated to Marjorie under the Trust was included
within her Federal taxable estate and Estate Tax Return, increasing the value of her
estate to a taxable estate, requiring the payment of over $140,000.00 in Federal Estate
taxes. Most of Marjorie’s estate at the time of her death, through her MTC Living
Trust, went to Jacqueline and Kathryn in equal shares. However, in addition to several
smaller bequests to friends, Marjorie also bequeathed to Eleanor, through the MTC
Living Trust, the sum of $300,000.00.

12.  From the time of Marjorie’s death until approximately June, 2013, the
income from the Texas oil property was allocated with Eleanor continuing to receive
a 35% share, and Jacqueline and Kathryn receiving the remaining 65% share. InJune,
2013, Eleanor as the sole acting Trustee of the Trust, stopped further income
distributions to Jacqueline and Kathryn, asserting at that time that she was entitled to
100% of the income from the Texas oil property. This led to the filing by Jacqueline
on September 27, 2013, of the PETITION FOR DECLARATORY JUDGMENT
REGARDING LIMITED INTEREST OF TRUST ASSETS PURSUANT TO NRS
30.040, NRS 153.031(1)(E), AND NRS 164.033(1)(A).

13, Prior to asserting her right to 100% of the mmcome from the Texas oil
property in June, 2013, and the cutting off of any further income distributions from the
Trust to Jacqueline and Kathryn, Eleanor had never asserted a claim or right to more
than 35% of the Texas oil property income as the lifetime beneficiary to income under

subtrust 2. However, in her pleadings and documents filed in these proceedings, she
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claims she was aware of an alleged mistake made in the allocation of the Texas oil
property between subtrust 2 and subtrust 3 shortly after the death of William in 1979,

However, rather than assert a claim to all of the income, or otherwise make a claim or
start a legal action, Eleanor testified that she decided to do nothing., At one point in
these proceedings she iestified in her pleadings and documents filed that her inaction
was motivated by a fear that it would upset Marjorie if she made a claim to more than
a35% interest. She also testified in these proceedings that her inaction was due to the
fact she was happy to allow Marjorie to have 65% of the Texas oil property income,
feeling she was being generous and helping to support her mother. She asserted the
same motivation of generosity as the basis for her allowing Jacqueline and Kathryn to
continue receiving a 65% share of the Texas oil property income following the death
of Marjorie in 2009, and until her stoppage of income distributions to them in June,
2013.

14.  However, in 1983, as testified to by Robert Hartman in his affidavit, in the
course of Eleanor’s divorce proceeding from him, her right to only 35% of the Texas -
oil property income was asserted and relied upon by the Court in its division of
property and determination of his support rights and obligations to Eleanor and their
two children. Then, a few years later, as shown on an estate planning intake sheet,
when Eleanor met with her own estate planning attorney, she advised him that she was
only entitled to 35% of'the Texas oil property income, and that Marjorie was the owner
of the remaining 65% interest.

15. Although Eleanor claims she was being generous in giving to Marjorie
65% of the Texas oil property income during the balance of Marjorie’s life following
the death of William in 1979, Marjorie’s communications and conduct supported her
belief that she owned the rights to 65% of the Texas oil property income as the
beneficiary under subtrust 3. This is confirmed in several memoranda/letters prepared
by Marjorie, and in the inclusion of the 65% interest in her taxable estate at the time

of her death.

o] 2 o
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16.  To summarize, no evidence was produced by Eleanor of any claim or
assertion being made by her to anyone else to a right to more than 35% of the Texas oil
property income from the time of William’s death until June, 2013, when she first
asserted her claim to 100% of the income by cutting off income distributions to
Jacquedine and Kathryn. Further, Marjorie never communicated or acknowledged 1o
anyone else that she was not entitled to 65% of the Texas oil property income, always
acting consistently with owning a right to the income under the Trust allocation of the
Texas oil property made following William’s death in 1979.

17.  Aspurported evidence supporting her claim to 100% of the Trust income
from the Texas oil property, Eleanor presented copies of Division Orders and Leases
between the oil companies and the Trust relating to the Texas oil property. From the
time that Eleanor was made co-trustee with Marjorie over William’s separate property
owned by the Trust until approximately 1989, it appears that in signing the Division
Orders and Leases with the oil companies, Marjorie and Eleanor provided their
personal Social Security Numbers as a tax identification number when such a number
was requested by the oil companies. However, apparently after it was brought to their
attention by an oil company that the Trust was the owner of the Texas oil property and
not themselves personally, and the oil company requested and recommended that a tax
identification number for a Trust be provided, in approximately 1989, Marjorie and
Eleanor started providing a tax identification number to the oil companies which had
been assigned by the IRS to subtrust 2. They never provided the tax identification
number which had been assigned by the IRS to subtrust 3. However, the Court was not
provided with any dates on when subtrust 2 and subtrust 3 were first assigned tax
identification numbers.

18.  Nevertheless, and notwithstanding a tax identification number for subtrust
2 was the only tax identification number apparently given to the oil companies from
and after 1989, in the actual allocation of income received from the Texas oil property,

and in the issuance of K-1's and the filing of their Federal Income Tax Returns,
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Eleanor’s share of the income was always a 35% share and Marjorie, while she was
alive, always received the remaining 65% share. Following Marjorie’s death, the 65%
share went to Jacqueline and Kathryn until the cessation of distributions by Eleanor in
June, 2G13.

19.  Eleanor also asseried that the Trust was a special Trust created to retain
the Texas oil property for the benefit of only William and his blood descendants,
However, since at the time of William’s death, the only separate property of his that
remained in the Trust was the Texas oil property, pursuant to the Trust provisions, a
portion of that property had to be allocated to subtrust 3 in order to obtain the
maximum Marital Deduction for Federal Estate Tax savings. In following the Trust
provisions, the Texas oil property could not all be allocated to subtrust 2. Further,
whatever William’s intent may have been when he and Marjorie first created the Trust
in 1972, by their deeding the Clark County, Nevada, separate property to Eleanor in
1975, William knew that the only remaining separate property of his in the Trust at the
time of his death would be the Texas o1l property.

20. Lastly, in support of her position, Eleanor asserted that Jacqueline and
Kathryn acknowledged that she owned rights to all of the income from the Texas oil
property by their consents to and verifications of the 2009 Petition Eleanor filed to
clarity ownership of subtrust 2 upon her death. Eleanor asserted that in this Petition
there are statements averring that she owned the rights to all of the Texas oil property
income. However, the Petition’s language can also be read as asserting that Eleanor’s
right to income from the Texas oil property only refers to her 35% interest. More
significantly, the 2009 Petition was not filed to clarify rights to the Texas oil property
income. Rather, it was a consentient Petition with the purpose only of clarifying
entitlement to the benefits of subtrust 2 upon Eleanor’s death, and to designate a
successor Trustee for the Trust upon her death.

21. Basedupon the foregoing undisputed facts presented to the Court with the

Affidavits and documentary evidence submitted by the parties with their
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Countermotions and briefs, and from the argument of counsel at the hearing, the Court
finds that Eleanor’s interest in the Texas oil property income, as the beneficiary under
subfrust 2 of the Trust, is limited to a 35% share, and her claim to all of the income is
not supported in any way by the facts in this case, The remaining 65% share belongs
fo subtrust 3 and Jacqueline and Kathryn, equally, as the beneficiaries under the MTC
Living Trust, as bequeathed and appointed to them by Marjorie in her Will. While title
to the Texas oil property remains titied in the main Trust, in the event a division of the
title now needs to be made between the two subtrusts, such division should be made
as recognized in the Trust administration, with the filing of William’s Estate Tax
Returns, and the allocation between the subtrusts resulting therefrom, with a 35%
interest being deeded to subtrust 2, and a 65% interest being deeded to subtrust 3 (and
thereafter said 65% interest being deeded o the MTC Living Trust, with Jaqueline and
Kathryn as equal beneficiaries, should that be theirrequest). Accordingly, Jacqueline’s
and Kathryn’s Countermotion for Summary Judgment regarding ownership of the
Texas oil property should be granted; and, Eleanor’s Countermotion for Summary
Judgment should be denied.

22.  Whilethe Court finds that Jacqueline’s and Kathryn’s claim to 65% of the
Texas oil property and income is supported by the facts and merits of the case, and that
Eleanor’s claim to more than 35% is not supported by the facts and merits of the case,
regardiess of the merits of Eleanor’s position, her claim to more than 35% of the
income from the Texas oil property cannot be supported or allowed for equitable
reasons because she has been guilty of laches in asserting her claim. Her assertion of
a claim to 100% of the income in June, 2013, makes no sense after failing in anyway
to assert a claim to more that 35% of the income prior to that time. During
approximately 34 years, from the death of William and her admitted awareness of the
allocation of the Texas oil property under the Trust provisions, until her first assertion
of a claim to more than 35% of the income in June, 2013, Eleanor never filed a claim

in any court, or otherwise asserted a claim or right to more than 35% of the income.
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During this time, material documentary evidence, such as William’s Federal Estate Tax
Return has been lost. During this time key witnesses, such as the accountant and other
professionals who prepared and filed William’s Estate Tax Returns, as well as Marjorie
herself, have died. During this time period Jacqueline and Kathryn, and Marjorie while
she was bving, made decisions affecting their personal and financial well-being in
reliance upon Eleanor’s acceptance of the Texas oil property allocation under the Trust,
based upon her conduct and failure to make any challenge of the allocation, Eleanor’s
claim to all of the income first asserted in approximately June, 2013, is made far too
late and has caused prejudice to Jacqueline and Kathryn because of the loss of evidence
and testimony of key witnesses, clearly requiring a rejection of Eleanor’s position and
claim in these proceedings under the equitable doctrine of laches.

23.  Concern was expressed by Jacqueline and Kathryn to Eleanor, through
counsel, during 2014 as to the status of funds Eleanor was required to hold in trust on
their behalf should the Court rule in their favor in these proceedings. An accounting
was requested from Eleanor’s former counsel, and they were in the process of preparing
the same when Eleanor dismissed her former counsel and engagpd new counsel.

, f‘/i_/m,,‘g.h pfvdvc\_/w— e rﬂz&fc A, 2008
- e g ot this alcountit 1gf01 the Texas oil

Elcanor neé
property income, including the providing of information to Jacqueline and Kathryn
showing the total income received, expenses incurred, and distributions made of the
income from the beginning of 2012 to the present. Any income which should have
been distributed to Jacqueline and Kathryn during this time period, shall be accounted
for and reimbursed to them by Eleanor within 30 days from the date this judgment is

entered.

24.  As.noted in the chart attached hereto as Exhibit*A> Jacqueline and
Kathryn filed a Motion for Leave to Amend Pleadings, which was set for hearing on
January 30, 2015. As noted in this Motion and the Supplement thereto, they filed their
Motion out of an abundance of caution in that Eleanor in her briefing in support of her

Countermotion indicated that she did not feel Jacqueline and Kathryn had properly
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pleaded all of their claims for relief and defenses for consideration by the Court at the
scheduled hearing. While Jacqueline and Kathryn disagreed with Eleanor’s pleading
concerns, the pleadings and hearings in these proceedings had become disjointed in that
a companion Will Contest case, filed with this Court by Eleanor in Case No, P-14-
080595-F, intervened to suspend and continue the Trust matters until after the Will
Contest case was resolved. The Will Contest was resolved with a Stipulation for
Digmissal in early January, 2015. Further, Eleanor has been represented by three
different sets of attorney’s in these proceedings. Her current attorneys only
commencing representation in late November, 2014, and they were not initially familiar
with the prior proceedings in this case and the effect of the Will Contest case
intervention. In any event, the Court finds that the initial pleadings filed on behalf of
Jacqueline and Kathryn in these proceedings properly plead the claims for relief and
the defense that the Court has relied upon in granting Judgment to them in these
proceedings. Eleanor clearly had notice of the pleadings and in fact the parties
negotiated over all of the claims for relief and the affirmative defenses alleged by
Jacqueline and Kathryn in concerted settlement negotiations in October, 2014, and such
claims and defenses were contained in the several Petitions and Motions filed during
the proceedings. In particular the defense of laches was mentioned in the context of
equitable defenses mentioned in the initial pleading, and was the subject of a Motion
to Dismiss and resolve the case summarily both in late 2013 and in early 2014,
Accordingly, the Court finds that there is no reason to file an Amended Pleading in
these proceedings and Jacqueline and Kathryn’s Motion seeking permission to file the
same is considered moot and resolved.

25.  Therearestill some claims and issues that the Court is not resolving at this
time. Eleanor filed a counterclaim for wrongful interference with contract with her
Answer and Counterclaim filed herein on February 10,2014, The Court finds that this
Counterclaim should be dismissed without prejudice at this tume, since the issues

therein were not addressed by the Court in the January 30, 2015, hearing, but it seems
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that the 1ssues would be resolved with its decision herein on the Countermotions.
Nevertheless, if Eleanor believes she has a valid claim still against Jacqueline for
wrongful interference with contract, as asserted in her Answer and Counterclaim, she
is fiee to reassert the same.

26.  Each of the parties asseried a claim against the other in these proceedings
seeking to have the Court enforce the no-contest clause contained in the Trust against
the other party. The Court finds that the positions of each of the parties, seeking the
correct interpretation of the Trust provisions as to entitlement to the Texas oil property,
were not asserted in bad faith, and that therefore good cause to impose the no-contest
penalties does not exist and such claims are denied with respect to both parties, Eleanor
on the one hand, and Jacqueline and Kathryn on the other hand.

27.  There still remains the issues and concerns of who will serve hereafter as
the Trustee of the Trust, and whether or not the interests of subtrust 2 and subtrust 3
in the Texas oil property should now be formally split and allocated with deeds from
the main Trust to the subtrusts, so the parties can go their separate ways in dealing with
their interests in the Texas oil properties, subject to the terms of the Trust with respect
to subtrust 2. Clearly, under the Trust provisions, the beneficiaries under subtrust 3 are
granted the right to remove their interest in the Texas o1l property out of the main Trust
and subtrust 3, to be owned independently by the MTC Living Trust and Jacqueline
and Kathryn as beneficiaries thereunder. However, the Court is directing the parties
to submit to the Courf, on or before March 2, 2015, information regarding the
feasibility and effect of now splitting the Texas oil property between subtrust 2 and
subtrust 3 (or the MTC Living Trust), and whether or not such division of interests
could adversely affect the value and future ownership of the interests hereafter. The
Court will set a hearing to consider this issue on March 20, 2015, at 10:00a.m.

28.  Withrespect to whether or not Eleanor should be able to continue serving
as Trustee, to address both Jacqueline’s and Kathryn’s position that she should be

removed for breach of her duties as Trustee, and Eleanor’s position that she is not
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disqualified from serving, the Court also is directing the parties to provide a brief in
support of their positions, filed on or before March 2, 2015, with the issue to then be
addressed by the Court at the hearing on March 20, 2015.

29, Lastly, with respect to the claim Jacqueline and Kathryn have made foran
award of attorney’s fees against Eleanor, the Court is divecting that the parties file with
their briefs due on or before March 2, 2015, their argument and basis for their positions
on the award of aftorney’s fees and costs against Eleanor for the Court to then resolve
at the hearing on March 20, 2015.

30. Inaddition to the matters addressed at the hearing on January 30, 2015,
there is a pending appeal to the Nevada Supreme Court, assigned Case No. 66231, filed
by Eleanor, appealing a portion of the Court’s Order in these proceedings entered on
July 7, 2014. With the resolution of issues in this case as herein provided, the matter
on appeal is now rendered moot. Therefore, the parties should submit a stipulation to
the Nevada Supreme Court dismissing that appeal.

JUGMENT

Pursuant to NRCP Rule 56, the Court finds that the pleadings and other
documents filed herein, together with the affidavits and documentary evidence
presented, show there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that Jacqueline
and Kathryn are entitled to judgment against Eleanor as a matter of law in these
proceedings. Therefore, and based upon the foregoing findings, good cause exists to
now render judgment against Eleanor, in favor of Jacqueline and Kathryn, as follows:

A.  Jacqueline’s and Kathryn’s Countermotion for Summary Judgment is
granted in part as hereinafter provided. The Court hereby declares, adjudges and
determines that the allocation of interests in the Texas oil property between subtrust 2
and subtrust 3, under the W.N. Connell and Marjorie T. Connell Living Trust, dated
May 18, 1972, was properly made under the Trust provistons, with subtrust 2 receiving
a 35.507% interest in the Texas oil property and subtrust 3 receiving a 64.493%

interest in the Texas oil property.
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B.  TheCourtadjudges and determines that even if the allocation of the Texas
oil property made following the death of William in 1979, in conjunction with the
filing ofhis Federal and Texas Estate Tax Returns, was not properly or accurately made
between the two subtrusts, Eleanor’s claim and effort to now challenge the allocation
and assert an interest greaier than 35.507% in the Texas o1l property bemng in subtrust
2,1s too late and barred under the doctrine of laches, thereby making the actual division
made final and binding upon her.

C.  Fleanor’s Countermotion for Summary Judgment is hereby denied.

D.  On or before March 2, 2015, Eleanor shall provide to Jacqueline and
Kathryn an accounting of the Texas oil property income received by the Trust from
Janvary 1, 2012, through the entry of this Summary Judgment, showing the total
income received, expenses incurred, and any distributions made of the income. Within
30 days following the entry of this Summary Judgment, Eleanor shall reimburse and
pay to Jacqueline and Kathryn any portion of their 65% share of the Texas oil property
income which was not distributed to them during this period of time. From and after
the entry of this Summary Judgment, 35% of the Texas oil property income shall be
distributed to Eleanor as beneficiary under subtrust 2, and 65% of the income shall be
distributed equally between Jacqueline and Kathryn as beneficiaries under subtrust 3
and the MTC Living Trust.

E.  Eleanor’s Counterclaim for wrongful interference with contract asserted
with her Answer and Counterclaim filed herein on February 10, 2014, is hereby
dismissed without prejudice.

F.  The Court adjudges and determines that the positions of each of the
parties, seeking the correct interpretation of the Trust provisions as to entitlement to
the Texas oil property, were not asserted in bad faith, and that therefore good cause to
impose the no-contest penalties does not exist and such claims, both Eleanor’s claim
on the one hand, and Jacqueline’s and Kathryn’s claim on the other hand, are denied

with prejudice.
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G.  Fach of the parties is directed to file further briefing on the following
issues with the Court on or before March 2, 2015, which issues and matters will be
resolved by the Court at the next hearing in these proceedings, hereby set on March 20,
2015, at 10:00a.m.:

1) Inthe event there is no formal splitting of the Texas o1l property between
subtrust 2 and subtrust 3 at this time, 1s there cause to remove Eleanor as Trustee and
appoint Jacqueline as the successor Trustee of the Trust and the subtrusts thereunder?
If cause does not exist for Eleanor’s removal, would 1t still be better to appoint a
neutral successor Trustee?

2)  Should the interests of subtrust 2 and subtrust 3 in the Texas oil property
now be formally split and allocated with deeds from the main Trust to the subtrusts, so
the parties can go their separate ways in dealing with their interests in the Texas oil
properties, subject to the terms of the Trust with respect to subtrust 2? The Court wants
the parties to provide recommendations from qualified persons knowledgeable with
respect to the Texas oil and mineral rights and the potential harm or benefit that could
result in a splitting of the interests between the parties, and whether or not such
division of interests could adversely affect the value and future ownership of the
interests hereafter. '

3)  Lastly, with respect to the claim Jacqueline and Kathryn have made foran
award of attorney’s fees against Eleanor, the Court directs the parties to provide their
argument and basis for their positions on the award of attorney’s fees and costs against
Eleanor in briefing filed on or before March 2, 2015, for the Court to then resolve at
the scheduled hearing on March 20, 2015.

H.  The parties shall each sign a Stipulation and Order for Dismissal of the
Appeal presently pending in Nevada Supreme Court Case No. 66231, filed by Eleanor,
appealing a portion of the Court’s Order in these proceedings entered on July 7, 2014,

I. The Court retains jurisdiction over the Trust pending the finalization and

resolution of the remaining issues mentioned above, to be addressed hereafter at the
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v DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In the Matter of
Case No.: P-09-066425-T
THE W.N. CONNELL AND MARJORIE T. Dept. No.: 26

CONNELL LIVING TRUST DATED May 18,
1972, An Inter Vivos Irrevocable Trust. Date of Hearing: March 20, 2015
Time of Hearing: 10:00 a.m.

ORDER REGARDING THE ACCOUNTING, BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUT
CLAIMS AND AWARD OF ATTORNEY FEES '

This matter, having come before the Honorable Gloria Sturman on March 20, 2015, 2015
for summary judgment, Whitney B. Warnick, Esq. of the law firm Albright Stoddard, Warnick &
Albright appearing on behalf. of Kathryn A. Bouvier, Joseph J. Powell, Esq. of the Rushforth
Firm, Ltd. appearing on behalf of Jacqueline M. Montoya, and Dale A. Hayes, Esq. and Liane K.
Wakayama, Esq. of the law firm Marquis Aurbach Coffing appearing on behalf of Eleanor
Connell Hartman Ahern, as Trustee of The W.N. Connell and Marjorie T. Connell Living Trust
dated May 18, 1972, the Court having considered the Brief Regarding Pending Issues; the Brief
Regarding Accounting, Fiduéiary Duties, and Trust Administration; the Supplement to Brief
Regarding Pending Issues; the Supplement to Brief Regarding Accounting, Fiduciary Duties, and
Trust Administration; the Second Supplement to Brief Regarding Pending Issues, and the
underlying papers and pleadings, as well as the oral arguments of counsel, and good cause

appearing therefore, the Court FINDS and ORDERS as follows:
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1. At a hearing held on January 30, 2015, the Court ordered that Eleanor Connell
Hartman Ahern, as Trustee of The W.N, Connell and Marjorie T. Connell Living Trust dated
May 18, 1972 (the “Trust”), to produce an Accounting. The Court further ordefed the parties to
submit simultaneous briefing on the removal of Eleanor as trustee, an award of attorney fees and
the best way for the Trust’s administration to continue.

2, The Court set a hearing on the remaining issues to be held on March 20, 2015.

UNDISPUTED FACTS
The Accounting

3. On March 13,.2015, Eleanor filed a Brief regarding the Accounting, ﬁduciary
duties and trust administration (“Eleanor’s Brief?).

4. Attached to Eleanor’s Brief was an Accounting prepared by Certified Public |
Accountants, Gamett and King, for the time period of June 2013 through January 2015 (the
“Accounting”),

5. All expenses identified in the Accounting except for the $218,760.17 in Trustee

fees are approved. The Court finds the Trustee fees unreasonable and not supported in any way.
The Court further finds that it is improper for a Trustee to charge a 6% fee plus overhead
expenses for staff and office space. The Court therefore finds that the easiest solution is to back
out the Trustee’s Fee from the Accounting as an unapproved expense; however, Eleanor may be
entitled to compensation for her time in serving as Trustee. A

6. The $37,000 distribution to Jacqueline and Kathryn in June 2013 was for income
earned and received by the Trust prior to June 2013. The Court therefore finds that the $37,000
distribution should not be included in the Accounting as a credit to the 65% share that is to be
held in trust for the benefit of Jacqueline and Kathyrn.

7. Based on removing the $218,760.17 in Trustee fees and not crediting the $37,000
distribution, the Court finds that a total of $2,163,758.88 shall be held in trust for the benefit of

Jacqueline and Kathyrn, which represents their 65% share of the total net income received by the

Trust from June 1, 2013 through January 31, 2015.
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8. The $500,000 on deposit with Fidelity Capital Inc. (“Fidelity Capital”) is not a
prudent investment, / R S / 4. 6 VDPJ"'U‘K'

9. Aside from the $218,760.17 Trustee fees, the $37,000 distribution and the
$500,000 on deposit with Fidelity Capital, the Accounting is approved.

Cutting Off the 65% Income

10.  As Trustee of the Trust, Eleanor owed fiduciary duties to Jacqueline and Kathryn
as beneficiaries of the Trust,
11.  In June 2013, Eleanor cut off the 65% income stream of the net oil revenue in her

. - wz‘ A"J'h‘ [y} —
capacity as Trustee of the Trust, 3 * Fhowt Frcct-serling | o . Ces

e Cowrk CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

12, Pursuant to Nev. R. Civ. P. 56(b), "[a] party against whom a claim, counterclaim,
or cross-claim is asserted or a declaratory judgment is sought may, at any time, move with or
without supporting affidavits for a summary judgment in the party's favor as to all or any part
thereof." "The judgment sought shall be rendered forthwith if the pleadings . . . show that there
is no genuine issue as to any material fact that the moving party is entitled to judgment as a
matter of law." NRCP 56(c). The burden for demonstrating the absence of a genuine issue of
material fact lies with the moving party, and the material lodged by the moving party must be
viewed in the light most favorable to the non-moving party. Hoopes v. Hammargren, 102 Neyv.
425, 429, 725 P.2d 238, 241 (1986). It is well settled in Nevada that the party opposing

summary judgment is entitled to all favorable inferences from the pleadings and documentary

evidence. See Mullis v. Nev. Nat’l Bank, 98 Nev. 510, 512, 654 P.2d 533, 535 (1982). The non-
moving party, however, “must, by affidavit or otherwise, set forth specific facts demonstrating
the existence of a genuine issue for trial or have summary judgment entered against him.”

Bulbman, Inc. v. Nev, Bell, 108 Nev, 105, 110, 825 P.2d 588, 591 (1992).

13.  To prevail on a breach of 'ﬁduciary duty claim in Nevada, Jacqueline and Kathryn
bear the burden of showing'that: (1) Eleanor owed them a fiduciary duty; (2) Eleanor breached
that duty; and (3) Jacqueline and Kathyrn sustained damages as a proximate cause of the breach.

See Mosier v. S. Cal, Physicians Ins. Exch., 74 Cal.Rptr.2d 550, 565 (Cal. Ct. App. 1998).
Page 3 of 5
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14.  The Court concludes as a matter of law that Eleanor did not breach any fiduciary
duties as it relates to the Accounting.

15.  The Court concludes as a matter of law that Eleanor breached her fiduciary duties
owed to Jacqueline and Kathryn by failing to retain a third-party trustee and petition the Court to
allow the 65% income stream to Jacqueline and Kathryn to be cut off. As. a result of Eleanor’s
breach of fiduciary duties, Eleanor shall be removed as Trustee only over the 65% share of the
Upton County, Texas oil assets. Eleanor shall remain as Trustee over her 35% share of the
Upton County, Texas oil assets; however, a temporary successor Trustee shall be appointed over
the entire Trust until this litigation is finally resolved.

16.  Based on Eleanor breaching her fiduciary duties, the Court will award Jaéqueline
and Kathryn their attorney fees and costs pursuant to NRS 153.031(3)(b). The Court reserves for
a later date the exact amount of attorney fees and costs to be awarded.

BASED ON THE F OREG‘OING, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND
DECREED that: .

1. The $500,000 currently on depoéit with Fidelity Capital shall be deposited into an |
FDIC insured bank account;

2, Jacqueline and Kathryn’s claim for breach of fiduciary duty against Eleanor, as

Trustee, of the Trust, is DENIED as it relates to the Accountma' based 2 th Mt~

.u/n/,l;/&h Hoo COL - 85 Mboi 20
. Summary judgment on Jacqueline and Kathryn s cla1m for breach of fiduciary
duty against Eleanor, as Trustee of the Trust, is GRANTED as it relates to Eleanor cutting of

their 65% distributions of the oil income in June 2013;

/11

/1
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4, Jacqueline and. Kathryn shall submit an Application for their award of attorney
fees and costs pursuant to NRS 153.031(3)(b), which shall include a proper analysis of the
factors set forth in Brunzell v. Golden Gate Nat’l Bank, 85 Nev. 345, 455 P.2d 31 (1969) as well
as their redacted billing statements. The deadlines for the briefing schedule shall comply with
E.D.CR. 2.20. The hearing on the Appliﬁtion shall be set for May 13,2015 at 9:00 a.m.

IT IS SO ORDERED this/ day of April, 2015.

P’ISTKI(,‘I‘ é()‘{?}if JUDGE
Submitted by:
Candice E. Renka, Esq., -
Nevada Bar No. 11447
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Attorneys for Eleanor Connell Hartman
Ahermn, as Trustee
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THE RUSHFORTH FIRM, LTD.
9505 Hillwood Drive, Suite 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

Tel: (702) 255-4552

Fax: (702) 255-4677
joey@rushforth.net

Attorneys for Jacqueline M. Montoya

WHITNEY B. WARNICK, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 001573

ALBRIGHT, STODDARD, WARNICK & ALBRIGHT
801 South Rancho Drive, Suite D-4

Las Vegas, Nevada 89106

Tel: (702) 384-7111

Fax: (702) 384-0605

gma(@albrightstoddard.com
Attorneys for Kathryn A. Bouvier

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In the Matter of CASE NO. P-09-066425
THE W. N. CONNELL AND MARJORIET. | DEPT NO. XXVI (26)
CONNELL LIVING TRUST, Dated May 18,
1972, Date of Hearing: March 20, 2015
Time of Hearing: 10:00a.m.

An Inter Vivos Irrevocable Trust.

ORDER APPOINTING NEW TEMPORARY TRUSTEE

A hearing in this proceeding was held on March 20, 2015, for the Court to consider and
resolve some of the remaining issues in this case following the hearing herein on January 30,
2015. At this hearing, the Court decided to appoint a new temporary Trustee for the W.N.
Connell and Marjorie T. Connell Living Trust, dated May 18, 1972 (hereinafter referred to as
the “Trust”). Based upon the unrelated, third party candidates recommended by the parties,
Mr. Fredrick P. Waid, Esq., by Jacqueline M. Montoya and Kathryn A. Bouvier, and Premier
Trust, by Eleanor Connell Hartman Ahern, and good cause appearing;

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED, that Eleanor Connell
Hartman Ahern is immediately removed as Trustee of the Trust, subject to the rulings made

by the Court on March 26, 2015, and until further order of this Court. In her place and stead,

c\L f Intemet Files'Content.Outkok\97 ICNBD2\Order #2 Appointing New Trusies vl jip revisions.wpd
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Mr. Fredrick P. Waid, Esq., is hereby appointed as the acting temporary successor Trustee of
the Trust, with full authority to manage the Trust and its assets, including the Trust’s interests

Co svrunce -
. . . . . Rede
in the Texas oil, gas and mineral property and interests in Upton County, Texas. < »o=*¥

TAFereds widh PonbyadBousrtrpa 4res rsgubyect—~Condt doatioll reemss |
Mr. Waid’s appointment as acting successor Trustee of the Trust 1s fhade on a
temporary, interim basis, until further order of the Court. Mr. Waid shall function as the sole
acting Trustee of the Trust, with all powers and authority provided to him under the terms of
the Trust instrument and the applicable Nevada Revised Statutes relating to a trustee’s powers.
Consistent with Nevada law, Mr. Waid, as Trustee, shall also honor all fiduciary obligations
owed to all of the beneficiaries of the Trust.
In her capacity as the former trustee of the Trust, and until such time that she might be
reinstated by this Court to such position, Ms. Ahern shall fully cooperate with Mr. Waid in
providing to him all pertinent information concerning the Trust’s current business transactions

and dealings and in making this transition in trusteeship of the Trust.

. O"kﬂ 3
SO ORDERED this 50 day of March, 2015. |

Submitted by:
ALBRIGHT, STODDARD,
WARNICK & ALBRIGHT

BYIQ%:_C_
WH Y B. WARNICK, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 001573 33
801 South Rancho Drive, Suite D-4 P.0Box 371655
Las Vegas, Nevada 89106 Las Vegas, NV 89137-1655
Tel: (702) 384-7111 Tel: (702) 255-4552
Attorneys for Kathryn A. Bouvier Attorneys for Jacqueline M. Montoya

Approved as to form and content by:
MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

By:
DALE A. HAYES, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 003430
LIANE K. WAKAYAMA, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 11313
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, NV 89145
Attorneys for Eleanor Connell Hartman Ahern
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THE RUSHFORTH FIRM, LTD.
JOSEPH J. POWELL

State Bar No. 8875

P. O. Box 371655

Las Vegas, NV 80137-1655

Telephone {702) 255-4552

fax: (702) 255-4677 -
e-mail: probate@rushforthfirm.eo
Attorneys for Jacgueline M. Montoya and
Kathryn A. Bouvier

CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In re the Maiter of the

THE W.N. CONNELL and MARJORIE T.
CONNELL LIVING TRUST, dated May 18,
1972
A non-testamentary trust. Case No.: P-09-066425-T
. Department: 26 (Probats)
PCi (Judge Sturman)

SUPPLEMENT TOMOTION FOR ASSESSMENT OF DAMAGES AGAINST ELEANOR
AHERN; ENFORCEMENT OF NO CONTEST CLAUSE: AND SURCHARGE QOF
ELEANOR’'S TRUST INCOME

Date of Hearing: Angust 5, 2015
Time of Hearing: 10:00 a. m.

JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA (“Jacqueline”) and KEATHRYN A. BOUVIER (“Kathryn”), by
and through her counsel of record, JOSEPH J. POWELL, Esq., of THE RUSHFORTH FIRM, LTD,,
hereby Supplement their “Motion for Assessment of Damages Against Eleanor Ahern; Enforcement
of No Contest Clause; and Surcharge of Eleanor's Trust Income” (“Motion™} which was filed on
June 3, 2015 and is set for hearing on August 5, 2015. Jacqueline and Kathryn respectfully

Supplement their Motion as follows:
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A. SETTING THE RECORD STRAIGHT

Jacqueline and Kathryn wish to set the record straight and provide the fo]loiving
background story as to what has actually occurred here. Having been painted as being money
hungry, uncaring.daughters over and over in Ms Ahern's pleadings, and also in oral argumients
made throughout the nearly two years of court proceedings by Ms. Ahern’s numerous attorneys
over that time, they are simply sick and tired of this completely inaccurate portrayal and have had
enough of it. Despite there being a very minuscule chance, they also present the accurate story of
what has transpired over the last three years with the hope that one day, in the not-to-distant
future, that Ms. Ahern might actually reflect upon the collateral damage that her poor decisions
have cansed, This information has no legal significance as 1o the issues that have oecurred here,
butafter having to face the significantamount of abuse that they have been dragged through in this
matter, they both feel that they can longer sit back in silence and must have the record reflect the
actual account of what has occurred here while Ms. Ahern has decided to destroy the strong family

dynamic that cnce existed.

e e — e

For J déﬁﬁeline, the relaﬁénship éhé Zhad vith her nrmtherrwas rmé she Eeld iﬁ;*ery high
regard. She appreciated her mother being involved with her family and enjoyed the time she and
her children spent with Ms. Ahern. From the time Ms. Ahern moved back to Las Vegas from Idaho
which occurred in 2004, she was a valued member of Jacqueline's family life. They spent almost
every weekend together with family BBQ's, movie nights on the couch, and outings with Ms.
Ahern's grandchildren, as well as the annual family vacation to Disneyland. Ms, Ahern stayed the
night many times as Jacqueline's house and generally accompanied them to church the day after.
Ms. Ahern was present in Jacqueline's home many times throughout the week and joined in the
nightly prayers with Jacqueline’s children before leaving for her own home.

In 2009, when Mrs. Connell passed, Ms. Ahern reacted strangely on two incidents that

Jacqueline recalls made her wonder what instigated these actions. The first was during a meeting
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that Attorney David Strauss, Mrs. Connell’s estate planning attorney, held in his office with
Jacqueline, Kathryn, and Ms. Ahern all present.

Upon arrival at this meeting, Ms. Ahern broughtin "a friend” named Suzanne Nounna, as
well as Ms. Nounna's daughter, Ariella, who was approximately 12 years of age at the time of the
meeting. Ms, Ahern stated that she wanted Ms. Nounna and Ariella to be present throughout the
meeting regarding Mrs. Connell's estate plan. Both Jacqueline, Kathryn, and even Attorney Strauss
were a bit surprised by this request, but after seeing the determination in Ms. Ahern they
acquiesced and the meeting proceeded. The curious thing was that Ms. Nounna said she had to
have Ariella present, as Ariella supposedly had a life threétening issue and could die unexpectedly
if presented with any environmental triggers,

The next “curious detail” oceurred a few months later when Jacqueline received a “demand
for monies” e-mail from her mother. Apparently, Ms. Ahern thought Jacqueline was stealing her
$300,000 gift that was provided for under Mrs, Connell’s Trust, the MTC Living Trust. As Trostee

of the M’I‘C Trust J at,quelme was doing her best to conclude all of the numerons detalls mvolved

w1th the trust adm1mstrat10n and was working closely with Artornev Strauss and Curey Ha:ma the 7
MTC Living Trust Accountant. The response to this demand of Ms. Ahern’s was actually
formulated by Attorney Strauss, as he had to provide support for how espediticusly Jacqueline was
working through the Trust Administration of the MTC Living Trust. Ms, Ahern subsequently
provided Jacqueline with an apology.

Things went back to normal with family unity, until in February 2012 when Ms. Ahern broke
her leg. She was admitted into Mountain View Hospital and proceeded to have surgery. She did
not, as was erroneously stated in her court pleadings, have any major issues or complications from
the surgery. She was coherent after surgery and requested that Jacqueline make the nurses some |
homemade chocolate chip cookies, as they had taken such good care of her. Of course, Jacqueline

did this immediately. Ms. Abern even stated to Jacqueline that she was not on "any pain
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medications”, as she felt so strong after surgery. However, because she was an older patient, she
stressed to her doctors that she would Iike to have in-patient rehabilitation at then‘ facility next
door. Therefore, Ms. Ahern spent about 3 weeks learning how to get around in the wheelchair,
what exercises she needed to perform, strength training her npper body, and how to shower and
care for herself. Jacqueline visited Ms. Ahern every day in rehab, and retuned in the evening with
her children so they could visit with their grandmother. They spent one Saturday watching Ms.
Ahern go through her exercises and the grandchildren got to see how the doctors worked on their
grandmother to make her stronger. Yet, when a friend of Jacqueline's was helping Ms. Ahern with
some tasks while she was in rehab, he asked her if she had seen Jacqueline recently. Ms. Ahern’s
response was "Yes, she stopped by once or twice”. That was a very strange comment about a
danghter who visited her every day! Upon Ms. Ahern's discharge, she hired a personal care taker
named Lynelle to help her with her daily house and personal care.

On April 4, 2012, the deal with Apache Corporatian (“Apache™) was coming to a close.
J acquelme had spoken to her mof_her may tlmes w\hﬂe shp was in rehab regardmg the de,ta]lb of
the new deal One quch detaﬂ was that the dcal was at S3,000 per acrAe whlch was an amount no 7
one thought possible, but Ms. Ahern responded to this information with "My attorneys feel I can
get $7,000 per acre”™. On April 4th, Jacqueline had brought over the lease to her mother, after
having issues with encryption and print errors for hours, as well as learning that Ms. Ahern's
notary was unavailable. Lynelle was present during this time. Jacqueline scheduled a notary that
made house calls and met him there at Ms. Ahern's ﬂome. Although throughout the day Ms, Ahern
and Jacqueline spoke numerous times about the upcoming signing with the notary, Jacqueline
found food and dishes all over the table where Ms. Ahern was seated. Despite this, Ms, Ahern
signed the Apache lease and Jacqueline was then forced to rush over to a Fed Ex location so that
the contracts would arrive in Texas the next morning, meeting the deadline. Later that same day,

in the evening, Ms. Ahern strangely requested that Jacqueline bring by the copy of the lease, but
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Jacqueline was at dinner with her husband for their 17th wedding anniversary dinner. Jacqueline
e-mailed it over to Ms. Ahern that night. The next day, April 5, Jacqueline received a call from Jeff
Johnston stating that Ms. Ahern had faxed and called numerous times during the night and had
voided her agreement. Mr. Johnston was upset, as there was 3 groups of families involved, as well
as the Apache team, all of whom were relying on each other to complete the negotiations as
discussed. Jacqueline attempted to call her mother, but all cails were unanswered. Kathryn
attempted the same. Apparently Ms. Ahern, and an advisor, likely Ms. Nounna, spent the next day
talking with Mr. Johnston for hours in order to “understand” the lease, despite previously signing
the lease. Ms. Ahex?n and her advisor also spoke to Jim Walton for a few hours doing the same
thing.

In the end, Ms. Ahern signed the lease, but never called Jacqueline with an explanation for
her actions oravoiding Jacqueline’s calls. However, on April o, Jacqueline received a text that said,
"I received snch joy when I thought of you today . . .. T pray you had a lovely day. Hugs mom".

TJacqueline finally decided to confront her mother on April 15 and told her mother how her actions

l;ad made her feel. Lynelle was also i)résént duﬁng this converéaﬁoxi. Ms. Ahern the1;1 :%ent an
apology letter to Jacqueline (copying similar letters to Mr. Johnston, Mr. Walton, and Mozelle
Miller and Bob Miller} explaining that Jacqueline did nothing wrong and that Ms. Ahern had
reacted improperly. Jacqueline thought the issue was done and over with, but found out in May
of 2012 that the issne had just escalated.

On May 12, Jacqueline dropped off Ms. Ahern's Mother's Day and Birthday gifts, since she
chose not 1o spend any time with them for those occasions. Onee Jacqueline’s boys gave her the
gifts, she came out of the house on crutches, in tears, saying "I thought yon were trying to steal my
trust” and also made another attempt to apologize for all the negative behavier she had been
extending to Jacqueline. Jacqueline could not hold this conversation with her boys nearby so she

responded that she had no idea what her mother was talking about, but that they would have to
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discuss it later dae the nature of the conversation being something that should not ceeur in the
presence of her boys. On May 25, Lynelle called Jacqueline and asked her to meet with her. She
said there were some strange things happening in her Ms. Abern’s house that she wanted to make
Jacqueline aware of. Lynelle began with the date of May g when Jacqueline had tried to drop off
some papers for Ms. Ahern, she said that Ms. Nounna was throwing a birthday party for Ms. Ahern

that night. Apparently, Ms. Nounna pulled Lynelle aside 1o say "she would pay Lynelle out of her

{{ own pocket for a week if Eynelle would stay with Ms. Ahern 24/7 and keep Jacqueline away™.

Lynelle went on to say that Ms. Nounna told her that "I need you to pray over Ms. Ahern so she
doesn't go back to Jacqueline”. Lynelle said she told Ms. Nounna "No". Lynelle also wanted
Jacqueline to know that Ms. Ahern had allowed Ms. Nounna to “borrow” her car for 8 weeks, but
that Ms. Ahern wanted it back. Lynelle observed Ms. Nounna atiempt fo placate Ms. Alern, in
response for her demand thatshe no vlonger possess the vehicle, by saying she would return it soon.
‘When it was finally returned, Lynelle further stated that Ms. Nounna had put a bigred bow on Ms.
Ahern's car, as it it were a gift, and gave it backto her sa}"mg "1 spent 55,000 onit gettmg it Iookmg
nice again”. Jacqueline thonght that was strange as the car was less than a year old.

The last two details Lynelle shared with Jacqueline was that Ms. Nounna had szﬁd to her
"Jacqueline is frying to institutionalize her mom" and that Ms, Ahern never had anymoney on her,
as she always had to ask Ms. Nounna for her money when she needed it. When Jacqueline met with
her mother on May 25, she discussed these issues, as she was very concerned for her mother’s
welfare. Ms. Ahern had responded that she loved Jacqueline very much and that "this bebavior
would stop”. However, Ms. Ahern ended the conversation strangely by saying, "I guess 1 am going
to have to choose between you and Suzanne”.

In June of 2012, Jacqueline asked her mother if she would join her in family counseling, as
she was very worried about their family, their relationship, and even more so ——her mother. Ms.

Ahern responded with a flippant answer of "When I am ready”.
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On July 4, Ms. Ahern sent Jacqueline a very cryplic text requesting 7 years of original bank
statements, ete. On July 6, Ms. Ahern asked Jacqueline and her boys to come to himmch. Following
lunch, Jacqueline sent a text asking Ms. Ahern to join thera for dinner. Ms. Ahern responded she
was busy, but would Iove to next time and that sheloved them all. However, weeks passed and Ms.
Ahern did not even call or text Jacqueline on her 47th birthday that year which was on the 19™ of
July. This was folowed by an extremely strange, and upsetting, event.

On July 25, Jacqueline was invited to a late birthday Junch with a friend that had worked
for her previously. Jacqueline was on US 95 passing by Ms. Ahern’s house when she thought she
saw a white car pull out of the garage. Jacqueline pulled off the expressway and circled back to her
mother’s house, as she, as noted, had not heard from her mother since July 6. Jacqueline pushed
through the gates with the boys in tow and knocked on the gate only to find the gate was unlocked.
They then knocked on the door and found it pushed open ——- also being unlocked. They saw in
the foyer a grocerybag from Whole Foods that held melted butter and some lemonsinit. There was
a travel bag spread out over the entry hallway —-- blocking anyone from passing —-—asthough ‘
Ms. Aheﬁl had dropped it upon being surprise(i or scared. Ms. Ah&ﬁ's "boot‘b‘ me&%or hef Efoken
leg was laying there as well, Jacqueline felt immediately worried for her mother and told the boys
to wait while she checked out the house. The bed was not slept in and the dog was in the garage,
but the carwas gone. There was a huge pile of mail on the kitchen counter that seemed to indicate
Ms. Ahern had just retnrned from a trip. Jacqueline called the Las Vegas Metro missing persons
division, as the scene she was witnessing really seared her. While she waited for an officer, she and |
her boys waited at the kitchen table and Jacqueline called Ms. Ahern's friend, Sandy. Jacqueline
also reached out to a friend and asked if he would call her mether, since her mother had not
responded to any of Jacqueline's calls when she entered the house and found it In such disarray.
This is when Ms. Ahern's friend Sandy called back and said, "Your mom is fine, she said to stop

calling her friends and she will call you if she ever needs you™. Another slap in the face to a
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daughter worried about her mother.

Just as Metro arrived, her friend called back and said he had talked to Ms. Ahern, but only
to discuss business. But at least Jacqueline knew she was alright and unharmed. Jacqueline
cancelled her lunch plans and began to talk with the officer that had been dispatched to Ms. Ahern’s
home. The officer asked many questions about what Jacqueline and her boys had found upon their
arrival, then wrote a report. After hearing some of the "strange” details of Jacqueline's experience
with her mother over the last few months, he suggested Jacqueline reach out to Elder Abuse
Services. When the officer left, Jacqueline asked him to stay while she locked up so he could
confirm the home was secured.

Ms. Ahern disappeared from the family without any further conversations at the end of July
2012. Not once during this 3 vear period has Ms. Ahern reached out to her grandehildren. Ms.
Ahern has 4 grandkids in total, Jacqueline’s two boys and Kathryn’s two boys, who continue to love
her even during all of this drama. Never has there been a birthday card, Christias card, letter,
emailz text or call. It is a shame that Ms. Ahern has allowed money to destroy not only the
relationship she h;dd with her kids, but also her gra;zdchﬂdrén — W};o reﬁﬁn iﬁnocent throrughm
all of this.

Asabriefaside from the chronology of events, to clearly illustrate how emotionally removed
Ms. Ahern is from her grandehildren, and the Montoya and Bouvier families, during this past June
22 hearing when Kathryn saw Ms. Ahern in court she wanted to share a text from her oldest son
saying he loved his “Grammie”. Kathryn approached her mother and the only words Ms. Ahern
said were "He has grown up”. Wot that she misses or loves her grandson, not thét she wanted to
see him orevenrespond tohim ... ... just that he grew up. That curt response did not preclude
Kathryo from offering Ms. Ahern her phone number in ease she wanted to call to her or her
grandchildren, to speak to them in a non-threatening and non-titigation discussion manner. Ms.

Ahern stated she didn’t know Kathryn’s number even though it is the same wumber Kathryn has
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had for the past 10 years.

On approximafely Angust 8, 2012, Jacqueline contacted Elder Abuse / Protective Services.
Jacqueline called them shortly after talking with Ms. Ahern’s computer guy - Bﬁl He had shared
with. Jacqueline in this phone call that he had found Ms. Ahern on the floor in the "midst of filth
from her having a vertigo attack”™. He said Ms. Ahern stopped taking her vertigo medicine which
Jacqueline was unaware she even took anything for, not having had actively seen her mother for
over two months atsuch tie. He said that Ms. Nounna took over Ms. Ahern’s books because she
was not paying her credit card bills. This did not make sense to Jacqueline, as she and Kathryn's
distribution was less than Ms. Ahern's-——-35% verus 32.5%. Therefore, if Jacqueline was able to
live on this amount with a family of 4 {and the same for Kathryn), then why was Ms. Ahern having
financial issues? Jaequeline became worried after this call, since it indicated Ms. Ahern had health
issues in addition to potentially being manipulated. Jacqueline told the person at Elder Services,
that Ms. Ahern was a beautiful 74 vear old woman who took care of her home, cér, person, and
worked in mniti level marketing. She said that she was concerned though about an advisor in Ms.
Ahern's life that seemed to be cz)ntrﬁllingrher ﬁnanclal dedsion;é; as ;Qéli as ﬂiose of a personal
nature. She discussed the experience of the house being unlocked and groceries‘ being left
unattended, the request Ms. Nounna made of Wells Fargo to withdraw a large sum of money, the
car that Ms. Ahern loaned to Ms. Nounna for 8 “reeks, the comment Ms. Nounna made {o Lynelle
about keeping Jacqueline away from Ms. Ahern for a week. The responder said to Jacqueline that
an older person sometimes gets very nervous later in life, but none of these circumstances seemed
to indicate she was being manipulated. Jacqueline was very distressed by the result of this call, as
she had hoped they would make a serious and thorough effort to research the people surrounding
hermother. Jacqueline was not made aware that this agency would in turn make a house checkand
aiscuss this with her mother, as at no time did Jacqueline make that call to state that her mother

was unable to care for herself . The entire peal of Jacqueline’s was for this agency to research the
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leeches that are in Ms. Ahern's life.

Anotherineident was on August 19, 2012 when a friend of Ms. Ahern's contacted Jacqueline.
She said that another of Ms. Ahern’s businessreps was ata convention with Ms. Ahernand that Ms.
Ahern had proceeded to tell her "that my daughter is trying to institttionalize me”, in reference to
Jacqueline. The rep was really worried and called the friend. The same person continued to tell the
friend that Ms. Ahern had shared that her computer guy {Bill) had bugged her home and phone,

Following the September 2013 medjation in Texas, which failed miserably, Jacqueline

|| delivered to her mother an album of their years together, and cards from her boys and her. Both

Jacqueline and Kathryn continue to be concerned for their mother, and hope some sort of a
relationship can be salvaged after this experience.

It now has been g years since Ms. Ahern's disappearance, and for the most part Jacqueline
has not seen her with the exception of court hearings or at depositions. However, in December of
2014, Jacqueline was surprised to meet a friend of hers that she had modeled with almost 30 years
ago. Thisfriend and Jacqueline began to talkand Jacqueline just sensed in the conversation which
was about where the friend lived having hofses and stables that this wéuld be a; piace that her
mother would choose to live, despite owing 3 homes. So Jacqueline asked her if she knew Ms.
Ahern. This friend’s face suddenly expressed a look of great surprise and then she said "Yes, 1
cooked dinner and cockies for her over the last two years many fimes”. She then asked Jacqueline
how she knew Ms. Ahern and of course Jacqueline explained. Then the friend explained that Ms.
Ahern had moved into an equestrian neighborhood and had rented the home across from her. The
friend went on to explain that Ms. Ahern had a person in her life that really worried the friend. The
friend said that the lady's name was Suzanne (in reference to Ms. Nounna) and that friend would
find Ms, Nounna and Ms, Ahern in the horse stalis talking in whispers with the secnurity guard of
the complex. When the‘ friend asked Ms. Ahern about it, Ms. Ahern responded that "Her (Ms.

Ahern's) danghter is trying to kill her™. The friend was of course horrified to learn this —-— not
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knowing Jacqueline was the daughter being accused. The friend also said that Ms. Ahern has a
personal body gnard with her to ensure that the daughter (Jacqueling) ean't kill her.

One last "incident” occurred in December of 2012, where another person Ms. Ahern is in
contactwith through her business dealings notified Jacqueline that Ms. Ahern had talked with her
recently about Ms. Nounna making Ms. Ahern get involved with credit card frand. Thelady helped
Ms. Ahern rectify the fraud, but said she would need to call her back. Ms. Ahern said it would take
some time for her to answer, as she had to take the call in the bathroom since she wasn't allowed
to take calls.

On January 2015, Ms. Ahern's attorneys at Marquis Aurbach Coffing sent an email to
Attorney Powell stating that they had been requested to notify Jaequeline, and Kathryn as well, that
Ms. Ahernt does not want any further gifts from her. Jacqueline and Kathryn had been sending
letters from the grandehildren, as well as photos of them so their grandmother could be appraised
of their lives. Apparently Ms. Ahern didn't care to know how her grandchildren were daing.

As stated, Jacqueline and Xathryn, having been accused of being “greedy” daughters and
the i)urpose of providing this background is ’Lhe set forth the reality of what has rééliiv ;(ranspired,
given that Ms. Ahern is now on her fourth set of counsel and each one of them remain convinced
that Jacqueline and Kathryn are to “blame” for what has occurred here, each one ignoring the fact
that Ms. Abern chose to leave her children and grandchildren, not the other way azound.

B. INTERIM TRUSTEE REPORT

Subsequent to the filing of the Motion on June 3, 2015, the current serving trustee of “The
W.N. Connell and Marjorie T. Connell Living Trust”, dated May 18, 1972 ("Trust”™), Fredrick P.
Waid, has filed his “Interim Trustee Report” dated July 2, 2015 (“Report”™).

After a review of the Report, it is erystal dear and blatantly obvious that all of the damages
prayed for by Jacqueline and Kathyrn are unquestionably warranted to be assessed against Ms.

Ahern. Furthermore, the verification by Mr. Waid, as an independent party to this matter, of the
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theft and conversion of assets mandated to be held for Jacqueline and Kathryn confirms that this
Court must enforce the No Contest clanse contained in the Trust, thereby terminating Ms. Ahern’s
interest in the Trust.

Fhe actions undertaken by Ms, Ahern as detailed in the Report amount to a complete and
utter disrespect of this Court in completely iguoring and thumbing her nose at this Court's
authority and previous rulings. Ms. Ahern has also clearlylied to this Court and her own counsels

on multiple occasions and refuses to honor this Court’s cutstanding orders. The actions also show

a complete disregard for Jacqueline and Kathryn and their finaneial and emotional well being. The i

actions of Ms. Ahern are simnply deplorable and unjustifiable. The actions can bedescribed by
wide range of adjectives, but include the actions of theft, fraud, deceit, manipulation, and
conversion, to name a few.

A thorough discussion of Mr. Waid’s Report is appropriate.
On or about Friday Apfil 1. 2015, a copy of the Cowat’s Order removing Ms. Ahern

as Trustee woas provided to Wells Fargo Bank. On that day, it was determined that
only $0.041.55 was on deposit at Wells Fargo Bank: in accounts of the Trust,

Aftef successtully prevailing in thislitigation aﬁd this Court driratérminingltkl;z;t J. a(‘,;lu eline :md
Kathryn were in fact entitled to 65% of the income generated by the Trust, as they had asserted all
along, Jacqueline and Kathryn had an extremely reasonable expectation that upon Mr. Waid taking
over as the trustee of the Trust that they would immediately receive alarge distribution of cash that
they were always entitled to, but had been withheld from them since June of 2013. The
distribution to them would obvicusly ease the severe economic strain, and the accompanying
severe emotional stress and torment that accompanies being placed in a completely unexpected
financial predicament that they did not bring upon themselves, that they, and their respective
families, had to deal with since Ms. Ahern unilaterally decided that she was nolonger going to be
making distributions to them, which they had relied on, and made life altering choices in reasonable

reliance of, since their grandmother’s passing in 20096.
g 1% g
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Instead of being able to enjoy the vindication of their rights, the survival of the persistent
name calling that was directed at them by all Ms. Ahern’s attorneys, and the gamesmanship
displayed throughout which was intended to further financially break them that Ms. Ahern’s
revolving door of attorneys subjected Jacqueline and Kathryn to, theythen had to deal with the slap
in the face of being told by Mr, Waid that the money this Court required be waiting for them upon
their successful enforcement of their rights was simply gone. Imagine for just a second what kind
of a gut wrenching, emotional torment that would cause a reasonablje pexson in their positions to
experience. Fighting a battle in which you have to expend an extreme amournt of legalfees and deal
with the daily emotional roller coaster that is litigation and then to be tald at the end of the draining
journey that the anticipated pay off from the victory is simaply not there. This is what Ms. Ahern
thought, and stll clearly thinks, was an acceptable occurrence. WHY? Her own greed! What kind
of person d(;es this?!?1?1?12! Apersonwithout any moral compass x?hatsoever. A perscn who only
thinks about herself. That is the type of persorn that puts her own daughters through this emotional

train wreck that she herself has caused.

Like the punishment that anyone else who would engagé in these pathetic, unthinkable acts,
Ms. Ahern must now face the music and this Court must hold her completely responsible for these
actions. Teo do anything less than render full punishment to Ms. Ahern Is to reward her for her
behavior and would set a dangerous precedent that this Court simply cannot allow to occur,
especially in this arena where the administration of trusts are built on a foundation of trust and
doing the right and proper things that one is entrusted by others to do. Anything short of full
punishment sends a message that is acceptable and permissible to ignore the law and to ignore
what this Court directs, simply because one feels like doing so. This Courthas a prime opportunity
tonot allow Ms. Ahern to get away with any of her actions and fo send themessage that is necessary
to Ms. Abern-———-—--You are respounsible for your actions!

As this Court will clearly recall, Ms. Ahern, via her attorneys, vigorously fought the request
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of Jacqueline and Kathryn to receive their 65% distribution during the pendency of this litigation.
Her attorneys argued that it wonld not be “faix” for J aequelinte and Kathryn to continue to receive
their 65% of the mcome from the Trust because “if” they did not prevail Ms. Ahern might have a
difficult Hme recovering those funds. Therefore, based on this, this Court stated that only if
Jacqueline and Kathryn could become fully bonded could they receive their income distributions.
Unfortunately, the bonding process was fruitless as Jacqueline and Kathryn were told that they
would have to put up doHar for dollar collateral to secure the necessary bonding, which they were
unable to'do. So after all of this fuss about Ms. Ahern being protected just in case, please forgive
Jacqueline and Kathryn if the irony of this situation is not easily dismissed and shrugged away.,
It should be veryeasyto understand and sympathize with the exirene level of anger and frustration
that Jacqueline and Kathryn experienced while learuing that Ms. Ahern stole and converted the
money that she was expressly required to hold for J aequeﬁne and Kathryn and which she was
expressly prohibited by this Court from taking. Again, Ms. Ahern clearly has no regard whatsoever
for this Court’s authority.

On April 8. 2015, Ms. Ahern depostied into the Trust’s account a cashier’s check in
the amount of $409.228.50. The eashier’s check represented funds withdraun on
March 20,2015 from the Trusi’s account by Ms. Ahernafter the hearingearlierinthe
day inwhich shewas removed as Trustee. The funds were withdrauwn froma Wells

Fargo Bank branch in Orange County, California just before the bardk closed for
business that evening.

Jacqueline and Kathryn simply have no words to describe this conduct. Thisconduct speaks
for itself. Asstated, Ms. Ahern, onthe day that she was removed as trastee by this Court, knowing
that she has had an obligation to keep all funds protected in the Wells Fargo trust account decides

to rush to a Wells Fargo branch in Southern California and get there before closing to remove over

$400,000. AsMr. Waid explains in his Report, there hasbeen no explanation given by Ms. Ahern.

It is obvions what occurred here. The facts speak for themselves. The fact of the matter is that

there is no explanation other than this was blatant theft and conversion of assets that belonged to
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Jacqueline and Kathryn.

On March 22, three daus after her removal as Trustee, bs. Ahern wvithdrew
$500,000 from the Trust account at Wells Fargo Bank (St. George, Utah brartch),
purchosed a cashier’s check payable to the Trust and deposite the same with US
Bank. Upon learning of these transactions Ms. Ahern’s counsel withdreww its
Certificate of Compliance with the Court’s order regarding the $500,000 transfer
and moved the Court for permission te withdraw as counsel of record.

A pattern?!?1?!?1?  So Ms. Ahern’s journey with an intent of theft and conversion of
proceeds belonging to Jacqueline and Kathryn continues from Orange County, California to St.
George, Titah. Once again, Ms. Ahern sees it fit to remove a half a million dollars of monies
belonging to Jacqueline and Kathryn so as to now take the total to over $900,0000 in a three day
period after she was removed as trustee. Inthe process, her attorneys at Marquis Aurbach Coffing
decide that they no longer can represent a deceitful client who 1s committing eriminal acts as she
pleases and obviously feel that they can no longer be part of the further deceit to this Court.
On_April 16, 2015, Ms. Ahern delivered a $700.000 cashier's check to her then
counsel at MAC, The check wuas in the form of a Wells Fargo cashier's check payable

to the Trust and dated February 18,2015. The check was obtained by Ms. Ahern at
the St. George, Utah branch of the bank. No explanation has been provided or basis

detcerynined for the withdrawal of funds from the Trust gecormt, thetndent=ofMs| -

Ahern, orwhere the check was held for approximately ivo months. This transaction

directhy contradicts the deelarations and representations as set forth in the Ahern
Brief and its exhibits. Clearhy, as of the date of the signing and filing of the Ahern
Brief on March 13, 2015, $700,000 of the $1,997,573.18 declared therein was not on
deposit with Wells Fargo Bank, but was withdrawn on February 18, zo15, placedin
a cashier’s check and held by Ms. Ahern or others until it was delivered to her then
counsel, who in turn delivered the funds to the Successor Trustee,

Lies, lies, and more lies from Ms. Ahern! Theft, theft, and more theft from Ms. Ahern! It
would be highly surprising, bordering on shocking, if Ms. Ahern, via her current counsel, will not
attempt to put a positive spin on this and attempt to offer an explanation for this. Whatever lieand
misrepresentation that Ms. Ahern will come up with, which must be madeumder penalty of perjury,
the fact rernains that this Court has been lied to with such frequeney and consistency, atong with
Jacqueline and Kathryn, that no “explanation” should ever be accepted by this Court. As Mr. Waid

explains, over three months from this discovery have evaporated and yet Ms. Ahern still does not
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feel compelled to provide any explanation to Mr. Waid. Her silence is deafening as to what has
occurred here. There is no justification. This was theft and conversion----plain and simple.

Since Ms. Ahern's removal as Trustee, the Trust has located additional Trust finds
in bardes locatedin Texas and Utah. OnApril 2, 2015, after Ms. Ahern was removed
as Trustee and before the Successor Trustee had aceess to orinformation aboui the
Trust's accounts, Ms. Ahernwithdrew $146,517.28 from the Trust's account at Wells
Fargo Bank (St. George, Utah branch loeation) aind purchased a cashier’s checkin
the same amount, payable fo the Trust. Ms. Ahern then opened an account, in the
name of the Trust, at Toum & Country Bank located tn St. George, Uitah and
deposited the $1146.517.28 check. Towwn & Countriy Bank's compliance department
labeled the aceount as "suspicious"” due to the hehavior of Ms. Ahern.

On April 14, 2015, the doy the Court issued its Order fo Show Cause against Ms.
Ahernregarding the $500,000 Fidelity Capital, Inc. matter, Ms. Ahemcontacted the
bank anid attempted to grrange an all cash withdrawal of$100,000 from the Trust's
account. According to the bank's representative, Ms. Ahern claimned she, "wanted
the eash to put it in her vault.” On Mayf 15, 2015, Toun & Country Bank elected to no
longer do business with the Trust or Ms. Ahern and administratively closed the
aceount.

Whatelseisthereto saythat hasnotyetbeen said?12121?! Ms. Ahern’s theft spree continues
and knows no limits.

It is believed-that Ms. Ahem opened another bank account at Zions Bank in St.

Gesroe, Uiddsintfiename of the Trust after-ferrenovatas Frustee. Informmativras—-- -~

to this account hasnot beenverified. Confirmation end supplementation will follow
upon receipt of the information and amy fimds recovered will be eredited to the new
Trust aceount.

More and more and more confirmation of Ms. Ahern’s actions AFTER ber removal as
trustee, in direct and eomplete violation of this Court’s orders.

Based on the reporting of Mr. Waid, to say that Ms. Ahern’s hands were caught in the
proverbial cookie jar would be a massive understatement. The reality is that Ms. Ahern’s hands
remain firmly stuck in the cookie jar that she continues to drag around with a massive trail of
crumbs being found in the wake of her path.

C. TIMELINE
Tt will likely be helpful for the sake of organization for this Court to review the following

timeline and sequence of events.
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November 12, 2013--—Court orally orders Ms. Ahern to Jacqueline and Kathryn's 65%
share in Trust

December 20, 2013——-Court order signed requiring Ms. Ahern to hold Jacqueline and
Kathryn's 65% share in Trust

March zo, 2015%———Court orders removal of Ms. Ahern as trustee of Trust

March 20, 2015-~———Hours after Court removes Ms. Abern as trostee, Ms. Ahern
removes the amount of $409,228.50 from the Well Fargo trust account via a Wells Fargo
branch located in Orange County, California shortly before closing of the branch

March 23, 2015-——--Ms. Ahern travels to St. George, Utah and removes $500,000 from
the Wells Fargo trust account via a Wells Fargo branch located in St. George, Utah

April 2, 2015——-—Ms. Ahern removes the amount of $146,517.38 from the Wells Fargo
trast acconnt via a Wells Fargo branch located in St. George, Utah

April 14, 2015------ Ms. Ahein attempts to remove $100,000 in cash from Town &
Country Bank located in St. George, Utah. Town & Country Baunk refuses request

D, NO RETURN OF THE $500,000 CLAIMED TO HAVE BEEN HELD BY FIDELITY
CAPITAL

On top of all of these actions, as of this date, as confirmed by conversation with Mr. Waid,

Ms. Ahem has sfill not produced the $5oo ooo that she clauned was on depost with Fldehty

e e T Sl . .

P

Capltal whlch Fidelity Capital, via Mr. Perel bubsequenﬂv denounced and whlch is more fully

SRR = BNy et

discussed below.

' Despite being instructed and ordered on multiple occasions to immediately return those
funds dating back to April, the $500,000 has still not been produced, nor has its whereabouts been
revealed. As fits the pattern with all of these previously described actions, Ms. Ahern does not
apparently feel that she owes Mr. Waid, orthe actual victims of her crimes, Jacqueline and Kathryn,
any type of an explanation as to the status of the $500,000. Oninformation and belief, Jacqueline
and Kathryn believe that the money has either been spent by Ms. Ahern or is Being hidden by Ms.
Ahern, possibly through the actions of co-conspirators. Ttis terrible, nnjustifiable conduct on Ms.
Ahern’s part, but par for the course of this litigation.

E. “OFFICE RENTAL” WAS NOTHING MORE THAN A RENTAL HOME FOR
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SUZANNE NOUNNA

This Court will recall that as part of this fraud, that Ms. Ahern has continued to perpetuate
on it and Jacqueline and Kathryn, that Ms. Abern had previously represented that she needed to
rent office space 1o transact-trust business and store docuizents relating to the Trust because she
did not have adequate space to do so in her personal residence.

Tnher “Brief Regarding Accounting, Fiduciary Duties, and Trust Administration”, which was
filed on March 13, 2015 (“Brief”), Ms. Ahern represented the following to this Court:

Eleanor rents office space where she and her assistants maintain the Trust records and

perform Trust business. The location where Eleanor eurrently lives does not have suitable

space for Eleanor to perform Trust business and store Trust records, so sherents an office

at a cost of $1,750 per month.

Interestingly, Ms. Ahern never listed the address for this so-called rental property. Instead
of listing any documentation concerning this “office” with her Brief, she instead included a letter

from Adele Joseph’s of “Joseph’s Properties”, which was attached as Exhibit 8 to her Brief. Ms.

Joseph’sletter is dated March 5, 2015 (based on a handwritten date Inseription next to Ms. Joseph’s

‘signatire) and siroply states the following: -~ -

Summary for your records,

Your office rent expense has been $1750.00 a month since the beginning of 2013.
Itis paid as of the beginning of this month.

After discovery of the lease agreement by Mr. Waid, which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”
and is hereby incorporated by this reference, it crystal clear as to why Ms. Aherndid not want to
provide any details about her “office”. The “office” was really not an office at all. Insteaditwasa
two bedroom townhome located in Spanish Trails, with an address of 6975 Emerald Springs Lane,
Las Vegas, Nevada 89113. Why a townhome? Well that is beéause the townhome was actually
being used as a home for Suzanne Nounna. Based on disclosure relayed to Attorney Powell from
Mr. Waid, Mr. Waid has learned from the landlord of the townhome that Ms. Nouona had

previously applied to rent the townhome and her application was denied. Apparently, not liking
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the word “No”, it appears that Ms. Ahern decided that she herself would rent the townhome for Ms.

Nounné, which as this Court will recall Ms. Ahern has made it known in several pleadings that Ms.
Nounna is part of her “advisory team”, and then make the claim that this wasthe “office” space that
Ms. Ahern just had to have to administer the Trust, especially with the piles and piles of documents
that Ms. Ahern had led this Court to believe that she had to manage in her role as trustee, Despite
painting this picture of the enormous amount of records, Ms, Abern has turned few records over
to Mr. Waid. Therefore, yet another lie, and more theft, from Ms. Ahern has been exposed.

Upon discovery of that Ms, Nounna was living in the townhome, thelandlord, realizing that
she had been lied to by Ms. Ahern, immédiately terminated the lease.

Mr. Waid has informed Attorney Powell that he intends to depose the landlord of the
townhome shortly and take her testimonyunder oath. Itisassumed that once completed Mr, Waid
will supplement his Report to this Court, which will further detail all of his findings in this regard.

In theinterim, Jacqueline and Kathryn, hereby request that this Court tack on all of the rent

pald for the townhome that had ZERO beneﬁt to the Trust as damages owed by Ms. Ahcrn to

them, andm turn treble thosa damaves since th1s was addltional fraud embezzlemént conversion,
and theft of funds that belonged to Jacqueline and Kathryn.

F. DAMAGES ASSOCIATED WITH NON PAYMENT OF ESTATETAXES

As Mr. Waid has detailed in his Report, in reference to payments of taxes, “It is undisputed
that no such quarterly payments were made by Ms. Ahern, as Trustee, from June 1, 2013 to
Jamary 31, 2015. None are reported or reflected in the Ahern Brief and no payments were
reported to be received by the IRS”. What does this all mean? Ttmeans that Ms. Ahern’s failare
to pay taxes that were obligated to be paid has further cansed damage to Jacgneline and Kathryn.

Mr. Waid's Repert further details the following:

On Friday afternoon April 10, 2015, just two (2} business days before the April 15th tax

deadline, the Trust was notified by the tax preparer/advisor engaged by Ms. Ahem,
Gammet and King CPAs, that the Trust 1) had underreported tnecome for 2013, 2) that

Page 19

6228

AAPP 64




THE RUSHFORTH FIRM, LTD.
Telephone: 702-255-4552 ( Fax: 702-255-467

P Box 371655
Las Vegas, Nevada 89137-1655

to

W Ny U e W

10

12
13
14
15

16

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

there was an estimated tax Hability for 2014 of $700,000, and 3} that Ms. Ahem had

distributed to herself all of her 35% share of prior years’ Trust income. With limited

options and limited time, the Trust paid the estimated liability as caleulated and estimated.

Theunderreporting of 2013 Trust income was verified with the IRS and in the process it

was discovered that the 2012 retirn was never filed by Ms. Ahem or the Trust. No

explanation has been provided or basis determined for the failure to abide by the Court’s
order to pay estimated quarterly taxes for any time peried, the failure to file areturn for

2012, or the underreporting of Trust income for 2013.

Asthis Court will cerfainly recall, on numerous oecasions Ms. Ahern’s previous counsel went
to great lengths to represent to this Court all of the fantastic work that Ms. Ahern was doing as
trustee. They made it a point to drill into this Court’s head, as well as Jacqueline and Kathryn, that
the allegations and concerns from Jacqueline and Kathyrn concerning Ms. Ahern’s failure to
properly perform her trustee duties were completely unfounded and untrue and painted a picture
that Ms. Ahern was doing everything perfectly as she should and was in confrol of all facets of the
Trust. Yet, despite all of the other issues, and having CPAs supposedly assisting her, Ms. Ahern
never filed any tax retirns and in turn now forces Mr. Waid to pick put up the rubble of her neglect,
which in turn chrecﬂy damages )‘acquehne and Lathry 1, since Mr. Waid has the obhgatmn as a
hablc and responsﬂ)lc partyin his capacltv astrustee, to ensure that the IRS obhwa‘aons of the Trust
are satisfied. As with every other false and fraudulent representation made by Ms. Abern that
continue to be exposed, the extent of the damage caused by Ms. Ahern while serving as “irustee”
and after her removal simply continue to compound for Jacqueline and Kathryn. As such,
Jaequeline and Kathr;m respectfully request that this Court award them damages related to tax
penalties and interest that they are now bearing the brunt iof.

As Mr. Waid notes, the Trust was always been a pass through entity for taxation purposes
with the beneficiaries paying the tax directly on the income that they receive, via their personal
returns. Ms. Ahern’s complete lack of doing her job as trustee in handling this issue, as well as her

unilateral stopping of payments to Jacqueline and Kathryn, has caused damage to Jacqueline and

Kathryn as they should have received their payments and then report them on their individual
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returns, as they had done since their grandmother’s passing in 2009.

G. PAYMENT OF WILL CONTEST SETTLEMENT PROCEEDS PATD FROM
JACQUELINFE’'S AND KATHRYN’S OWN FUNDS

As this Court will recall, on Janunary 7, 2015, Jacqueline and Kathryn and Ms. Ahern
stipulated to the dismissal of the Will Contest that Ms. Ahern had filed in regard to the LaétA will
and Testament of Marjorie T, Connell, which was executed by Mrs. Connell on January 7, 2008.
On the following day, January 8, 2015, this Court issued an order which confirmed the agreement
of the parties to the Will Contest, which included the requirement of Ms, Ahern’s payment of the
attorney fees and costs of Jaequeline and Kathryn to the tune of $75,000 which related to the Will
Contest.

Not only did it take nearly two months for the payment of the $75,000 to be made by Ms,
Ahern, but, based on information learned from My, Waid, it appearsthat Ms. Abern did not paythe
$75,000 obligation from her own funds, as was required under the settlernent agreement, but in

reality used the monies belonging to Jacqueline and Kathryn, which were to be held in the Trust

account, 1o the make the payment to them. Therefore, Ms. Abern wound up “paying” Jacquehne |~~~

and Kathryn with their own funds. This is simply terrible conduct on Ms. Ahern’s part and
constitutes further theft, embezzlement, and coﬁversi on of the monies belonging to Jacqueline and
Kathryn, which should alse be trebled.
; H. REALPROPERTIES “OWNED” BY MS. AHERN

Ms. Ahern transferred three real properties originally in her name, or her revocable trust's
name, the EAC Trust, to three separate trusts that she ereated, presumably “irrevocable” trusts.
The three properties as follows:

6105 Elton Avenue, Las Vegas, Nevada, APN 138-35-515-002

1008 Vineyard Vine Way, N. Las Nevada, APN 139-09-726-054

7232 Willow Brush Street, Las Vegas, APN 126-13-816-006
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As noted, Ms. Ahern transferred each of these properties into a separate trust that she
created. Attached as Exhibit “B” are the deeds for the all three properties, which are hereby
incorporated by this reference. Oninformation and belief, Ms. Ahern has nnilateral control over
each of the properties. This belief appearstobeconfirmed by Ms. Abern’s recent unilateral transfer
of the Elton Avenue Property from the “Elton Business Trust” to the “Elton Investment Group
LLC”, effectuating such transfer in her capacity as the trustee of the Elton Business Trust.
Interestingly enough, Ms. Ahern’s deed is dated May 13, 2015, yet ter signature, occurring in front
of notary in Washington County, Utah, did not apparently occur until June 3, 2015.

Further, oninformation and belief, itis believed that Ms, Ahern placed these propertiesinto

trusts as some sort of tax sirategy, the iIntegrity of which will likely want to be closely examined by

- the IRS given the fraudulent and deceitful actions that Ms. Ahern has taken in this matter,

Based on the undeniable damage caused to Jacqueline and Kathryn, they respectfully

request that this Court immediately issue an order stating, and directing, that the Mr. Waid shall

take unmedlate poss&ssmn of all three propertles as recovery for the SHns shll outstanding and

unrecovered from the Trust Oncc compl eled, itw ould be annapated thdt Mr Wald would then
liquidate those properties as recovery for the Trust.

For closing the discussion on this topic, there are two issues that require further axalysis.
One issue is the transferring entity whose fingerprints are all over these transfers into Trusts—.
Fidelity Capital. The second issue is the previously highlighted statement, discussed above, that
Ms. Ahern réquir‘ed an “office” to store the paperwork and documents associated with her role as
trustee.

As to Fidelity Capital, as this Court will readily remember, Fidelity Capital is nothing more
than a moving target. Ms. Ahern previously told this Court that Fidelity Capital held $500,000 of
Jacqueline and Kathryn's fands. In fact, she supplied a letter from Mr. M. Perel (with apparently

Mr. Perel being unable to include his full first name) on Fidelity Capital “letterhead” dated with a
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date of March 5, 2015 stating that Fidelity Capital was, in essence, holding $500,000 safely and
soundly for the Trust. This was included as Exhibit 14 to her Accounting Brief. This Court will
recall that upon learning of this information this Court immediately ordered the collection and
breturn of the $500,000 to the Trust account, which, as discussed above stll has ndt occurred. In
a shocking and sudden turn of events (stated with tongue firmly embedded in cheek), Mr, M. Perel
reversed his previous statements contained in the Mareh 5, 2015 letter and in a letter dated April
15, 2015 which was addressed to Ms. Ahern, Mr. Perel completely discredits his previous
statement, and in the process any credibility whatsoever, by claiming that Ms. Ahern has committed
fraud on Fidelity Capital and disavows that Fidelity Capital ever had the $500,000 n the first place.
In the April 15, 2015 letter, Mr. Perel states that “Due to your misrepresentations the proposed
Junding has been withdraon”.

To further illustrate the hoax that is being perpetrated on this Court, this Court may recall
that M. Perel was formerly Ms. Ahern’s attorney as well. In fact, as proof of this fact, attached as
Exlnb1t “C” and hereby mcorporatedbythls reference are letters from Mr Perel One letter isdated
J uly 10, 2012, whlle the other is also from I uly 10, 2012, judging b}, the date on the fax As this
Court can clearly see from such communications, Mr. Perel presented himself as Ms. Ahern’s legal

representative. These characters perpetually continue to linger in the shadows.

Such a drastic 18a degree turn might Jead a reasonable person to conclude that something
fraudulent is, and continues to be, occurring based on the $500,000 stll missing, with no
explanation from Ms. Ahern.

As 1o the second issue, please recall Ms. Ahern’s previous statement about her space issues
when she claimed the following:

The location where Eleanor currently lives does not have suifable space for Eleanor to

perform Trust husiness and store Trust records, so she rents an offtce at a cost of $1,750
per mornth.
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In sifting through the continual lies, Ms. Ahern would Iike this Court to believe that she needed to
rent a two bedroom townhome with Trust resources, assuredly consisting solely of Jacqueline and

Kathryn’s 65% share of the Trust, where just coincidentalty Ms. Nounna was found to be living in

-and the lease was subsequently terminated thereafter, despite the facts that she owned, and

continues to “own”, three separate properties and apparently none of the banker boxes of records
could be placed into any empty spaces in those locations.  That simply does not compute and
reconcile given that Ms. Abern is not apparently residing in any one of those properties. Isitalso
coincidental too that Ms. Ahern has steadfastly refused to inforrm this Court where her actual
physical residence is?

There are long established rules regarding Trust and Trustee’s fiduciary duties. Ms. Ahern
has broken all such well founded rules and by her conduct disqualified herself as a continual
beneficiary of the Trust. Ms. Ahern defranded her daughters, this Court, and the intent of the
Trust’s Settlors——her own parents. Whateverthe case, the fact of the matteris thatMs. Ahern must
understand that there are severe repercussions for her behavior in this matter. Jacqueline and
Kathryn remain confident that this C;)urt will i;;ninart ﬂxis lesson on Ms. Ahern \;ery éearly and very
loudly. The law and equity demand it. |

CONCLUSION

In addition to the relief previously requested in their underlying Motion, Jacqualine and
Kathryn hereby now seek additional relief from this Court, based on new information learned
from Mr. Waid, as follows:

1) The return of all “rent” paid by Ms. Ahern from the Trust for the “office space”
consisting of the 6975 Emerald Springs Lane, Las Vegas, Nevada 89113, plus the
trebling of such “rent™;

2) Directing that the three following properties:

6105 Elton Avenue, Las Vegas, Nevada, APN 138-35-515-002
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3)

1008 Vineyard Vine Way, N. Las Nevada, APN 139-09-720-054

7292 Willow Brush Street, Las Vegas, APN 126-13-816-006

be immediately seized by Fredrick P. Waid, in his capacity as the carrent serving
&ustee of “The W.N. Connell and Marjorie T. Connell Living Trust”, dated May 18,
1972; and

Ms. Ahern be directed to make a payment of the amount of $225,000 from her our
resources, or surcharged against her shares, asapplicable, representing the amount
of $75,000 stolen and converted from the Trust assets {(and in tarn trebled) for the
payment of the obligated amount of Ms. Ahern under the terms of the settlement of
the Will Contest relating to the Estate of Marjorie T. Connell, which was ratified, and

ordered, by this Court pursuant to its order dated January 8, 2015.

Of course, Jacqueline and Kathryn continue to reserve their right to file additional

supplements to their Moton, and seek additional remedies and damages, based on new

information discovered and in turn shared by Mr. Waid as his investigation and reporting continue. -

Respectfully submitted,

THE RUSHFORTH FIRM, LTD,

JOBEPHJ. POWELL
State Bar No. 8875
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RESIDENTIAL LEASE AGREEMENT

for

6975 Emerald Springs In
Las Vegas, NV 809113

{Pmper Acidress)
AZ %R0 P
1. This AGREEMENT is entered into this 72.0111; day of .- Qctober , 2014  between
Sharon R. Walker » "LANDLORD™) legal owner of the property throngh the Owner’s
BROKER, , ("BROKBR") and
Tenant's Name: Eleanor M. Rhern . Tepant's Name:
Tenant's Name: Tenant's Name:

(collectively, "TENANT"), which parties hereby agree {o as follows:
2. SUMMARY: The initial tents, charges and deposits ate as foliovws:

Total Received Balance Due

Axnount Prior to Occupancy .
Reat: From 11/01/2014 ,To 11/30/2014 & 1,750.00 % b 1,750.00
Security Deposit N3 1,750.00 § $ 1,750.00
Key Deposil $ 3 3
Admin Pee/Credit App Fec (Ncn~reﬁmdablﬁ) 3 50.00 § 50.60 §
Pet Deposit $ 500.00 § $ 500,00
Cleaning Deposit 3 250.00 $ $ 250,00
Last Month's Rent Security 3 - $
CIC Registration 3 $ %

 Utiiity Proration 3 3 - ¥

Sewer/Trash Proration 3 b $
Other Tast ponth Rent % 1,756.00 % $ 1,750.00
Other Ly & 3
Othey $ & 3
Other $ § %
TOTAL 5 £,050.00 % 50.00 % 6,900.00
(Any balance due prior to sccupancy fo be paid in CERTIFIED FUNDS)

3. ADDITIONAL MONIES DUE:

4, PREMISES: Landlord hereby leases to TENANT and TENANT hereby Jeases from Landlord, subject (o the terms
and conditions of the lease, the Premizes known and designated as €975 Emerald Spxings L, Las Vegas,
NV 89113 consisting of two bedrogm town hom (“the Premiges™.

5. TERM: The ferm bereof shall commence on Movenber 1, 2014 and costinne until

November 30, 2016 , for a total rent of § 42 ,000.00 , then on a manth-Fe-month basis

thereafier, until either party shall tcrmmatc the same by giving the ofher paﬁy thitty (30} days written notice
delivered by certified mail (Al caloulaion based on 30 day maonth}.

6. RENT: TENANT shall pay rent at the monihly rate of § 1.750.00 .in advance, on the __Ist  day
of every month beginning the ___1st  day of Degenbeax ,2014 and delinguent after
3 days . These is no grace period. If rent is definguent, # must be pazd inthe form of certified funds.

Residontial Lease Agrcenient Rev, 0512 Landlord Tenant {f 27 Tenang
Pape 1 of & Tenant Tenant
© 2012 Greser Las Vegas Associntion of REALTORS@ Properly: 6575 Emarald Springs In

Realty ONE Grarap, Jor, 10750 ¥ Chardeston i R1SE Lis Vagas, RY 391013 Fhoo; (FUZBYE-1221 Fax: 053335 6775 Eoea ™ Syringy
Préee Geogley Proxhuced with ZpFaonB by 2iplogix 18673 Fiiteen Wi Road, Frasey, FEIT0an 46026 yrenv2iol oguosm
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1 7. PLACE OF PAYMENTS: TENANT shall make all payments payable to sharon Walkeg ~
2 and shall mait such payinents to;
3 v S hand deliver such paymients to 3
4 ' during normat business hours.
5 |
6 8. ADDITIONAL FEES: 3
1 3
g A. EATLE FEES: In the event TENANT fails to pay remt when due, TENANT shall pay s late fee of
9 $ 50.00 plus$25.00 per day for each day after 3 __ days that the sum was due.

10

1t B. DISHONORED CHECKS: A charpe of $ 75.00 shall be jmposed for each dishongred

12 check made by TENANT fo LANDLORD. TENANT agrecs to pay zll rents, afl late fees, alf potice fres and all
13 costs to honor a returned check with certified funds. After TENANT has tendered a check which is dishonored,
14 TENANT hereby aprecs to pay all remaining payments inchiding rent due under this Agrecment by certified funds.
15 Any payments tendeted to LANDLORD thereafter, which are notin the form of certified funds, shall be treated as if
16 TENANT fajled fo make sald payment untd certificd funds ate received. LANDLUGRD presumes that TENANT is

17 aware of the criminal sanctions and penalties for Issuance of a check which TENANT knows is drawn wpon
18 insnfficient funds and which is tendered for the purpose of commmiiting a fraud upon a creditor.

19 '

20 C, ADDITIONAL RENT: All lafe fees and dishonored check charges shall be die when inourred and shall

21 become additional rent. Payments will he applied to charges which become rent in the oxder necumydated, All
22 unpaid charges or any fees owed by TEBNANT, including but o imited to notice fess, sttormey's fees, repair bills,
23 utilicy bills, landscapefpool repair and maintenance bills and CIC fives will became additional rent at the beginning
24 of the month aftey TENANT is billed. TENANTS faihure ta pay the full amount for a period may result in the
25 initiation of eviction proceedings. LANDLORIF'S acceptance of any kate fee or dishonored check fee shall not act as
26 a waiver of any dafault of TEMANT, nor as an extension of the date on which rent is dus. LANDLORD reserves the
27 right to exercise any other xights and remedies wnder this Agresment or as provided by taw.

29 9. SECURITY DEPOSITS: Upon exccution of this Agreement, TENANT shall depasit with LANDLORD as a
30 Scousdty Deposit the sum stated in paragraph 2. YENANT shall not apply tlre Secority Deposit o, or ta Jeu of,
31 rent. At any tme dusing the term of this Ageenent amd upon texmination of the tenancy by efther party for any - - —
32 reason, the LANDLORD sy claim, from the Security Deposit, sych amonnts due Landlord under this Agreement,
33 Any termination pror to the initial texm set forth in pargruph 5, or failure of TENANT to provide proper notice of
34 termimation, is a default in the payment of rent for the romainder of the lease tern, which rmay be offsct by the
35 Security Deposift. Purszant to NRS 118A.242, LANDLORD shall provide TENANT with a wntten, itemized
36 accounting of the disposition of the Security Deposit within thirty (30) days of teomiration, TENANT agrees, upon
37 termination of the tenancy, to provide LANDLORD with a forwarding address to prevent a delay in receiving the

gg accounting and any refond.

9

4¢ 10, TROST ACCOUNTS: BROKER shaH retafn all inferest earned, if any, on security deposits to offset
41 administration and bookkeeping fees.

42

43 11. EVICTION COSTS: TENANT shalt be charged an adniinisirative fee of § 575. 00 per eviction
44 attempt to offset the costs of eviction notices and proceedings. TENAMNT may be charged for service of legal
45 notices and all retated fets accordmg 1o actual costs 1ocurred.

46

47 12, CARDS AND KEYS: Upon execution of the Agreement, TENANT shall receive the following:

48 1 _ Doorkey(s) 1 Garage Transmittes(s) Othex{s)

40 1 Maitbox key(s) e Gate Card(s) Othet(s)

50 .. Loundry Room key(s) —__ Gate Transmifler(s) Ciher(s)

51 Tenant shall make a key depostt (¥f any) in the amount set forth in paragraph 2 npon execution of (his Agreement.,
52 The key deposit shalf be refunded within 30 days of Tenant's retum of all cards and/or keys to Landlord or
53 Landiord's BROKER.

54
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1 13, CONVEYANCES AND USES: TENANT shall not assign, sublet or transfer TENANT'S infercst, nor any part
2 fhereof, without prior written consent of LANDLORD. TENANT shall use the Premises for residential purposes
3 only and not for any commercial enterprise or for any purposc which is illegal. TRMANT shall not commit waste,
4 canse excessive noise, create a misancs or disturb others, )
5 o 2non han 3 E 4,
6
7
8

14. OCCUPANTS: QOccupants of the Premises shall be fimited to persons and shall be used solely for
hovsing accommodations and for no other purpose, AIE‘ IEPIESE; tiﬂ)at the following person(s) will Hve in the
Premises: Eleanor M. Akern S - § é e

9
10

11 15, GUESTS: The TENANT agceccs-fo-pay-the sunto: ¥

5256 perday Toreach-grest resaaining ol
12 W mg?he foreptingirno ovent-shallany-paestocmedn.on-the
13 ~Prenrses Tor ke than—— 30— days
14
15 16, UTELITIES: IESSER shall iomediately comect all ntilities and services of premises upor commencement of -
16 Jemse. LESSEE is to pay when due alt utilities and other charges in connection with LESSFE'S mdwidnal rcnled

17 premises. Responmblhty is deseribed as {T) for Tenant and (0) for Owner;

18 Blectricity T Trash ¥ = Phone T Other

19 Gas . T Sewer T Cable T Other

20 Water T Septic __nfa  AssociaionFees __ O

21

22 a. TEMNANT is responsible to covnect the followmg unlmcs TENANT'S mame: Blectxicity, Gas,

23 Water, Trash, Sewer, Phong, Cable [/,7;.-‘1 Tham 270V

24 b, LANDLORD will maintsin the conpection of rbe foiiowmg wtilities i1 LANDLORD's name and Dbifl

25 TENANT fox conneciton fees and use accanlingly:

26

27 . ¢, No additional phone or cable lines or outlets shall be oblaimed for fhe Premiises without the

28 LANDLORD's writlen consent. In the event of LANDIL.ORD's consent, TENAWNT shall be responsible for all

29 costs assodated with the additional lines or outlets,

30 d. If an alaom system exists on the Premises, TENANT shall obtam the serxm:es of,nm alarm services
© 317 T T dompairy and shall payall costs associated there®idis = LT TR e e T e

3% e. Oiber: ufa

33

34

35 17. PEST NOTICE: TENANT undersiands that varjous pest, rodent aod insect speeies (collectively, "pests™) exist in
36 Southern Nevada. Pests may include, but are not limited to, scorpions (approximately 23 species, mcluding bark
37 scorpions), spiders (ncluding black widow and browa recluse), bees, snakes, ant, termites, rats, mize and pigeons.
38 - The existence of pests may vary by season and location. Within thirty (30) days of ocenpancy, if the Premises has
39 pests, LANDLORD, at TENANT's request, will arrange for and pay for the initial pest control spraying. TENANT
40 agrees to pay for the monthiy pest contml spraying fees. The names and numbers of pest controf providers are in the
41 yellow pages under "PEST." For more information ot pesis and pest control providers, TENANT should contact the
42 State of Nevada Division of Agrealiore at www.agrlnv.gov.

44 18, PETS: No pet shall be on or about the Premises at any tpie without written permission of LANDLORD. In the
45 event TENANT wishes to have a pef, TERANT will complete an Application for et Approval. Shosld written
A6 peomission be granded for occopancy of the designaied pet, an additional security deposit in the amownt of $ 500

47 . will be required and paid by TENANT ia advance subject to deposit tetns e conditions aforementioned. In the
48 event written permission shall be granted, TENANT shall be sequired to procure and provide 1o Landlord wrilten
49 evidence that TENANT has obiained such insurance as may be available against property damage to the Premises and
50 Hability to thixd party injury. Bach sach policy shall bame LANDELORD avd LANDLORD'S AGENT as additional
51 insureds, A copy of each such poticy shall be provided to Landlord or Landlord's BROXER priot to any pets being
52 allowed within the Premiises. If TENANT obtains a pet without written permission of LANDLORD, TENANT agrees
53 to pay an jmumediate fine of $300. TENANT agrees to indemnify LANDLORD for muy and all Hability, loss and
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damages which LANDLORD may suffer as a rcsult of any auimal in the Premises, whether or not written
penmission was granted.

19, RESTRICTIONS: TENANT shall not keep or permit fo be kept in, on, or about the Premises: waterbeds, boats,

carnpers, trafiers, mobile homes, recreational or commercial velicles of any non-operative vehicles exeept as
follows: nfa

‘TENANT shall not conduct nor permif any work on vehicles on the premises.

20. ALTERATIONS: TENANT shall make no alterations to the Premises withont LANDLORD's written consent. All
alterations or improvements made to the Premises, shall, unless otherwise provided by written agreement between
pacties hereto, become the property of LANDLORD aud shall remain upon the Premises and shall constitute a
fixture permanently affixed to the Premises. In the event of auy alterations, TENANT shall be tesponsible for
restoring the Premises fo its original condition if requested by LANDLORD or LANDLORD's BROKER.

21, DEFAULY: Railure by TENANT to pay rent, perform any obligation wnder this Agreement, or comply with any
Association Governing Documents (if any), or TENANT's engagement it activity probibited by this Agreement, or
TENANTS fathire to comply with any and zil applicable laws, shall be congidered a defanlt hereunder. Upon
default, LANDLORD may, at its option, temminate ihis temancy wpon giving proper notice. Upon defauit,
LANDLORD shall issue a proper itemized statement to TEMANT noting the amount owed by TENANT.
LANDLORD may pursue any aud 2lf fegal and equitable remedies available.

22, ENFORCEMENT; Any failare by LANDLORD to enforce the terms of this Agreement shall nof constitute a
waiver of said terms by LANDLORD. Acceptance of rent dus by LANDLORD after any defanlt shall not be
construed fo waive any right of LANDLORD of affect any notice of ferinination or sviction.

23, NOTICE OF INTENT TO VACATE: TENANT shall provide notice of TEMANTs miention to vacate the
Premises at the expiration of this Agreement. Snch nofice in wrifing and shall be provided
LANDLORD prior to the first day of the Inst month of the Tease term set forth In section S of this Agxeement.
_ Tnno event shatl notice be less Fhan 30 days priox to the expiradion of the term of this Apreement, In the event
TENANT fails to provide such potice, TENANT shall be deemed to be holding-over on & month-to-month basis
~ unit 30 days- after sisdh-notice, Dufing a holdover not-authorized by LANDLORD, rent shall mcreave-by 7=~
10.000 %

24, TERMINATION: Upon fermination of {he tesancy, TENANT shall suwender and vacate the Premises and shall
remove 2ny and all of TENANT'S property, TENANT shall retum keys, personal property and Premises to the
LANDLORD in pood, clean and sanitary condition, normal wear excepted. TENANT will allow LANDLORD to
inspect the Premises in the TENANT's presence to verify the condition of the Preroises.

25, EMERGENCIES: The name, address and phone mumber of the party who will handle maintenance or essential
services emergencies on hehalf of the LANDLORD is as follows: Sharon lkex 11; {702) 7682645

26. MAINTENANCE: TENANT shail keep the Premises in a clean and good condition. TENANT shall immediately
repott to the LANDLORD any defect or problem pertaining to plembing, witing or workmansbip on the Premises.
TENANT agrees to notify LANDLORD of any water leakage andfor damage within 24 houss of the ocoumence.
TENANT understands that TRNANT may be held responsible for any water andfor mold damage, including the
casty of remediation of such damage. TENANT shall be responsible for any MINCR repairs necessary ta the
Premises up o and including the cost of § 50.00 . TENANT agrees to pay for all repairs,
replacements and mahitenance required by TENANT's misconduct or negligence or that of TENANT's family, pets,
licensees and guests, incfuding but not limited to any damage done by wind or ram cavsed by beaving windows
open andfor by overflow of water, or stoppage of waste pipes, or any other damage to appliances, carpeting or the
building in general. At LANDLORD's option, such charges shall be paid immedialely or be rogarded as additional
rent to be paid no fater than the next monthly payment date foBowing such xepais.
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32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41

43

46
47

49
50
51
52

[

a. TENANT shall chaoge filters in the heating and air conditioning systems at least omce every month, at
TENANT' own expense, LANDLORD shall maintain the heating and &t condifioning systems and provide for
major repairs, However, any repairs {o the heating or cooling system caused by dirty filters due to TENANT
neglect will be the responsibility of TEMNANT.,

b. TENANT shall replace dll broken glass, regardless of cause of damage, st TENANT's expense,

c. In the case of Jandscaping andfor a swinmming pool being maiatained by a contractor, TENANT agrees to
cooperate with the Fandscape andfor pool contractor in z satisfactory manner. LANDLORD provided landscaping
maintenance is not (0 be construed 25 & waiver of any responsibility of the TENANT to keep and maintain the

. landseaping and/or shrubs, frecs and sprinkler system in good condition, Tn the event the landscaping is not being
maintained by a Contractor, TENANT shall yogintain lawns, shrubs and trees. TENANT shall water all Iawns,
shrubs and frees, mow the lawns on a regular basis, txita the tees and fertilize fawns, shrubs and frees. If
TENANT fails {0 majntain the Iandscaping it a satisfactary mannet, LANDLORD may have the landscaping
muaintained by a landscaping contractor and charge TENANT with the acfval cost. Sald cosis shall immediately
become additional rent.

d. LANDLORD shall be responsible for all major elecirical problems that are not cansed by TENANT,
e. TENANT shalt -OR- _X_shall not have carpets professionally ¢leaned upon move out If cleaned,
TENANT shall present LANDLORD or LANDLORYs BROEER with a receipt from a reputable carpet cleaning

company,

£ There . s -OR- X isnet s ool contractor whose neme and phone number are as follows:

TIf there is 1o such contractor, TRNANT agrees to maintain the pool, if any. TENANT apgrees to majntain the
water level, sweep, clean and keep in zood condition. If TENANT fails to maintain the pool in a satisfactory
menner, LANDLORD may have the pool maintained by a licensed pool service and charge TENANT with the
actual cost. Said cosis shall becote additional rent.

27, ACCESS: TENANT agrees fo grant LANDLORIY the right fo enter the Premises 2 il reasonable fimes and for all
reasonable purposes including showing fo prospective lessees, buyers, appraisers or nsnrance agents or other
business thersin as requested by LANDLORD, and for BROXER's periodic maintenance reviews. If TENANT fails
to keep scheduled appointments with veadors to mizke necessary/required repaixs, TENANT shall pay for any
additional charges mcomred which will then become part of the next month's rent and be considered addifional rent.
TENANT shall not deny LANDLORD bisfher rights of teesonable cafry vo the Premises. LANDILORD shall have
the right to enter in case of emergency and other sithations as specifically allowed by law. TANDLORD agrees to
give TENANT twenty-four {24) hours nofification for entry, except In case of emergency.

28. INVENTORY: It is agreed that the following inventory is now on said premises. {Check if present; cross ont if
absent.) .

X _ Refrigerator Intercom System _____ SpaRBquipment
X _ Stove X Alarm System : Auto Speinklers .
X Microwave Trash Compactor Anfo Garage Openers
X _ Disposal Ceiling Fans BBQ .
X Dishwasher Water Conditioner Equip, Solar Screens
X __ ‘Washer - Floor Coverings . Pool Bquipment

X Dryer _ X _ Window Coverings Other

TENANT assomes responsibility for fhe care and nmintenance thereof.
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30,

3L

32.

¥

ASSOCIATIONS: Shoutd ihe Premises described herein be a pat of # common interest copmunity, hiomeowsers
association planned upit development, coadominium development ("the Association™) or such, TENANT hereby
agrees to abide by the Governing Documents (INCLUDING Declarations, Bylaws, Articles, Rules and Regulations)
of such project and further agrees to be responsible for any fites or penalties levied as aresutt of faihues to do so by
himseif, his family, Hcensees or guests. Noncompliance with the Governing Docoments shall constifute a violation
of this Agreement. Unless billed directly to TENANT by the Association, such fines shall be considered ss an
addition to rent and shall be due aleng with the next monthly payment of rent. By initialing this paragraph,
TENANT acknowledges receipt of 4 vopy of the applicable Governing Docatnents. LANDLORD, ut LANDLORD's
expense, shall provide TENANT with any additions to such Goveming Documents as they become available.
LANDLORD may, at its option, with 30 days nofice o TRNANT, adopt additiona! reasonsble xules and regulations
soverning tse of the Premises and of the common areas (if any). (& 5 11 11 1 1

INSURANCE: TENANT X is -OR-__ is not reqnired to purchase renter's insurance. LANDLORD and BROKER
shall be named as additional interests on any sach policy. LANDLORD shatl not be lizble for any damage or
injury fo TENANT, or any othet person, to any property occuming on the Premises of any part thereof, or in

_comraon areas Hiereof. TENANT agrees to indemnify, defend and hold LANDEORD harmless from any claims for

damages. TENANT understands that LANDLORD's tusurance does not cover TERANT's personal property. Even
if it is pot a requirement of this Agreement, TENANT nnderstands that LANDLORD bighly recommends that
TENANT purchase renter's insurance.

ILLEGAL ACTIVITIES PROHIBITED; TENANT is aware of the follewing: Tt is a misdemeancr 0 commit or
waintain a public frisance a5 defined in NRS 202.450 or to allow any Imilding or bout to be nsed for a public
nujsance. Amy person, vho willfully refuses to remave such 2 nuisance when there s a legat duty to do so, is guilty
of a misdemsanor, A public nuisance may be reported to the Tocal sheriff's depariment. A violation of building,
bealth or safety codes or regnlations may be reported o the govemment enfity in our local avea such as the code
enforvement division of the ¢enntyfcity government or the local health ar bnilding departmients.

ADDITIONAL RESPOMSIBILITYES:

3. TENANT may install or replace screcns al TENANT's own expense. Solar screcn installation requires wiitten
permission from LANDLORD. LANDLGRY is notrespansible for mabitainng stygens. .~ & -

b. With the exception of electric cooking devices, outdoor cooking with portable barbecning equipment is
prohibited within ten (10} feet of any overhang, balcony or opening, ugless the Premises is # detached single
family heme. ‘The storage and/for use of any barbecuing equipment is prohibited indoars, above the first floor and
within five (5) feet of any exterior tndding wall. Adult supervision is reguired at all times the barbecue
equipment is gensrating heat, .

c, The Premises X have -OR- __have uot been freshly painted. ¥ not froshly painted, the Premises
X have ~-OR- __ have not been touched up. TENANT will be responsible for the costs for any holes or
excessive dirt or smudges that will requite repainting.

d. TENANT agrees to coordinate transfer of villities to LANDLORD or BROKER nolessthan . ¥
business days of vacating the Premises. : ;

&. Locks may be replaced or re-keyed at the TENANT'S expense provided TENANT informs LANDLORD and
provides LANDLORD with a1 workable key for each new or changed lock.
ol 6} tl’ht’z

f. TENANT may conduet a rsk assesstent or fnspection of the Premise for the presence of{lead-based paint
andfor lead-based painf bazards at the TENANTs expense for a period of ten days after execntion of this
agreement. Such assessment or Mspection shatl be conducted by a certified lead-based paint professional. If
TENANT for any reason fails fo conduct snch an assessment or Inspection, then TENANT shail be deented to
have elected to lease the Premises “as is" and to have walved this contingency. If TENANT condncts such an

assessment or inspection and detsrinines that Jead-based paint deficiericies and/or hazards exist, TENANT will
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Page 6 of ¥ TFenant Tenant
@ 2012 Greater Las Vegas Association of REALTORS® Properéy; 5975 Emexald Springs Im

Proshread with ZipFosrdd by viplogit. 18070 Fitaen Wi Read, Fiaser, ichigar €8006  wyriraiologbccom 975 Emersid

6241

AAPP 77




N=- R e R s

notify LANDLORD i writing and provide a copy of the assessment/inspection report. LANDLORD wyill then
have ten days to elect to cotrect sweh deficiencies and/or hazards ar to terminate this agreement, In e event of
termination under this paragraph, the securify deposit will be refunded fo TEMANT. (If the property was
coustructed prior to 1978, refer to the attached Lead-Based Paint Disclosure}

g TENANT may display the flag of the United States, made of cloth, fabric or paper, from a pole, statf orina
window, and in accordance with 4 USC Chapter 1. LANDLORD may, at ity option, with 30 days notice to
TENANT, adopt addilional reasonable rules and regnlations governing the display of the flag of the United States.

h, TENANT may display politieal signs subject to any applicable provisions of law governing the posting of
palitical signs, and, if the Premises ate located within a CIC, the provisions of NRS 116 and any goveming
docurzents related 1o the posting of political signs, All political signs exhibited wmst not be larger than 24 inches
by 36 inches. LANDLORD may 1ot exhibit any pelitical sign on the Premises unless the tenaat consents, in
writing, to the exhibition of the political sign. TRNANT may exhibit as muemy polifical signs as desired, but may
nat exhibit mese than one political sign for ench candidate, political pacty or ballof question.

33, CHANGES MUST BE IN WRITING: No changes, modifications or amenidment of this Agreement shall be vatid '
or binding wnless such changes, modifications or amendment are In writing and signed by each party. Such changes
shall take effect affer thirty days notice to TENANT.

34, CONFLICTS BETWEEN LEASE AND ADDENDUM: In cuse of conflict between the provisions of an
addendum and any other provisions of this Agreement, the provisions of the addendwm shall govern.

35, ATTORNEY'S FEES; In fhe event of any const action, the prevailing party shall be entitfed o be awarded against
the losing party all costs and expenses inturred thereby, including, buf not fimited to, reasonable attorney's fees and
costs.

36. NEVADA LAW GOVERNS: This Apreement iz executed and intended to be parformied in fhe Siate of Nevada in
the county where the Premises ave located and the Jaws of the State of Nevada shall govern its interpretation wnd
effect.

Tl T e e S et v ends e

37. WAIVER: Nothing confained in this Agreernent shall be constried as waiving any- of the LANDLORD's or
TENANTS rights under the laws of the State of Nevada.

38, PARTIAL INVALIDITY: In the event thar anv proviston of this Agreement shall be held imvalid or
wnerforcealile, sucl ruling shall not affect in apy respect whatsoever the validity or enforceahility of the remainder
of this Agreement.

39, VIOLATIONS OF PROVISIONS: A single violation by TENANT of any of the provisions of this Agreement
shall be deemed a material breach and shall be canse for termination of this Agreement. Unless otherwise provided
by the law, proof of any viclation of this Agreement shal} not require cominal cotreiction Lot shall be by a
preponderance of the evidence, ’ '

40. SIGNATURES; The Agreement is accepted and agreed to joinfly and severally. The wmdersigned have sead this
Agreement and wnderstand and agree to all provisions (hereof and further acknowledge that they have received a
copy of this Agtecment. '

41. LICENSEE DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST: Purseact to NAC 645.640, n/a
is a licensed real estate agent In the State(s) of n/a , and has the following mterest, direct
or indirect, in this transaction: [| Principal (LANBLORD or TENANT) ~OR- [ family relationship or business
interest: afs .
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Page 7 of § Tenant Teaont

© 2012 Greater Las Vegas Association ¢f REALTORS® Property: 6975 Emerald 8Springs In

Procectdwitn BpFomrd by Bploghc 1867D Filsan toks Road, Fraser, Mihlgan 43006 yrew dok pobopom. 6915 Bmerald
6242

AAPP 78




I

45. ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 1) . Tenant reserves the right to buyout
prior to lease explration date with a thirty({30% day writhken notice to

1

2

3 lzndlord and a penalty fee of one-month rent (51,7503,

4 2. 5100 of the §250 Cleaning Deposit will ba non—-refundable;
5 3) . Tenant shall abide by ali HOA Rules & RaLtions
&
1
8
9

4%, Any HOA/parking fines related to temant's ocgupancy or tenant's guests

will be paid by tenant.

5}, All repairs/improvements over $50 to be aunthorized by landlord/owner.

6). Tenant is aware this is an owner managed propexrty and all communication

‘ 10 shall be betyeen tepant and Sharon Walker who is the owner/landioxd.
11

12
13
14
15
16
17 -
18
15
20 : Hiine Fi30pan
2] Bharon R. Walker . ﬁ% FPEL xéz AILT 2 OC?} 3.2 P’/
22 LANDLORD/OWNER OF RECORD NAME . 'IEHE‘M 3 SI{‘NATURP S DATB e
23 Print Name; Eleanor M. phern
24 Phone!
z5
26 :
27 MANAGEMENT COMPANY (BROKER) NAME TENANT'S SIGHATURE DATE
28 . Print Name:
29 Phone:
30
31 By
32 Authopzed AGENT for BROKER SIGNATURE DATE TENANTS SIGHNATURE DATE
33 Print Name:
g; [ REALTOR® Phone:
36 - . . .
37 TENANTS SIGNATURE i DATE
38 Print Mame:
39 Phone:
40
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LEASE ADDENDUM FOR DRUG FREE HOUSING SR

In consideration of the execation or rcnewal of 3 lcase of the dwelling wnit uienﬁﬁad in the lease, Landlord and
Tenant agree as follows:

1.  Tenant, any member of Tenant’s household, or a guest or othcr person nnder Tepant’s control shall not
engage in criminal activity, including drug-related criminal activity, on or near the subject leasehold
prergses, “Drug-related criminal activity” means {he dlegal manufacture, sale, distuibufion. uss or
possession wifh infent to manufacture, sell, distribute, or use, of conirolled substance (as defined in
section 102 or the Contyolled Substance Acl, 21 TU.S.C. 802).

2. Tenant, any member of the Tenant’s household, or a guest or other person under Tenant's control, shall
not engage in any act intended to facilitate eriminal activity, including drug-related ctiminal activity, on
or near the subject leasehold premises.

3. Tenamt or members of the household +will not permit the divelfing unit fo be used for or to facilitate
criminal activity, including drug—related csiminal activity, regardless of whether the individual engaging
in such activity is g member of the household or a guest.

4, Tenant or member of the household will not engage in the manyfactire, sale or distdibution of itlegal
drugs at any Jocation, whether on or hear the subject leasehold premises or otherwise,

5.  Tenant, any member of the Tenant’s household, or a guest or other persor: under Tenant's contro} shall
not engage m acis of violence, Including, but not limited to the unlawfui discharge of firesans, o1 or near
the subject leaschold pretmises,

6. VIOLATION OF THH ABOVE PROVISIONS SHALL BE A MATERIAL VIOLATION OR THE ‘
"7 LEASE AND GOGD CAUSE FOR TERMINATION OF TENANCY. A single viclation of any of the ~ ~
provisions of the addendum shall be deemed a serious violation and a material noncompliance with the
lease, Tt is understood and agreed that & single violation shall be cause for termination of the lease. Unless
othenwise provided by law, proof of wiolation shall not require criminal conviction, but shall be by a
preponderance of the evidence.

7. In case of conflict between the provisions of this addendmn and any other provisions of the lease, the
provisions of the addendum shall govern.

8. This lease addendum incorporated jnto the lease executed or remewed this day between Landlord and
Tenant.

Property Adddress 6975 Emeraid Springs In, las Vegas, WV 85113

Agent/Landiord Tenant z?.;,f;e,ém Eal s /%j’/iﬁf?
Sharon R, Walker Rleanor M. Ahern

Company Tenant

Owner T'enant

Sharen R. Halkex

Date Dute_{2) o Fotieis, 31’{, Ao/

Lease Addendum for Drug Free Housing Rev. 10/07 ©2007 Greater Las Vegas Association of AEALTORS®
Realty ONE Group, Inc, 10750 W Chadeston Blvd #1820 Tag Wegas, Ivy 89135
Phone: (F02)898-{221 Pax: {702}405-3359 Pefer Geosgiey 6975 Brnerald.
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SMOKE DETECTOR AGREEMENT

This Agreement entered into the __30th  day of Octobar , 2014 befween

Sharon B, Walker , Landlord
(by and through Landlord's Agent), and gleancr M. Ahern
, Tenant.

It consideration of their mutnal prorises, Landiord and Tenant agtee as follows:
1. ‘Tenant is fenting from Landlord the premises at 6975 Emerald Springs In, Las
Vagas, NV 89113 ,

2. This agreement is an addendum and part of the rental agreement and/or lease between
Landlord and Tenant,

3. 'The premises ate squipped with smoke detection device(s).

Xt is agreed that Tenant will test tho smoke detector within one hour afier ocenpancy and
inform Landlord or hisfher Agentimmediately if delector(s) is not working propealy.
5. Itis agreed that Tenant will be responsible for testing smoke alarm(s) at Ieast once every week
by pushing the "push 1o test” button on the detector for about five (5) seconds. To be operating
properly, the alarm will sonnd when the buttost is pushed.
Tenant tnderstands that said smoke detector(s) is z battery operated wnit and it shall-be. -~ -« oo
Tenant's responstbility o instre that the battery is fn operating condition at alt times. If after
replacing battery, any smoke defector(s) will not operate or has no sound, Tenant must inform
Landlord or his/her Agent immediately in writing.
7. Landlord and his/her Agent tecommend that Tengnt provides and maiatains a fire extinguisher
on the premises.

&

8. The mndersigned have read the above agreement and tuderstand and agree to all provisions
thereof and further acknosvledge that they have received a copy of said agreement.

/{J/JWZ %Jw e
TENANT

LANDILORD/AGENT
Sharon R, Walker - Eleanox M. Bhern
TENANT
Smoke Detector Agreement Rev, 02/08 © 2008 Greater Las Yepas Assoclation of REALTORS®
Realty ONE Group, Ine, 10750V Chacleston Blvd #{80 Las Vegas, NV 59135
Flione: (702)338-12x1 Fax: {707405-3359 Peter Georgier 8975 Enzerald

Produsedwill ZipFom® by dipt.ogh 18070 Sticean Mils Road, Fraser, fichgan 48026  snanezipl ogixcom
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EXHIBIT “B”
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nst #: 201 2123100032594
Feon: $18.00 N/C Fee: $0.00

{/ \ RPTT: $456.45 Ex #
N P ' 123112012 02:0%:22 BFM
Docuraent Prepared by: 5 Receipt # 1440694
Requestor:
When recorded, please return to: FIDELITY CAPITAL
Fidelity Capital fecorded By: TAH Pgn: 3
8635 W. Sahara, #80 ' _ DEBBIE CONWAY
Las Vegas, NV 89117-5858 CLARK COUNTY RECORDER

Until a change is requested, all tax statements
Shall be sent to the following address:

Fidelity Capital
8635 W. Sahara, #30
Las Vegas, NV 89117-5858 -

Pt

Assessors Parcel No: 139-09—72(;65’4 T File No:

GRANT, BARGAIN, AND DEED SALE

KNOW BY ALL THESE PRESENTS THAT for the valuable: consideration of Eighty Nine
Thousand Three Hundred Twenty-Four dollars ($ 8@,324..;00) and other good snd valuable
consideratian, the receipt and sufficiency of which is berehy acknowledgad,  Fleanor Alern- e o o |, e

of __6105 Elton Avenue, Las Vepas, NV 89107 _ (hereinafter referred te as the “Grantor™), does

hereby grant, bargain, and sell unto __Vinevard Vine BT of 1008"§ineyard Vine Way, N. Las
Vepas, NV 89032  (hereinafter the “Grantee™), whether one or more, thefi"o]lpwing lands and

property, together with all improvements located thereon, lying in the County; of Clark, State of
Nevada, to-wit:

See property description attached hereto as “Exhibit A™.

Prier instrument reference: Tempo-Unit 4 Plat Book 96, Page 69, Lot 214 Block
GGEOID: PT N2 SE4 SEC 09 20 61, of the Public Records of the County Clerk of Clark County,

Nevada.

Subject to (1) all general and special taxes for the current fiscal year, and {2) all covenants,

conditions, restrictions, restorations, right, rights of way and easements now of record.
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TOGETHER with all fenements, hereditaments and appurtenances, including easements and
water rights, if any, hereto belonging or appertaining, and any reversions, remainders, rents,

issues or profits thercof.

Deea. 3% 2012 %Mﬁg@z #

Date Eleanor Abern

STATE OF NEVADA
COUNTY OF CLARK

This instrument was acknewledged before me
on Tugcombnec 2% 01D

Signature £ rdd o M ' “
Ndftary Public”

My Commission Expires: Z_l o ’ e
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STATE OF NEVADA
DECLARATION OF VALUE

1. Assessor Parcel Number(s)
a. 139-09-720-054

b.

c.

d

2, Type of Property:

a. Vacant Land b. Single Fam. Res, FOR RECORDERS OPTIONAL USE ONLY
¢| ]Condo/Twnhse d.f §2-4Plex Book Page:

e] 1Apt Bldg £] ]| CommV/indl Dare of Recording:

g.]_| Agricultoral b - Mobile Homr: Notes:

Other = K .
3.a. Total Value/Sales Price 6F P‘ropeﬁy 3 89,324.00

b. Deed iny Lieu of Foreclosure Golyi¢value of property { }
¢. Transfer Tax Value: . 1 892245, 00
d. Real Property Transfer Tax Due o $ 45645

4. If Exemption Claimed:
a. Transfer Tax Exemnption per NRS 375 090 Seetion
b. Explain Reason for Exemption; : :

5. Partial Interest: Percentage being transferred; %.

The undersigned declares and acknowledges, underpenahy of pefjury, pursuant to NRS 375060

and NRS 375.110, that the information provided is correct to the bestof their information and beljef,
and caf be supported by documentation if called tpon to substanfifté-thic information provided herein.
Furthermore, the parties agree that disallowance of any claimed exemptien, or other determination of
additional tax due, may result in a penalty of 10% of the tax due plus interest at1%% per month. Pursuant

to NRS 375.030, the Buyer and Seller shall be jointly and severally liable for ary-additional amount owed.

Signature 1 Zmﬁ é%ﬁﬁi Capacity:

Signature Capacity:

SELLER {GRANTOR) INFORMATION BUYER {GRANTEEY INFORMATION
(REQUIRED) (REQUIRED)

Print Name: Eleanor Ahemn Print Name: Vineyard Vine BT

Address:6105 Elton Avenus . Address: 1008 Vineyard Vine Way

City: Las Vegas City: Las Veqas

State: NV Zip: 89107 State: NV Zip:89032

COMPANY/PERSON REQUESTING RECORDING (Reguired if not seller ox buver)

Print Wame: Fidelity Capital Escrow #

Address: 8635 W. Sahara, #80

City: Las Vegas State:NV Zip: 89117-5858

AS A PUBLIC RECORD THIS FORM MAY BE RECORDED/MICROFILMED
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Inst# 201212310003283
Feea: $18.00 N/C Fge: $0.00

% A RPTT: $478.40 Ex #
Receipt #: 1440594
Requestor:
‘When recorded, please retumn to: FIDELITY CAPITAL
Fidelity Capital Recorded By: TAH Pga: 3
8635 W, Sahara, #80 ' DEBBIE CONWAY

Las Vegas, NV 891175858 A CLARK COUNTY REGORDER

Until 2 change is requested, all tax statements
Shall be sent te the following address:

Fidelity Capital
8635 W. Sabara, #80
Las Vegas, NV 89117-5858 ..

Assessors Parcel No: 126—13—816—0(16::;; : File No:
GRANT, BARGAIN, AND DEED SALE

KNOW BY ALL THESE PRESENTS THAT for the valuable consideration of Ninety Three
Thousand Nine Hundred Twenty-Four doliars ($93.924.00) and other good and valuable

" consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hercby acknowledged, _ Blesnor M. .

Abhern  of 6105 Elton Avenue, Las Vegas, NV 89197 {hﬁreinafzer referred to as the
“Grantor™), does hereby grant, bargain, and sell unte _ Willow Bru§h‘BT of _ 7232 Willow
Brush Street, Las Vegas, NV 89166 _ (bercinafter the “Grantee™), whether one or more, the
following lands and property, together with all improvements loeated ﬁlereqn;_ Iying in the
County of Clark, State of Nevada, to-wit: -

See property description attachied hereto as “Exhibit A”.
Prior instrument reference: Cliffs Edge POD 115, 116 & 117 Unit 3B, Flat Book 132,
Page 76, Lot 105, Block F, GEOID: PT S2 SE4 SEC 13 19 59, of the Public Records of the

County Clerk of Clark County, Nevada

Subject to (1) all general and special taxes for the current fiscal year, and (2) all covenants,

conditions, Testrictions, restorations, right, rights of way and easements now of record.
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TOGETHER with all tenements, hereditaments and appurteniances, including easements and

water rights, if any, hereto belonging or appertaining, and any reversions, remainders, rents,

issues or profits thereof,

Date

STATE OF NEVADA
COUNTY OF CLARK

This instrument was acknewledged before me
on ! kg 24 \bﬂ.{ a?-g !ZOQZ‘ .
by E . 3

Wotary Public’
My Comission Expires: ZI}U“LP

6251

Eleanor M. Ahem

Dol rbeds L P i A\ e b
AL

JENNIE M. PADILLA
'} Notary Public State of Nevada

o S No. 12-8623-1

My Appt. Exp, Aug. 16, 201

------------
Ty

YTy
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STATE OF NEVADA
DECLARATION OF VALDE

1. Assessor Parcel Number(s)

a. 126-13-816-006

b.
c.
d.
2. Type of Property:
a] | vacantLand  b[/] Single Fam. Res. FOR RECORDERS OPTIONAL USE ONLY
c. Condo/Twnhse 4. ' 2-4 Plex Book Page:
el |Apt Bldg £ | Comm'VInd'i Date of Recording:
e.l | Agricultural h. . Mohile Home Notes:
Other ' 2
3.2, Total Value/Sales Priceof? Fmpert} $ 93,024.00
b. Deed in Lieu of Foreclosure @n}}» {valire of property ( )} g
c. Transfer Tax Value: S92 24 09
d. Real Property Transfer Tax Due .. "~ $479.40

. If Exemption Claimed:
a. Transfer Tax Exemption per NRS 375. 090. Section
b. Explain Reason for Exemption:

5. Partial Interest: Percentage being transferred:  %:
The undersigned declares and acknowledges, under penalty aof perjury, pursuant to NRS 375.060
and NRS 375.110, that the information provided is correct to the bestof their information and belief,
and can be suppcited by documeniition if called upon to- substanﬁ.ite the information provided herein. =~ - e
Furthermore, the parties agree that disallowance of any claimed exemption, or other determingtion of
additional tax due, may result in 2 penalty of 10% of the tax due plus interest at;] % per month. Pursuant
ta NRS 375050, the Buyer and Seiler shail be jointly and severally liable for.mfy:additionai amount owed.

Signatute /_C%MMEZ—_.* Capacity: éj/)

Signature Capacity:

SELLER (GRANTOR) INFORMATION BUYER (GRANTEE} INFORMATION
(REQUIRED) (REQUIRED)

Print Name: Eleanar M. Ahem Print Name: Willow Brush BT

Address:8105 Elton Avenus Address: 7232 Willow Brush Sireet

City:Las Vegas City: Las Vegas

State: NV Zip: 88107 State: NV Zip:85166

COMPANY/PERSON REQUESTING RECORDING {Required il not seller or buver)

Print Name: Fidelity Capital Esctow #

Address: 8635 W, Sahara, #80

City: Las Vegas State:NV Zip: 88117-5858

AS A PUBLIC RECORD THIS FORM MAY BE RECORDED/MICROFILMED
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Inet#: 20130608-0000773
Fees: $18.00 N/C Feeo: $0.00
RPTT: $459.00 Ex: #

06/08/2015 08:58:00 AM
APN.: 138-35-515-002 Receipt # 2450149
) Requesior:
File No: 116-2485987 (C0) . FIRST AMERICAH TITLE INSURA
RP.T.T.: $459.00 C Recorded By: OSA Pge: 3
' DEBBIE CONWAY
GLARK COUNTY RECORDER
When Recorded Mail To: Mall Tax Statements To:
ELTON INVESTMENT GROUP LLC
1818 INDUSTRIAL ROAD 101

LAS VEGAS, NV 85102

" GRANT, BARGAIN and SALE DEED

FOR A VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged,

Eleanor C. Ahemn, Trustee oivthé ELTON Business Trust, dated December 21,2011, who
acqguired title as ELTON BT : .

do(es) hereby GRANT, BARGAIN and SELLYS

EETON INVESTMENT GROUP LLC

the real :grqgeﬁy_sityage in the County of Clark, State of Nevada, destribed as follows:

LOT FORTY (40) IN BLOCK THIRTEEN (13} OF CHARLESTON HEIGHTS TRACT NO. 41-
A, AS SHOWN BY MAP THEREOF ON FILE IN BOOK 7 OF PLATS; PAGE 56, IN THE
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA,

Subject to

1. Alf general and spedial taxes for the current fiscal year.

2. Covenants, Conditions, Restrictions, Reservations, Rights, Rights of Way and Easements
now of record.

TOGETHER with all tenements, hereditements and appurtenances, induding easements and
water rights, if any, thereto belonging or appertaining, and any reversions, remaindears, rents,
issues or profits thereof.

Date; 05/13/2015
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*

Eleanor C. Ahern, Trustee of the Elton
Business Trust

/ié@dmbCMWu

By: Eleanor C. Ahern,, Trustee

STATE OF %é r Ur

COUNTY OF W

This instrument was acknowledged before me on. d—U H(y 6 f Qﬂg . by

|

: DA Notary Publ c
{My comnission expires: )

I"——_"'-"_""'""""""!

Notary Public

Iy 2D\ LAURENEL ORTIZ |

Jupe 3, 217 {
SR State of Ulah

Es-::tm-:--clc:-mn:lmmm

This Notary Acknowledgement is attached to that certain Grant, Bargain & ﬁie {)eed dated May

13, 2015 under Escrow No. 116-2485987.

YE[eansr (. Angn, Trvsdes oF The Eltv Businese

Tt
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. 10% of the

STATE OF NEVADA

DECLARATION OF VALUE
1, Assessor Parcel Number(s}
a)y 138-35-515-002
2]
©)
d)
2.  Type of Property )
a) VacantLand  b) [ x} Single Fam. Res. [ FOR RECORDERS OPTIONAL USE’
c) l:[ Condo/Twrhse  d) [ | 2-4 Plex Book _ Page:
&) [ ] Ant. Bidg. f) [} commiindt Date of Recarding:
o | 1 Agricuttural h} [ ] Mobite Home Notes:
iy [ ] Other ‘
3. a} Total Value/Sales Price of Property: $90,000.00
b) Deed m }feu of Forec{osure Only {value of ($° )
c) Transfer Tax Vaiua ?A $50,000.00
d} Real Property Ttan_sfe:z‘-’f ax Due $459.00

4. i Exemption Claimed;

. a. Transfer Tax Exemption, per:375.090, Section;
t. Explain reasen for exemption:’

5. Partial interest: Percenta{ge being transferred; [ OU «

The undersigned declares and acknowlgdges, under penally of perjury, pursuant o NRS
375.060 and NRS 375.110, that the informations provided ls correct te the best of thair
information and befief, and can be supported by dacumentation if called upon to substantiate
the information provided herein. Furthermore, the partfes agree that disallowance of any
claimed exemptioy, or othei.determination of additional tax-due, may resulf in a penalty of . . -~
ntgfest at 1% per month. Pursuant to NRS 375.030, the Buyer and
éverally liable for any addifional amount-owed.

Seller shalf be jo}

Signatuye: Capacity: A‘ég IS
Signature: Capacity: ] v
SELLER [GRANTOR) INFORMAT!ON BUYER {GRANTEEHNFDRMATION
(REQUIRED) ) (REQUIRED)
ELTON INVESTMENT
Print Name: ELTON BUSINESS TRUST Print Name: GROUP LLC
. : 1818 INDUSTRIAL RCAD
Address: 1818 INDUSTRIAL ROAD 101 Address: 101
" City: _LasVegas . ] City: LAS VEGAS
Stater NV T 7ipr 89102 State: NV | Zip: 89102
COMPANY/PFERSON REQUESTING RECORDING {requ:red ¥ not seﬂer or buyer}
First American Tille Insurance
Print Name: Company File Number: 116-2485987 CCICC
Address 2500 Paseo Verde Parkway. 8u:te 120 N ]
City: Henderson State: NV Zip-B8074

{AS A PUBLIC RECORD THIS FORM MAY BE RECORDED/MICROFILMED)

PN
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EXHIBIT “C”
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#7/18/2812 14:85 7A23B61979 MICHARY. A ROOT FAGE 81/82

MARTIN O, PEREL, ESQ.
10100 Santz Monica Blvd.
. ' Los Angeles, CA 96D67

Yty 10, 2012

10100 Sauta Mopica Blvd
Los Angeles, CA 50067

Attention: Mary Lou Cassidy

The purpase of this letter is to infonm you that at the request of Wells
Fargo Bank Eleanor Ahern hss closed the bank account which was in direct
violation of several Federal, State and Local Laws. Upon the request of Wells
Fargo Bank Eleanor Abern contacted e and upon review 1 informed ber to
comply with the banks long stauding request to close this accowmt in order to
avoid any potential ctinrinal charges against her or Jacqueline. This accowst was
subject to clasing by the bauk if Elcanor had not done so. Wells Farga Bank
Corp. was very clear that they were not willing to lose their banking chexter in
_order to allow the continnanice of frand. Eleanor did attempt to comply with the
banks Repional Viee President’s reguest with the cooperation of ber daughter . B et TR
wiich was not attainable. .
Identity theft is a federal crime as is check frand. Once the documems
were reviewed and 1 was satisfied of the legitirnacy of the banks claim and
potential actions, | insisted that my client sease her month long delay with
complisnce of their request.
‘ - Eleanor has opened a new bank account at Wells Fargo which is in
 compliance with Federal, State and Local Jaws and of which Wells Fargo is
content to allow deposit. Wells Fargo had indeed informed Eleanor that they
would no longer allow the deposit of checks into that subject account and fully
intended to suspend all banking actions of thig subject account and possibly press
charges. Sufficely fo say Wells Fargo now has & proper trust acceunt open
swherein all revenue checks will be deposited and appropxiate payments will be
made. Please forward to me all documents ml;)po:tmg your position rejarding the
monetary split.
Weekly Jacqneline Montoya may take any and all checks whmh may
come into her possession to Michael Reot’s Office at 415 S. 6 Street, Las Vegas,
" NV £9101. Sheisto give them to Jennis Padilla and she will provide a reccipted
copy. This shall be done every Wednesday as needed by each week. -
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|B7/18/2812 14:85 7023861979 MICHAE:L A ROOT PAGE

MARTIN O. PEREL, ESQ.
10100 Santa Monica Blvd.
Los Angeles, CA 90067

Onee 2 month, & focal, CPA FIRM will provide a complete accounting.
Jacqueline Montoya may pick up checks once & month on the 8 at the office of
Michael Roof at 415 8. 6™ Street, Ste. 203 A, Las Vegas, NV §9101. Additionally
once & month on the 8 she will be provided with fult accounting records which
will be from the local CPA firm. It is at that time she may sign any check
requiring her signature.

Please be advised | have confacted all oil and gas companies of a change
of address from maverick and 710 t our offices at the request of Eieanor. DO
NOT CHANGE THIS PROVISION. IT IS IN EVERYONES BEST
INTEREST. DO NOT HAVE ANY CONTACT WITH ANY OF THE
LESSORS.

Should you have any further questions please contact me ta wiiting.

Sincerely,.

)

SN - D T IS R i R e Tl S W - e e
£ Ea S
Martin O, Perel, ESQ.

6258
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P-09-066425-T

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Probate - COURT MINUTES August 05, 2015
Trust/Conservatorships
P-09-066425-T In the Matter of the Trust of:

The W.N. Connell and Marjorie T. Connell Living Trust, dtd May 18, 1972

August 05, 2015 10:00 AM Motion
HEARD BY: Sturman, Gloria COURTROOM: R]C Courtroom 03H
COURT CLERK: Linda Denman COURT RECORDER: Kerry Esparza
PARTIES:

Eleanor Ahern, Petitioner, present Kirk Lenhard, Tamara Peterson, Attorneys,

present
Fredrick Waid, Trustee, present Todd Moody, Attorney, present
Jacqueline Montoya, Other, Personal Joseph Powell, Attorney, present

Representative, present
Kathryn Bouvier, Other, present

JOURNAL ENTRIES |

JACQUELINE M. MONTOYA'S AND KATHRYN A. BOUVIER'S MOTION FOR ASSESSMENT
OF DAMAGES AGAINST ELEANOR AHERN; ENFORCEMENT OF NO-CONTEST CLAUSE;
AND SURCHARGE OF ELEANOR’'S TRUST INCOME

Mr. Powell requested relief from the Court for this motion for damages; treble damages; punitive
damages; enforcement of the no-contest clause in the trust; and to surcharge Eleanor Ahern's income
if she is not disinherited. Mr. Lenhard argued there was no due process and advised the Court he
had filed a Motion to Strike the supplement to this motion and his motion is set to be heard on
August19. Court stated this motion is premature as the contempt hearing against Ms. Ahern has not
been held. Court also directed counsel to Rogler v Millard, a recently decided Nevada Supreme

Court opinion upholding this Court granting of a no-contest dispute on a Motion for Summary
Judgment.

Mr. Waid advised he was still working on recovering trust assets but had IRS issues to resolve and
could not depose Ms. Ahern until the criminal proceedings against her were finalized. COURT

PRINT DATE: | 08/06/2015 Page 1 of 2 Minutes Date: August 05,2015
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P-09-066425-T

ORDERED matter SET for EVIDENTIARY HEARING on the issues of damages, punitive damages,
surcharge, and no-contest clause; discovery deadline is October 16. COURT FURTHER ORDERED

status check SET.

9/2/2015 AT 9.00AM STATUS CHECK: EVIDENTIARY HEARING STATUS

11/9/2015 AT 9:30AM EVIDENTIARY HEARING

CLERK'S NOTE: Please note the date of the Status Check is Wednesday, September 2nd, 2015 at

9:00AM./1d

INTERIM CONDITIONS:

FUTURE HEARINGS:

Canceled: August 05, 2015 1:30 PM Motion

August 14, 2015 9:3¢ AM Petition - HM
RIC Courtroom 03F

Chun, Sharon

Yamashita, Wesley

August 18, 2015 8:3¢ AM
Romea, Dulce

RIC Courttroom 14C
Gonzalez, Elizabeth
Hawkins, Jill

August 19, 2015 9:0¢ AM Motion to Strike
Denman, Linda

Sturman, Gloria

Esparza, Kerry

RJC Courtroom 03H

PRINT DATE: | 08/06/2015 Page 2 of 2 Minutes Date:

August 05, 2015
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Electronically Filed
03/29/2016 07:56:42 AM

TRAN %‘ i'W

CLERK OF THE COURT
DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

* Kk ok Kk K

TN THE MATTER OF THE TRUST OF':) CASE NO: P09-066425-T
THE W.N. CONNELI, AND MARJORIE ) DEPT NO: XXVI

T. CONNELL TIVING TRUST, DTD )

MAY 18, 1972,

)
)

BEFORE THE HONORABLE GLORIA STURMAN, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

EVIDENTIARY HEARTING: ENFORCEMENT OF NO CONTEST CLAUSE

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 22, 2016

APPEARANCES:

For Ahern: KIRK B. LENHARD, ESQ.
TAMMY PETERSON, ESQ.

For Bouvier and Montoya: JOSEPH POWELL, ESQ.
DANIEL KIEFER, ESQ.
LAYNE RUSHFORTH, ESQ.

For Waid: TODD MOODY, ESQ.

RECORDED BY KERRY ESPARZA, COURT RECORDER
TRANSCRIBED BY: KARR Reporting, Inc.

KARR REPORTING, INC.
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OPENING STATEMENTS:
By Mr. Rushforth
By Mr. Lenhard
WITNESSES:
FREDRICK WAID
Direct Examinat
Cross-Examinati

Cross—Examinati

Redirect Examination By Mr. Rushforth

Recross Examina
JACQUELINE MONTOYA
Direct Examinat

Cross—-Examinati

INDEX

ion By Mr. Powell

on By Mr. Lenhard

on By Mr. Moody

Tion By Mr. Lenhard

ion By Mr. Lenhard

on By Mr. Kiefer

KARR REPORTING, INC.

24

43

56

122

152

154

157

165

199
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EXHIBITS ADMITTED:

A through F
G — Sealed

I

M
N

I

I through N

-

| F

G — Sealed
|

K — Sealed

EXHIBITS ADMITTED:

EXHIBITS

KARR REPORTING, INC.

PAGE
75
75
75
81
89
91
91

101
164
186
PAGE
163
163
203

205
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11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

I

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, MONDAY, FEBRUARY 22, 2016, 10:07 A.M.
x ok ok Kk K

THE COURT: So we're going to go on the record then
in P-09-066425. We'll have everybody state appearances,
because we do have a substitute clerk today and she may not be
as familiar with everybody as the regular clerk was. So we'll
have everybody state appearances.

MR. POWELL: Good morning, Your Honor. Joey Powell
appearing on behalf of Kathryn Bouvier and Jacqueline Montoya.

MR. KIEFER: Daniel Kiefer on behalf of the same
parties, Your Honor.

MR. RUSHFORTH: Layne Rushforth on behalf of the
same parties, Your Honor.

MR. LENHARD: Kirk Lenhard and Tammy Peterson on
behalf of Ms. Ahern.

MR. MOODY: Good morning, Your Honor. Todd Moody,
Bar No. 5430, for the court appointed trustee, Fred Waid,
who's also present.

THE COURT: Okay. Today we are scheduled for an
evidentiary hearing, and we did discuss, you know, what we
were going to try to accomplish at our evidentiary hearing
today and what we've got as far as who we're going to hear
from and what we've got with respect to exhibits.

One thing first that should be noted is we do have

trial memorandum from both Ms. Peterson, Mr. Lenhard and from

KARR REPORTING, INC.
4
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10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Mr. Powell. Unfortunately, both sides used letters in their
exhibits, so it's a little confusing for the clerk. But since
I believe — and Mr. Lenhard did request to file his under
seal, and T grant that, because one of the documents that was
" included, I think it's actually in both, is Mr. Waid's report,
which was sealed.

So to the extent that these are on file, that
“ exhibit definitely should be sealed. T don't know if the rest
of them need to be sealed, Mr. Lenhard, but we do have that
one exhibit that does need to be sealed, and because it is
referenced, probably all of it should be sealed. So we did
" seal that one.

I don't know, Mr. Powell, if you wanted to seal your
brief, anything in yours. Tt looked — there was a lot of
overlap as far as exhibits in the two. So, you know, if we
need to seal anything, we can certainly discuss that at a
later time if we — 1f there's anything that needs to be
" sealed. Because this is — there's a lot of information in
here, financial information here about the parties that they
may not want made public.

MR. KIEFER: Thank you, Your Honor. We're‘happy to
seal anything specific, whether it be with redactions, or
since the report was already sealed, we apologize that that

was filed not under seal in the rest of the case. But it

" seems at least a bit presumptuous to seal the entire trial

KARR REPORTING, INC.
5
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brief on either side, considering the amount of information
rlthat's in there that's not confidential or doesn't need to be
redacted given the policy to have everything open to the
{lpublic.

THE COURT: Okay. The purpose for the hearing today
is this was a request at this point in time, we're at the
point of a request of what do we do now that we've got a
little bit of time behind us and we have some idea. And
perhaps Mr. Waid not having technically — he doesn't feel
he's completed his efforts to really — he's at the point
where he feels he can do a formal report, but we were at a
point where we needed to know what we were going to do going
il forward.

And we need to take evidence on this with respect to
how — basically how to account for the income from the oil
and gas revenues going forward, I think. So at a minimum, I
believe we've got a request that we do a surcharge, but there
is also a request that beyond a surcharge, that we actually
enforce the no contest clause and deprive Ms. Ahern of her
interest in the trust altogether. So if there is anything
else that we need to be discussing today, I don't know.

But I do think that we need at least some testimony
today to update us as to where we are, so that we can make a
determination as to whether there's enough information here

for the court to say we know what's happened or hasn't
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| happened to the funds, and at least, you know, what we've been
able to recover to date and what remains unaccounted for. And
Flthen the next step being how do we deal with that; is this a
f'simple matter of a surcharge, do we go beyond that. So those
J are the things we need to be the issues.

MR. KIEFER: Your Honor, we do have just one
evidentiary issue that would need to be addressed first.
Given the late filing of the trial brief, we weren't able to
file a proper motion in limine on this issue.

THE COURT: Okay.

|

ﬂ brief from Ms. Eleanor Ahern states that they are essentially

MR. KIEFER: As you know, Your Honor, the trial

going to argue that she was under undue influence. We would
argue that they're judicially estopped from taking that
position. It's very important that the Court remember that
during the MSJ hearing on January 30, 2015, counsel for Ms.
Ahern was adamant that she was under no undue influence.

In fact, on page 126 of that transcript, which is a
rlpart of the record, Ms. Renka said, "And again we keep hearing
FJcounsel's opinion that Eleanor is under undue influence and
consulting with bad people and talking to God. There's no
|ievidence anywhere in here that Eleanor ever said that she was
advised by God, and we have an EPS social worker saying that

there's no undue influence. Eleanor is completely with it,

Fivery intelligent, and capable of managing not only her
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personal finances, but the finances of the trust."

In support of that same motion, in a reply dated
January 9, 2015, Eleanor Ahern submitted a declaration. At
paragraph 10 of that declaration, under the topic titled
Jacqueline Contacted Elder Protective Services Without
Consulting Me, it says:

"During the meeting I learned that Jacqueline had
called EPS and reported that my close friend and limited
agent, Suzanne Nounna [phonetic], was financially exploiting
me. I explained that this was not the case, that Suzanne was
a trusted friend and that I had complete control and
understanding of my finances and business affairs.

"EPS closed the case, determining that the claims of
exploitation were not substantiated. I later obtained a copy
of the EPS assessment from EPS via mail. I was extremely hurt
and upset and angered that Jacqueline would lie to EPS and
contact EPS without so much as discussing her alleged concern
with me."

The issue we have, Your Honor, and again, 1
understand that opposing counsel is just being the advocates
that they need to be, but their trial brief essentially makes
the argument that through Jacqueline and Kathryn's deposition
you can infer and you can take evidence that there was undue
influence. Yet their client tells you in her own declaration

that that evidence is a lie.
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So it seems a bit disingenuous at least that they
would present evidence that what their client has said in a
sworn statement is a lie. And for that reason, Your Honor, we
have a standing objection to any evidence presented in that
Fjregard.

THE COURT: Well, to the extent that we had, you
know, the arguments of counsel a year ago where that Ms. Ahern
was not under undue influence, do we have, I think, perhaps
I some subsequent information from Mr. Waid, who is her trustee,
that might — I wouldn't say contradict that, but that might
l call that into question?

ﬁ MR. KIEFER: Well, here's the important issue, Your
d Honor, and that's a good point and I understand that, and if
that came from Mr. Waid I would understand that point too.

d But in — the reason that they were so adamant that there was
d no undue influence is because the argument from Jacqueline and
Kathryn was, Your Honor, for reasons we can't explain, in June
2013 she deviated from the trust document.

" We think the reason she might have deviated is that
“ she got some new friends and they were chirping in her ear to
do this, do that. Not that she was unduly influenced, but

d that they had an influence or at least were talking to her.
They denied that, because it was so important that they wanted
to argue, as they still argue in the Supreme Court now on

i ,
appeal, that she is entitled to 100 percent of the trust,
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she's entitled to 100 percent of the trust income.

So they wanted to wipe out any idea that there was
some sort of shifting that got her to change her position from
65/35 to the new 100 percent. And they've been adamant in
that point. And in fact, this Court hasn't found any undue
..influénce, even though it was arqgued.

And like I said, Your Honor, in their Supreme Court
brief, their opening brief appealing the 65/35, they still
talk about 17 times it calls these distributions gifts. So
they're taking a completely contrary position that cannot be
supported and cannot be allowed.

THE COURT: Understood. Okay. Thank you.

Mr. Lenhard.

MR. LENHARD: Thank you, Your Honor. First of ail,
yes, we did file our trial brief Friday afternoon. I'11
remind the Court that due to the good efforts of counsel for
Ms. Montoya and Ms. Bouvier, we're working on a pro bono
basis. It's a miracle we got something filed at all.

But leaving that to the side, let's talk about a
“ filing on July 31, 2015, well after the events discussed by
counsel here this morning. In that document entitled
" Supplement to Motion for Assessment of Damages Against Eleanor
Ahern, Enforcement of No Contest Clause and Surcharge of
“ Eleanor's Trust Income, what we're here for today, there's a

heading setting the record straight.
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In pages 2 through 11, they go into detail on all
the influence of a lady named Suzanne Nounna on the life of my
client. They filed that with this court to influence this
court in its decisional process today. Now they want us to
ignore that document, prohibit us from questioning about that
document, prohibit us from arguing about that document, yet
use that document in today's proceedings.

What am I missing here? I would suggest they put it
in evidence in the filing of July 31, it's open season, and we
do intend on raising the influence of others here today as we
analyze the trustor's intent in paragraph 10 of the trust
document. Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. KIFFER: Your Honor, I'll just point out that
again, as of Thursday, before the trial brief was filed, the
position taken by Ms. Ahern is that there's never been any
undue influence. And in fact, in their trial brief on page 7,
it says, "The remaining claims are innocuous; that is it's
clear that the trust funds were mishandled in between 2013 and
2005, and Eleanor will be responsible for ensuring that the
trust 1s compensated appropriately once the extent of the loss
is finally determined."

So are they changing course? Are they going to
stipulate to dismiss their appeal, which 1s based on the fact

that she's entitled to 100 percent of the trust income?
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incongruent positions that cannot be sustained. Thank you,
Your Honor.

THE COURT: Well, I think that's —— that goes to
argument, so we'll certainly hear those arguments. I do think
that we do need to take some testimony. As I said, I
appreciate that Mr. Waid has not reached a point where he is
comfortable that he can state definitively what has happened
with respect to the funds. However, I do think we need some
testimony on that.

I think that we need to see what we can do to figure
out where — where the — where we stand today with what we've
recovered, so we can make a determination as to — and T don't
want to put words in Mr. Lenhard's mouth, but I would not say
that they have conceded that a surcharge is warranted. I read
it as saying if a surcharge is warranted.

So I just want to make sure they still want to be
heard on that preliminary question, or do we just go to the
other question, which is that, you know, totally —

MR. LENHARD: What we are going to state this
morning, because we have proceedings pending at this point, we
are going to, I guess, concede the — I think Mr. Waid's
holding 700, 000.

Can you answer that, Mr. Waid? You're going to be

under oath in a minute anyway.
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MR. WAID: Approximately.

MR. LENHARD: All right. We are going to concede
that should go back to Mr. Waid to use as he deems
appropriate. Once the Supreme Court winds through all this
thing, if we're determined to be correct in 100 percent, a new
accounting can occur. If we're determined not to be correct
and 1t's a 65/35 split, that can be accounted for, or if we
lose entirely, that can be accounted for.

Rut for today's purposes and what's before the
Court, we are going to tender to Mr. Waid the 700 and plus
thousand dollars for the trustees pending a ruling by the
Supreme Court.

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Moody, can I ask, I don't
want yet to put Mr. Waid under oath, because I know he's
really uncomfortable about this. But so where are we? Where
are we with respect to what the trustee's been able to
accomplish so far? What can he tell us about today?

Because I know some of this he doesn't want to go on
the record under oath on because some of it is tax liability
that would devolve to the trustee. And he doesn't, for good
reason, want to take a position on some of these things
because some of it's we're dealing with the IRS here, these
taxes, so.

MR. MOODY: Yeah. Thank you, Your Honor. There are

a lot of sensitive issues that are at issue here. With
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respect to Mr. Waid's‘testimony today, we've done a few
things. We've brought motions before Your Honor, and Ms.
Ahern was ordered to appear and submit to — for an
independent medical examination, which she did last week in
Mesquite.

Despite our best efforts, I can personally represent
to the Court that four follow—up phone calls have been made
with the office. It was our understanding we would have a
report from that doctor the very afternoon of the examination.
| That has not come in.

So to answer Your Honor, some of the things that
Mr. Waid needs in order to finalize his accounting, in fact,
most of what's left are really guestions for Ms. Ahern. And
that's the reason for the IME, to see i1f she can submit to
questioning by way of deposition and if so, under what
circumstances, what accommodations need to e met. So that's
still kind of just hanging out there, and I wish I had a
better answer for Your Honor about that.

J MR. LENHARD: On the IME issue, you know, we have a
J concern also, because we have a client here that's hard of
hearing, among other things, and has cognitive issues. We
J wanted that IME for purposes of today's proceedings as well as
the deposition. And we've been interested in getting the IME,

and then of course it was —

THE COURT: Yeah. I don't think anybody's saylng
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that it was the parties who didn't cooperate. I think it's
just a question of, you know, relying on a professional, you
know, the physician to deal with it expeditiously and, you
know, things happen and we didn't get it. So that may limit
what we can do today. I mean, I don't know, Counsel, 1if
you —— how you take a position on that.

But it does not appear to be that it was a failure
to cooperate on anybody's part. It looks like everybody did
what they were supposed to do. It's just we're relying on
this third party, the IME physician, who just hasn't gotten us
the written report. So it may limit what we're able to do
today.

MR. KIEFER: Your understanding is our
understanding, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thanks. I just want to make sure that
that's clear, Mr. Moody, and that's why I said, you know, we
Jjust — we need to make a good record, because I know
Mr. Waid's really concerned about making it very clear that at
this point he cannot state definitively that he knows what the
numbers are.

MR. MOODY: Absolutely. If he were able, Your Honor
would have an accounting from him. But he has made
representations to the Court by way of declarations and in
some motions. He and I both have thoroughly reviewed those.

He is prepared to testify about them.
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One question that I do have for Your Honor is that
Mr. Waid, because he is the trustee, is a fiduciary to both
sides that are arguing in court today and does not want to
take an adversarial position. And I don't know ——

THE COURT: No, no. He is not. He is not
advocating — I don't view this as he would be advocating for
any party. I think that it's understood that his job was to
marshal the assets and see if he could come to an accounting
and tell us what had happened during this period in time, and
he's made — and I think it's conceded he's made good strides.

That may be a question that we have though, which is
at this point in time really going forward, you know, what
should that role be. It might be that it needs to change.

MR. MOODY: Well, my point 1s really one of an
evidentiary one, and that is whether Mr. Waid will be subject
to cross—examination. That is usually reserved for a party
who takes an adversarial position. He's not a hostile
witness. He's not adversarial to either side, and I would
appreciate a ruling from the Court before we begin that he be

limited to direct examination questions only, particularly in

light —

THE COURT: Ry both parties.

MR. MOODY: By both sides.

THE COURT: Yes. In other words, no leading that
he's — it's informational fact gathering. It's to make a
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| record for both sides. TIt's not —

MR. LENHARD: That's a little unusual, Your Honor.

THE COURT: He's not adversary to anybody. He's
here as a trustee —

ll MR. LENHARD: T appreciate that and I don't treat
Mr. Walid as an adversary. BRut if he's called by my opponents,
" the general rule is, whether he's an adversary or not, the
second party gets to cross—examine. And I'm not sure why T
would be denied the right to cross—examine Mr. Waid if he's in
i fact called as a witness by the movants here. T'm not saying
| he's adverse to me. I'm just talking about the general rules
of evidence in a courtroom.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. KIEFER: Although we agree that Mr. Wald 1s also
neutral, I agree with Mr. Lenhard that he should have the
IJright to cross—examine him.

THE COURT: I mean, 1'm not saying and T don't think
lINE. Moody is saying that they aren't allowed to question him.
T specifically thought that Mr. Moody's concern was leading

| questions, treating him as a hostile witness, those kinds of
things that, I mean, it's just questioning. It's not —— maybe
I I'm wrong, so.

MR. MOODY: That's it, Your Honor. He is here, he's
| prepared, he understands that he'll probably be the primary

witness if not the only witness today, and I Jjust —
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THE COURT: Sure.

MR. MOODY: He is a fiduciary. Because he has not
provided a — or been able to provide a full accounting, my
request and my oral motion to the Court is that the questions
be limited to direct examination and that he not be subject to
cross—examination.

MR. LENHARD: Maybe I can agree with movant's
counsel on this. Why don't we take this on the basis let's
walt and see what happens before we agree to not cross.

THE COURT: Right. And I guess, I think that may be
well. I think that certainly Mr. Moody is allowed to make
objections if he feels it's an inappropriate question directed
at his client.

But I just again, for the record, since we're not
all on the same page, we don't all know or are not as familiar
with what Mr. Waid does, because it's highly technical and
sophisticated work that he does, what is your —— in your view,
what is 1t the trustee can testify to without —

And this is also, you know, so that not only
Ms. Ahern, but her daughters also understand the problem that
we have here is a significant tax liability. And if we make a
record about it, then we're all stuck with sworn testimony
about tax liability that nobody really — it's not in
anybody's interest for us to help the IRS.

MR. RUSHFORTH: Your Honor, we're prepared to
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| xnow — and I understand that Mr. Waid can give us a general

stipulate that the issue of tax liability will be only
mentioned in general concept, but not in specifics. And I
don't think that will be an issue today, Your Honor.

THE COURT: So as long as we can — I think you
understand everybody's concern, Mr. Lenhard, is that we — we
don't want to put Mr. Waid under oath as testifying to having
specific — a specific opinion about what the tax liability
might be, because it's the IRS.

MR. LENHARD: I certainly don't want to get into the
specifics of tax liability either. But one of the arguments
we will be making, based on what Mr. Waid has told us when we
met with Mr. Waid per your instructions, is how we handle the
$700, 000 that's sitting there to avoid the tax liability.
That is why we're making tender today without waiving our
rights in the Supreme Court and taking an inconsistent
position. We're trying to solve the tax problem with the
assistance of Mr. Waid.

THE COURT: Okay. So I think we — what we need to
go back over is the ground rules here, because Mr. Powell's
motion and what he has been advocating for, for however long
it's been, you know, close to a year now, is at a minimum his
clients are entitled to a surcharge or the ultimate sanction
of exercising the no contest clause.

Recause we have some amount of money, and I don't
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idea of what he has recovered, what he thinks should have been
there and what he has recovered. We've got this tax problem
that overlays all of this that we don't want anybody here
taking a firm position on today.

Tt's not in anybody's interest for us to have any
sworn testimony about what any of us believe tax liabilities
would be. Because again, not only Mr. Waid, but a tax
professional hopefully can deal with this to minimize it for
us all. I understand that. BRut we think — I think we need
at this point in time, we need to make — we need to rule on
Mr. Powell's motion that's been hanging over this case once
and for all, and that then you can go forward.

Because it is a probate case, a trust case, you
can —— interim orders can be made and they can be appealed.
We have to make a definitive ruling on how we're going to —
how T believe this should be treated going forward, so that
then you've got that and you're ready to go. We just need a
final decision on this, this issue.

So T just want to make sure that everybody
understands the ground rules and that no — everybody here
understands and respects the position that the trustee is in
is as a fiduciary to both sets of beneficiaries. He is not
here to advocate for either of them. Tt is a — it is he's
here to report factually what he has been able to do in his

role and that that — he's just here to report that. 1It's
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not — he's not taking a position. He has not taken a
position on this in any way.

And all we're looking for here is just evidence to
I help the Court make its determination on this motion that
Mr. Powell has had pending now for months and months. It's we
have to make an evidentiary hearing. I understand that we may
not be able to, and I appreciate Mr. Lenhard's concern that
without that IME report we — he's uncomfortable with perhaps
|| permitting his client to go forward today.

And it may be that we will only hear from Mr. Waid.
There may be some from Mr. Powell's clients. They may have
||some testimony to give. I mean, we certainly —— you know,
they are certainly here and they can testify. But I believe, -
I don't think I'm hearing from anybody that I don't think that
we won't have what we need to make a ruling on these motions.
I think that we have — we will have enough.

And as I said, I do not view this as a situation
where Mr. Waid is here as a witness or an advocate for eilther
party. He is here simply to report to the extent that he can
lI| on an interim basis. He doesn't have a conclusion, he
hasn't —— he — and we don't want to put him in a position of

taking a — stating an opinion as to what —— definitively what

Ihas happened, because we're then, we're tying his hands.
And because he's most importantly, in addition to

" recovering these funds, we have apparently a really
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significant income tax liability that we want to leave him all
options open. So we don't want to paint him into a corner
where he — we limit his options with the Internal Revenue
Service, 1if you're comfortable with that, Mr. Moody.

MR. MOODY: So I think we agree with Your Honor, and
let me just give you an overview of what I expect Mr. Waid to
testifly about.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MOODY: He'll testify what — about what he has
done since he was appointed almost a year ago. He will
testify about what he has found as a result of his
investigation. He can talk about what he would still like to
do and what he has not been permitted to do, and what he's
walting on to finalize the accounting. And then he can speak,
as I think both sides agree, very generally about his concerns
about potential tax liabilities without telling you
specifically what those may look like, because we don't have
the accounting.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. MOODY: Anything else, Mr. Waid?

:

WAID: Correct.

MR. MOODY: Okay.

THE COURT: Okay. With that understanding,
Mr. Rushforth, Mr. Waid, Mr. Powell, do you think that's

adequate for the purposes of going forward today for the
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evidence we need for this motion?

MR. POWELL: Absolutely, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Lenhard, do you have any concerns
about that? I think that — and at this point, I think that's
about all we can do. Any concerns about —

MR. LENHARD: I agree, except I don't necessarily
agree with the limitations on Mr. Waid's testimony generally
that Mr. Moody placed. We certainly intend on going a little
deeper in certain issues.

J THE COURT: All right. Well, we'll see where we can
I go and again, because he is in this awkward position as a
fiduciary. So, Mr. Rushforth, are you going to call the
witness then?

MR. RUSHFORTH: If that's all right, with you, Your
Honor, I'd like to approach the bench. I have some slides
FJthat we're going to be using.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. RUSHFORTH: And here's our evidentiary binder
and the slides that we're using, and also on the document
monitor.

MR. LENHARD: I assume what we're doing is opening
statements; is that —

r‘ MR. RUSHEORTH: Yes.
MR. LENHARD: I haven't seen a pretrial order here,

i . .
F so I'm assuming this is the normal course.
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THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. RUSHFCRTH: TI'm going to begin with the ——

THE COURT: Now, and just for the record, I do take
the view, given the Watters case, that PowerPoint |
presentations — even though that was a criminal case,
PowerPoint presentations, while not evidence, nevertheless are
made a court's exhibit so the Court sees what the court saw.

MR. LENHARD: TI'm not objecting to the PowerPoint,
not at all.

THE COURT: Okay. So then it will be made a court's
exhibit when you're finished. TIf I can keep this stack, we'll
make it a court's exhibit.

MR. RUSHFORTH: You can keep that, and there's also
another copy in the binder that is for the record.

THE COURT: Excellent. Then we'll make i1t a court's
exhibit.

MR. RUSHFORTH: My role here is going to be opening
statement, and then Mr. Powell is going to present — he's
going to present our witness, present Mr. Waid and talk to him
about the —— within the scope that we've already discussed.

OPENING STATEMENT

MR. RUSHFORTH: Just very quickly, I just am putting
this first slide up here for to show the 35/65 percent
division of the trust. But the main point of this slide is to

show that our clients, Jacqueline and Kathryn, Jacqui and
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Kathy are the residuary beneficiaries, the remainder
beneficiaries of Trust No. 2. And they're also the
beneficiaries through the MIC Living Trust, the Trust No. 3.

So they've really got an interest in both sides of
this trust. And so when we talk about accounting, when we
talk about responsibility to fiduciary duty, there is a
fiduciary duty that the trustee owes to them in both sides of
the trust, not just on one side of the trust.

I quickly summarize the orders that the court has
already granted. In December 20, the order was entered saying
that the 65 percent share interest was to be protected, that
was a duty that was imposed on the trustee. 1In April of last
year, summary judgment was reqguired that Ms. Ahern account for
the income and disbursements and to reimburse the 65 percent
of Texas 0il property income.

And on April 20, a summary Jjudgment order was
clarified and it was declared that a minimum of $2.1 million,
almost $2.2 million was declared due from Ms. Ahern. A breach
of fiduciary duty was found. She was removed as trustee of
the 65 percent trust and suspended as trustee of the 35
percent share. She has not been discharged because she hasn't
accounted and cannot be discharged until she has accounted.

In June of last year, attorney's fees were awarded and 500,000
was ordered to pbe restored to the trust.

Now, we've already — kind of already have talked

KARR REPORTING, INC.
25

AAPP 121




10
11

12

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

about the issues that are going to be discussed today, and our
number one issue and the most important issue is the
enforceability of the no contest clause. If that issue is
found, 1f the Court finds that she did as is found in Clause
10 of the trust, if she interfered with the administration of
the trust or the distribution of its assets, 1f the Court
makes that finding, if the facts that come out today
demonstrate that she's interfered with the administration of
the trust, then under Nevada law we have a clear prima facie
case for enforceability.

There are — under our statute for no contest

clauses there are some limitations. There are some exclusions

from that, but they simply don't apply in this case.  The

exclusion is a good faith exception, when you're bringing a
contest, that on bona fide evidence that related to the lack
of a testator's capacity or the lack of a settlor's mental
capacity. Those exceptions just don't apply here.

And but if the Court decides for some reason that
there 1s some kind of reason that Ms. Ahern's conduct doesn't
amount to a contest under the terms of the trust, then the
next issue that we're going to discuss is going to be what
happens to the distributions from the trust and do we impound
it, can there be some leakage, can there be some allowance of
income that comes to Ms. Ahern, or does it all get frozen

until it's been restored. And of course, I think we've made
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| our position clear.

And then Item No. C, we've all agreed that Mr. Waid
hasn't done the calculations. We don't know the calculations.
We're not going to discuss the tax implications yet, because
we're not there yet. But one of the issues on the damages,
and we know — we know there's going to have to —— 1if when we
get to damages, there's going to have to be another
evidentiary hearing and it's going to be after Mr. Waid's done
his job. But one of the things we are asking here is that we
think that there is a reason to ask for treble damages.
There's a reason to ask for punitive damages. And so those
are some of the issues that we want to argue today too.

But the main thing that we want to begin with is
about no contest clause. Now, we want to preserve what's at
stake. We want to preserve the 65 percent. We want to make
sure that the prior court orders have been administered, have
been honored, and are being honored. But it all really boils
down to fiduciary duties and whether they've been met or
whether they don't.

As trustee, Ms. Ahern had a duty of accountability,
and up to this point she hasn't met that duty. NRS Chapter
165 is the chapter that relates to fiduciary accountings, and
she hasn't complied with that and she's the one that's in a
l position to account.

The main reason I want to point this out is if you
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read the opposition that we get, we get all kinds of red
herring arguments about things that might deter her from doing
this or doing that. She can't delegate her duty. A third
party can't absolve her her duty. It's still her duty to
account. And whether she was unduly influenced or whatever,
it's still her duty and she's accountable, and no third party
conduct 1s goling to absolve her from her fiduciary duties.
And that's going to also be true with respect to the no
contest clause.

Now, the no contest clause is really pretty simple.
We're going to produce testimony that this conduct did attack,

oppose or seek to set aside the administration and

distribution of the trust. She attempted to defeat the clear

unambiguous intent of the settlors as expressed in the trust
instrument. Did she do that? We're going to show that she
did.

Now, the legal question that's involved here is that
we're going to show that she engaged in conduct that we
believe that has amounted to that frustration of intent, that
attacking and opposing. For Ms. Ahern to win on this motion,
this Court has to find either A, that the factual evidence
that we purport isn't adequate, is not persuasive, or that as
a matter of law that the conduct doesn't amount to interfering
with the administration of the estate. And so that's where

we're going to hit.
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Ms. Ahern declared under penalty of perjury that all
funds were accounted for, but they were not. In her own
report she acknowledged that there should have been 1.9,
almost $2 million on hand in January 2015. But when Mr. Waid
took over as trustee, there was only $9,941.15.

So clearly there's been something that's happened
here that has frustrated the administration of the estate, the
administration of the trust estate. What was that? Well,
these are actions that were taken by Ms. Ahern. On February
18 of last year she withdrew $700,000 from the St. George
branch of Wells Fargo Bank. There was a hearing on March 20,

after that, a month later, where she was actually removed as

trustee of the trust.

She was suspended and removed. And on that very
day, after she's been told she's no longer a trustee, after
she's been given a court order that says [unintelligible] at
65 percent, she goes to Wells Fargo just before closing time
and takes out over $400,000, out of a Wells Fargo trust
account. Now, 1f she's not the trustee, she had no business
doing that.

This 1s an interference with the administration of
the trust by the successor trustee. This is in clear
violation of the no contest clause. She then a few days later
goes to St. George and takes out $500,000, again removing

assets that were to be taken over by the successor trustee,
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